
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 

YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

July 21, 2020 Revised 7-17-20

Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 
MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 



   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE•YPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
  SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO • CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE • TREASURER LARRY DOE 
TRUSTEES: STAN ELDRIDGE • HEATHER JARRELL ROE • MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS • 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 
 
 

THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED ELECTRONICALLY. PLEASE USE THE 
INSTRUCTIONS BELOW OR VISIT YTOWN.ORG 

                                 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

       TUESDAY, JULY 21, 2020 
    7:00 P.M. 

Revised 7-17-2020 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 

 
3. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
A. VARIANCE TO THE PRIVATE ROAD ORDINANCE, SECTION 47-28.1, 

PRIVATE DRIVEWAY DESIGN STANDARDS, SUB-SECTION (A), FOR ONE 
(1) PRIVATE DRIVEWAY TO ACCESS TWO (2) LOTS ZONED R-1, SINGLE 
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WERE ONLY (1) LOT CAN BE ACCESSED BY A 
PRIVATE DRIVEWAY FOR SITES ZONED R-1, SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL, LOCATED AT 5485 MERRITT RD., PARCEL #K-11-30-300-045 
AND 5507 MERRITT RD., PARCEL #K-11-30-400-018 
 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
A. MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR MEETING  

 
B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 

 
1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR JULY 7, 2020 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$3,307,224.64 
2. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR JULY 21, 2020 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$891,503.51 
3. CHOICE HEALTHCARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH EFT FOR JUNE 2020 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $36,975.91 
4. CHOICE HEALTHCARE ADMIN FEE FOR JUNE 2020 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$1,200.50 
 
C. JUNE 2020 TREASURER’S REPORT 

 
6. ATTORNEY REPORT 

 
A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 2  July 21, 2020 
  

   
    
   
 
 
 
 
  

OLD BUSINESS 
 

 
1. 2ND READING OF RESOLUTION 2020-13, PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2020-491, 

AMENDING THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI’S CODE OF ORDINANCES TO 
CLARIFY THE PROCEDURE FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF “HOUSES OF WORSHIP” 
IN CONFORMITY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE RELIGIOUS LAND USE AND 
INSTITUTIONALIZED PERSONS ACT 
(1ST READING HELD AT THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR MEETING) 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

 
1. REQUEST TO APPROVE A VARIANCE TO THE PRIVATE ROAD ORDINANCE, 

SECTION 47-28.1, PRIVATE DRIVEWAY DESIGN STANDARDS, SUB-SECTION (A), 
FOR ONE (1) PRIVATE DRIVEWAY TO ACCESS TWO (2) LOTS ZONED R-1, SINGLE 
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WHERE ONLY (1) LOT CAN BE ACCESSED BY A PRIVATE 
DRIVEWAY FOR SITES ZONED R-1, SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, LOCATED AT 
5485 MERRITT RD., PARCEL #K-11-30-300-045 AND 5507 MERRITT RD., PARCEL #K-
11-30-400-018 
 

2. REQUEST APPROVAL OF THE COMCAST UNIFORM VIDEO SERVICE LOCAL 
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
 

3. REQUEST TO CONFIRM AUTHORIZATION FOR CIRCUIT COURT LITIGATION TO 
ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCES AT 6480 RAWSONVILLE RD., 590 CALDER AVE., 568 
ONANDAGA AVE., 1433 HARRY ST., AND PAINT CREEK SHOPPING CENTER 
LOCATED AT 2040 WHITTAKER RD. BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-023 

 
4. REQUEST TO CONFIRM AUTHORIZATION FOR CIRCUIT COURT LITIGATION TO 

ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCES BY PADLOCKING AT 1339 JEFFERY ST., 730 CALDER 
AVE., AND 1564 VILLAGE LANE BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-023 

 
5. REQUEST TO WAIVE THE FINANCIAL POLICY AND ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL FROM 

LOWES FOR REPLACEMENT OF KITCHEN CABINETS AND COUNTERTOPS AT FIRE 
STATION HEADQUARTERS LOCATED AT 222 S. FORD BLVD. AND COUNTERTOP AT 
STATION 3 LOCATED AT 20 S. HEWITT IN THE AMOUNT OF $25,553.09 BUDGETED 
IN LINE ITEM #206-970-000-971-008 
 

6. REQUEST TO WAIVE THE FINANCIAL POLICY AND APPROVE THE LOW QUOTE 
FROM BADER & SONS FOR THE PURCHASE OF A JOHN DEERE TRACTOR FOR 
$42,253.11 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-774-000-977-000 

 
7. RESOLUTION 2020-14, IN SUPPORT OF US-12/M-17 (WIARD TO I-94) 

IMPROVEMENTS 
 

8. RESOLUTION 2020-16, 2020 MICHIGAN LAND AND WATER CONSERVATION FUND 
DEVELOPMENT GRANT FOR COMMUNITY CENTER PARK 

 
9. RESOLUTION 2020-17, 2020 MICHIGAN RECREATION PASSPORT GRANT FOR 

CLUBVIEW PARK 
 

 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 3  July 21, 2020 
  

   
    
   
 
 
 
 
  

10. BUDGET AMENDMENT #8 
 
 
AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 
 
1. REQUEST TO AWARD THE BID FOR SOLID WASTE, RECYCLING AND YARD WASTE 

TO WASTE MANAGEMENT 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 
BOARD MEMBER UPDATES 



 
 
 

 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 
 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Public Meeting Notice 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 
July 21, 2020 7:00pm 

 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees will 
hold a Regular Meeting scheduled for July 21, 2020 at 7:00pm. This meeting will be 
conducted virtually (online and/or by phone), due to health concerns surrounding 
Coronavirus/COVID-19 under the Governor of Michigan’s Executive Order 2020-129. 
 
Public comment will be handled by the “Raise Hand” method as instructed below within 
Participant Controls. 
 
To comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), Any citizen requesting 
accommodation to attend this meeting, and/or to obtain this notice in alternate formats, 
please contact Clerk’s Office at 734-484-4700, at least two business days prior to the 
meeting. 

 
Meeting Information: 

 
Hi there,  
 
You are invited to a Zoom webinar.  
When: Jul 21, 2020 07:00 PM Eastern Time (US and Canada) 
Topic: Township Board of Trustees Regular Meeting July 21, 2020  
 
Please click the link below to join the webinar:  
https://ytown.zoom.us/j/95423898359 
 
Or iPhone one-tap :  
    US: +13126266799,,95423898359#  or +19292056099,,95423898359#  
Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
        US: +1 312 626 6799  or +1 929 205 6099  or +1 301 715 8592  or +1 346 248 7799  or +1 669 900 
6833  or +1 253 215 8782  
    Webinar ID: 954 2389 8359 
    International numbers available: https://ytown.zoom.us/u/abgT5lLKYH 

 
 

Zoom Instructions for Participants 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

 

Clerk’s Office 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River 
Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 484-4700 

Fax:  (734) 484-5156 



 
To join the conference by phone: 
 
1. On your phone, dial the teleconferencing number provided above. 

 
2. Enter the Meeting ID number (also provided above) when prompted using your 

touch- tone (DTMF) keypad. 
 
Before a videoconference: 
 
1. You will need a computer, tablet, or smartphone with speaker or headphones. 

You will have the opportunity to check your audio immediately upon joining a 
meeting. 

 
2. Details, phone numbers, and links to videoconference or conference call is 

provided below. The details include a link to “Join via computer” as well as phone 
numbers for a conference call option. It will also include the 9-digit Meeting ID. 

 
To join the videoconference: 
 
1. At the start time of your meeting, enter the link to join via computer. You may be 

instructed to download the Zoom application. 
 
2. You have an opportunity to test your audio at this point by clicking on “Test 

Computer Audio.” Once you are satisfied that your audio works, click on “Join 
audio by computer.” 

 
You may also join a meeting without the link by going to join.zoom.us on any browser 
and entering the Meeting ID provided. 
 
If you are having trouble hearing the meeting, you can join via telephone while 
remaining on the video conference: 
 
1. On your phone, dial the teleconferencing number. 

 
2. Enter the Meeting ID number (also provided above) when prompted using your 

touch- tone (DTMF) keypad. 
  
3. If you have already joined the meeting via computer, you will have the option to 

enter your 2- digit participant ID to be associated with your computer. 
 
 
 
 
 
Participant controls in the lower left corner of the Zoom screen: 



 

 
 
Using the icons in the lower left corner of the Zoom screen, you can: 
 
• Mute/Unmute your microphone (far left) 
• Turn on/off camera (“Start/Stop Video”) 
• Invite other participants 
• View Participant list – opens a pop-out screen that includes a “Raise Hand” icon 

that you may use to raise a virtual hand during Call to the Public 
• Change your screen name that is seen in the participant list and video window 
• Share your screen 
 
Somewhere (usually upper right corner on your computer screen) on your Zoom screen 
you will also see a choice to toggle between “speaker” and “gallery” view. “Speaker 
view” shows the active speaker. “Gallery view” tiles all of the meeting participants. 
 
 
 
 
If you have any further questions or concerns, please call 734-484-4700 or email Clerk 
Karen Lovejoy Roe at klovejoyroe@ytown.org or Deputy Clerk Lisa Stanfield at 
lstanfield@ytown.org. 

mailto:klovejoyroe@ytown.org
mailto:lstanfield@ytown.org


 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 
1. REQUEST TO APPROVE A VARIANCE TO THE PRIVATE ROAD ORDINANCE, 

SECTION 47-28.1, PRIVATE DRIVEWAY DESIGN STANDARDS, SUB-SECTION (A), 
FOR ONE (1) PRIVATE DRIVEWAY TO ACCESS TWO (2) LOTS ZONED R-1, SINGLE 
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WERE ONLY (1) LOT CAN BE ACCESSED BY A PRIVATE 
DRIVEWAY FOR SITES ZONED R-1, SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, LOCATED AT 
5485 MERRITT RD., PARCEL #K-11-30-300-045 AND 5507 MERRITT RD., PARCEL #K-
11-30-400-018 

 
 



 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 



 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 
 

Clerk Lovejoy Roe called the meeting to order at approximately 7:06 p.m. on a 
Zoom Virtual Board meeting. Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated because this meeting is on 
Zoom we would not be able to do The Pledge of Allegiance or a moment of silent 
prayer. Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated Supervisor Stumbo was having problems with her 
zoom connection and would join the meeting soon. 
 
Members Present:  Supervisor Stumbo (arrived late) Clerk Lovejoy Roe,  
                                         Treasurer Doe 
                                         Trustees: Stan Eldridge, Heather Jarrell Roe                                                                          
                                          Monica Ross-Williams, and Jimmie Wilson 
 
Members Absent:  none 
                    
Legal Counsel:   Wm. Douglas Winters 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF THE MAY 19, 2020 REGULAR MEETING 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 
1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR JUNE 2, 2020 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$1,444,469.69 
2. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR JUNE 16, 2020 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$879,790.19 
3. CHOICE HEALTHCARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH EFT FOR MAY 2020 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $34,435.55 
4. CHOICE HEALTHCARE ADMIN FEE FOR MAY 2020 IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$1,183.50 
 

C. MAY 2020 TREASURER’S REPORT 

A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve the Minutes of the May 19, 2020 Regular Meeting, Statements and 
Checks, and the Treasurer’s Report. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated that Mrs. Kaiser had called to say that Carly Willis from 
Residential Services has been so helpful to her with Waste Management issues 
and she said Carly Willis’ customer service is amazing. Clerk Lovejoy Roe said Mrs. 
Kaiser said Waste Management staff has done an excellent job and would like 
the township to continue with their service. Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated Mrs. Kaiser 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 2 
 
said she wondered why we were discussing chickens again when this was 
discussed in the past. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated she had a comment from Marcia Burton who is asking 
that Ypsilanti Township would adopt Ann Arbor or the City of Ypsilanti’s chicken 
ordinance. Clerk Lovejoy Roe said Ms. Burton said it was her right to care for 
herself and her family. 
 
JoAnn McCollum, Township Resident said that racial injustice is being revealed 
every day in this country and it is horrible at the things I have heard and 
witnessed. She said there are people who find racism truly disgusting and are 
trying to do something about it. She said there are people who are using this 
issue to make themselves look good. She said as she was looking through the 
packet for this evening’s board meeting and she saw the memorandum from 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe about a formation of equity committee. She said Clerk Lovejoy 
Roe prevented people of color to run for township clerk. She said Clerk Lovejoy 
Roe made people believe they could trust her. She said people were giving her 
the respect to wait to run for clerk when Ms. Roe would decide not to run again 
but she did not do that. Ms. McCollum said that if Ms. Roe truly believed in 
equity for minorities she would not put herself in a position as a white woman to 
block a person of color in winning a seat on the county commission. Ms. 
McCollum said ethical behavior is doing the right thing even when no one else is 
around to witness it, it is choosing to not lie, cheat, steal or hurt others but it is 
also stepping up to intervene when you witness wrong doing. She said the acts of 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe and Trustee Heather Roe were oppressive just like slavery was 
oppressive. She said they prevented people from freely choosing who they want 
in office.  She said one of the ways slavery was justified was that it was legal just 
like what Clerk Lovejoy Roe and Trustee Heather Roe did was legal. 
 
Lee Tooson, Township Resident said that smiling faces don’t reveal their racism. 
He said he trusted someone to be fair and honest and when this doesn’t happen 
it puts a damper on the community. He said you got three blacks running for a 
commission seat but Ms. Roe you could retire but you would rather throw a 
stumbling block and stop change. He said you wait until the 99th hour so no one 
could apply for your position, locking it down so your daughter-in-law can do it 
alone. He said three blacks now Ms. Roe for commission seat, you put your name 
in the hat, listen to me now sister, we all going to heaven together right, listen to 
your brother, you threw your name in the hat at the 99th hour to run for the 
position and Roe you know sister that your name is out there like wildfire and 
you know you threw the stumbling block and these three black folks pass to keep 
them from getting the position cause you going to run on that white privilege 
that you got sister. He said what you are saying is blacks aren’t qualified to be 
commissioners, you are. He said you are saying no black is qualified to be the 
clerk except your daughter-in-law. He said he wanted to ask his sister a question 
and he wanted her to answer the question, please. Mr. Tooson said with this 
stuff going on Ms. Roe are you a racist, if you are a racist raise your hand sister so 
I can see. He said so keep your hand down but you only know what’s in yourself if 
you are or not. Mr. Tooson said he has a cousin that went to school with you, 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 3 
 
now listen to me I am going to throw an example out to you. He said if a black 
boy, a black man, if he is in charge of building a float at his house but he goes to 
school with white kids but that float is being built at his house and then some 
white kids come over just to check the float out because they go to the same 
school. He said then that black man runs those white kids away, hey Ms. Roe 
would you consider him a racist, come on sister raise your hand. He said come on 
raise your hand, would you consider that black man a racist, I know because it’s 
too close to home and you aint gonna say anything about it. He said but you are 
running for a position that made your life an open book and the job I do it 
entitles me to dig into your book, not just your book, anybody’s book. He said he 
has Ms. Roes’ book wide open and he wants her to be truthful before he starts 
reading and prove to you what I’ve been reading that’s all I’m asking and you tell 
one of your Trustees that have the right to name who you want to be the clerk. 
He said Ms. Roe would you consider that white privilege, you just got that white 
privilege a few days ago and where you got that white privilege you road on the 
coat tails of black folks. He said you know how you were treated so you were 
treating black people like you were treated, you couldn’t even vote you denied to 
vote but the coat tail came on and you jumped on it and now you able to vote. 
He said Ms. Roe don’t you know that’s wrong, would you consider it wrong but 
you just don’t want to admit up to. He said he put a lot of trust in her, I saw you 
run around patting black folks on the back, I saw you hugging black folks, I saw 
you doing all these kinds of things but know it comes to the time in this racist 
moment that we’re dealing with and you want to deny black folks from getting 
the piece of the pie. He said he wonders how Heather got in the house, I want to 
tell you what, sister Stumbo, Ms. Roe and all the rest of the Trustees, I’m gonna 
tell you I looked at the door, she didn’t go through the door she went through the 
window she didn’t go in the back door, she didn’t go in the side door, she didn’t 
go through a hole in the roof, she came from the basement cause she was 
already in the house. He said she walked up the stairs and there she was totally 
wrong and racist. 
 
Emily Sherwood comments were inaudible. She will send her comments to Clerk 
Lovejoy Roes’ email. 
 
Myla Harris, Township Employee, stated that regarding agenda #5 submitted by 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe asking for the development of an equity committee for 
women, veterans and people of color. She said although she is not against the 
idea but she said she questioned the motive and timing. She said she doesn’t 
believe it’s genuine, Clerk Roe was elected in 2008 and she said she questions 
how many people of color has she tried to hire full time in her department. Ms. 
Harris said that she may say all of her employees were from internal postings but 
Clerk Roe had the ultimate opportunity to promote a person of color, a 20 plus 
year veteran in her department in 2015 when she had a vacant Deputy Clerk 
position and Clerk Roe didn’t even choose her. She said instead she chose a 
younger white female with little to no experience from the recreation 
department. Ms. Harris said that Clerk Roe might say in 2016 and 2017 she 
presented the Deputy of Election position to the union for that same black 
employee and yes the union denied it because the position was created as a 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 4 
 
token position to ease her conscience for overlooking her most qualified black 
employee for Deputy Clerk, an employee who dedicated her whole career with 
the Township working in the Clerks’ office. Ms. Harris said Clerk Roe might also 
say that the black employee didn’t live in Ypsilanti Township but according to the 
law it is recommended but not required for an individual in an appointed position 
to live in the Township. Ms. Harris said it’s okay for black people to work for Clerk 
Roe but just not in leadership. She said that same black employee did become 
Deputy of Elections but only because of Trustee Monica Ross-Williams 
information obtained from the Michigan Township Association that says she can 
have two Deputies. She said if Clerk Roe is so concerned about diversity when 
she found out she was running against three black candidates for Washtenaw 
County Commissioner why did she stay in the race. She said again that’s another 
leadership position for a person of color also if she’s for diversity according to a 
court filed affidavit it stated that Clerk Roe indicated that she be able to choose 
her successor, then why did you choose your daughter-in-law and not a black 
male or female candidate.  
 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE  
 
Attorney Winters said he has had the pleasure of working with many Directors in 
the Township when the building was shut down for covid. He said he wanted to 
recognize all the work that has been done by Director Michael Hoffmeister. 
 
Attorney Winters said there were many projects going on in the township. He 
said the first is Burns Park tennis and pickle ball courts. He said this project 
should be completed by July 10, 2020. He said after the Burns Park project is 
completed the Asphalt Company we hired will then begin work on the Grove 
Road pathway Phase II which should be completed within 30 days.  
 
Attorney Winters said they are hoping to get the Skate Park underway this 
summer and the excavators are currently on site moving dirt and expect that to 
be completed by the end of August, 2020.  
 
Attorney Winters stated the Loonfeather Park project that was due to the 
collapse of a storm water pipe will take bids that will be opened tomorrow and 
he hoped the project will begin quickly. 
 
 Attorney Winters stated the Township will be reimbursed $10,000.00 for 
investing additional shaded picnic tables and other site amenities for the 
Appleridge Playground Park. He said regarding the Connecting Communities 
Grant Project that it is being surveyed by OHM and the hope is that it will go out 
for bid this year.  
 
Attorney Winters said regarding Re-Imagine Washtenaw sidewalk project that it 
was being completed and the board has seen the pictures of the sidewalks and 
bus shelter along Washtenaw Avenue in Ypsilanti Township. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 5 
 
 
Attorney Winters said the Ypsilanti Township Board authorized going out for bids 
for a 5-year contract for solid waste recyclables. He said we have received the 
bids and have identified the two top contenders being GFL and Waste 
Management. He said there were questions that were sent to both contractors 
which we need before we make the recommendation. 
 
Attorney Winters stated now that we have a Planning Director, Jason Iacoangeli 
who can help work with neighborhood stabilization and quality of life issues that 
affect the neighborhoods on a regular basis. He said all of us are aware what 
continues to be a problem at Paint Creek Plaza. He said the Plaza owner has 
never installed the correct number of dumpsters and they have not been 
properly maintained. He said when they are not maintained, people will dump 
other things there and that is what has happened there. He said we are going to 
court to require the shopping center to maintain the dumpsters. 
 
Attorney Winters stated that they are going to court to stop trucks from parking 
on the property on Rawsonville Road. 
 
Attorney Winters stated that Kaiser School which is now the Greater Faith 
Transition Church needed a fire suppressive system and it should be installed by 
July 2020. 
 
Attorney Winters stated the Board authorized legal action against Village Grove 
Apartments stemming from an unacceptable number of calls for service which 
included a recent drug, robbery, set-up, shooting where two people were shot. 
 
Michael Radzik, OCS Director stated they had to suspend rental inspections in 
mid-March because of Covid. He said they would resume them around the end of 
August or early September. 
 
Michael Radzik stated that the rat infestation in West Willow has migrated to 
neighborhoods along Ecorse Road especially on the south side of Ecorse Road 
west of Harris Road. He said we are in the process of sending out letters to 
residents giving them advice on what to do. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said our goal is always compliance it is not to go to court. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams is sorry to hear that the vermin problem has spread. She is 
glad the Re-Imagine Washtenaw sidewalk is being completed and the skate park 
is being completed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 6 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. REQUEST TO APPROVE ENGINEERING STANDARDS AND DESIGN 
SPECIFICATIONS ADOPTED AND USED JOINTLY BY YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 
AND YPSILANTI COMMUNITY UTILITY AUTHORITY (TABLED AT THE MAY 19, 
2020 REGULAR MEETING) 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to remove 
from table.  
 
Eldridge…….…………….Yes              Wilson….…………Yes       Ross-Williams.…..Yes 
Jarrell Roe..……………..Yes              Lovejoy Roe…….Yes       Doe……………….….Yes 
Stumbo……………………Yes 
 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe supported by Trustee Eldridge to 
Approve Engineering Standards and Design Specifications Adopted and Used 
Jointly by Ypsilanti Township and Ypsilanti Community Utility Authority (Tabled 
at the May 19, 2020 Regular Meeting).       
 
The motion carried. 
 

2. REQUEST TO APPROVE MINUTES OF THE MAY 5, 2020 REGULAR MEETING 
(TABLED AT THE MAY 19, 2020 REGULAR MEETING) 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe remove 
from table.  
 
Eldridge…….…………….Yes              Wilson….…………Yes       Ross-Williams.…..Yes 
Jarrell Roe..……………..Yes              Lovejoy Roe…….Yes       Doe……………….….Yes 
Stumbo……………………Yes 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Eldridge to 
Approve Minutes of the May 5, 2020 Regular Meeting (Tabled at the May 19, 
2020 Regular Meeting). 
 
Treasurer Doe stated that the verbatim meeting on his part was not done. He 
said 3 or 4 sentences at the end was not recorded. He suggested to have what the 
court reporter wrote to be in the minutes. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated she did this verbatim herself and wondered what 
Treasurer Doe said that wasn’t included and she would go back on the tape and 
add it. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams said the transcript was very detailed and would like them 
added and would concur with Trustee Doe. She said she was called a liar, I was 
accused of doing trickery and telling falsehoods by the Clerk and that is not in 
these minutes but on inside of the verbatim minutes. She said those items should 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 7 
 
be stricken from the record because she said most people know she is not a liar 
or done any trickery because I won every point of my court case. She said she 
wanted it stricken from the recording, the verbatim transcripts because they 
aren’t valid. She said what Trustee Doe said she would like the transcript to be 
included. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated there was two sets of minutes, the last set of minutes 
was 9 pages and asked if Treasurer Doe had looked at those minutes and not the 
verbatim minutes. She said she would have to listen to the tape again, which she 
did when she typed the last set. She said if the board wanted to table them again 
and go back and please tell her what needed to be added or changed she would 
check and make changes if needed. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated that as for what Trustee Ross-Williams wanted taken 
out of the minutes, as what happened tonight there were many things said about 
her under Public Comments that is not true but they go in the minutes. She said 
we don’t get to pick and choose what we put in the minutes, it’s what was said at 
the meeting. She said again she would ask that the board table this and they 
review them and we bring them back at the next meeting. 
 
Treasurer Doe supported Clerk Lovejoy Roe in tabling the minutes. 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to Table 
the May 5, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes. 
 
Eldridge…………….No            Wilson…………………Yes    Jarrell Roe……………No 
Ross-Williams……No            Lovejoy Roe………...Yes    Doe…………………….Yes 
Stumbo………..…..No 
 
The motion was denied. 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
have the transcribed minutes of the May 5, 2020 Board Meeting #5 to be 
recorded as the minutes. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated they asked for the entire meeting to be done verbatim 
so that is what was done. She said she is responsible for the minutes not a court 
recorder. She said she has to put her name on them so they need to be the 
minutes she took. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams said that Trustee Eldridge only said to include the court 
recorder transcription. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated doing the minutes are my responsibility. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams asked if there was a law against putting the transcript in 
the minutes. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 8 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe asked what fund was used to pay for the court recorders’ 
transcribed minutes. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said she paid for them. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe asked if it was out of her supervisor budget or her personal 
funds. Supervisor Stumbo said it was out of her personal account. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said we have a motion and support to include the transcripts 
on item #5 as part of the minutes. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated she would like to call a question. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo asked to call a question to vote on that. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams said yes to Trustee Eldridges’ motion. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said she was calling the question. 
 
Eldridge……………….Yes             Wilson…………….Yes           Ross-Williams………….Yes 
Jarrell Roe……………No              Lovejoy Roe…….No            Doe………………………….Yes 
Stumbo……………….Yes 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated she would not do that. Supervisor Stumbo said if the 
board directs you. 
 
The motion carried.  Trustee Jarrell Roe and Clerk Lovejoy Roe opposed. 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                    

3. 2nd READING OF RESOLUTION 2020-10, PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2020-490, 
AN ORDINANCE PROHIBITING RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA BUSINESSES 
WITHIN YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP AS PROVIDED BY THE RECREATIONAL 
MARIJUANA BALLOT INITIATIVE 1 OF 2018 (1ST READING HELD AT THE MAY 
19, 2020 REGULAR MEETING) 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Wilson to 
Approve 2ND Reading of Resolution 2020-10, Proposed Ordinance 2020-490, an 
Ordinance Prohibiting Recreational Marijuana Businesses within Ypsilanti 
Township as Provided by the Recreational Marijuana Ballot Initiative 1 of 2018 
(1ST Reading Held at the May 19, 2020 Regular Meeting) (see attached).  
 
Eldridge……………….Yes             Wilson…………….Yes           Ross-Williams………….Yes 
Jarrell Roe……………No              Lovejoy Roe…….Yes            Doe………………………..Yes 
Stumbo……………….Yes 
 
The motion carried. 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 9 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. REQUEST TO APPROVE A VARIANCE TO THE PRIVATE ROAD ORDINANCE, 
SECTION 47-29, PRIVATE ROAD DESIGN STANDARDS, SUB-SECTION (L) FOR 
6575 MUNGER ROAD PARCEL K-11-30-300-022, 6501 MUNGER ROAD 
PARCEL K-11-30-300-011 AND 5285 MERRITT ROAD PARCEL K-11-30-300-
033 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe to Approve the Agenda Item as 
Outlined and Added to it the Condition that #3 on the Agenda, the Agreement 
with the Conditions is Approved, and to Approve a Variance to the Private Road 
Ordinance, Section 47-29, Private Road Design Standards, Sub-Section (L) for 
6575 Munger Road Parcel #K-11-30-300-022, 6501 Munger Road Parcel K-11-30-
300-11 and 5285 Merritt Road Parcel K-11-30-300-033. 
 
Jason Iacoangeli, Planning Director stated this is a request from the owner, John 
Sauter asking for a variance to the private road standards. He said there is a legal 
agreement between the township and the property owners that would be attached 
if the Board approves it. 
 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle Wortman, stated that in the first agenda item this matter is 
the applicant wants to extend a private driveway longer than 600 feet. He said the 
next variance would be to use a shared driveway by two parcels. He said in 
November 2019 they included eight conditions outlined in their report. He said at 
that time the applicant did not agree to those conditions. He said the applicant has 
now agreed to those eight conditions and the language has a couple minor changes 
per Attorney Winters. He said we are now recommending that the board grant the 
variances with those eight conditions. He said the only request for the board to act 
on tonight is the two variances with the addition of the attachments. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

2. REQUEST TO APPROVE A VARIANCE TO THE PRIVATE ROAD ORDINANCE, 
SECTION 47-28.1, PRIVATE DRIVEWAY DESIGN STANDARDS, SUB-SECTION 
(A), FOR 5287 MERRITT ROAD PARCEL K-11-30-300-032 AND 5285 MERRITT 
ROAD PARCEL K-11-30-300-033 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Jarrell Roe, supported by Clerk Lovejoy Roe to 
Approve a Variance to the Private Road Ordinance, Section 47-28.1, Private 
Driveway Design Standards, Sub-Section (A), for 5287 Merritt Road Parcel K-11-
30-300-032 and 5285 Merritt Road Parcel K-11-30-300-033. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. REQUEST TO APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO 
PRIVATE ROAD AND DRIVEWAY VARIANCE APPROVAL BETWEEN YPSILANTI 
TOWNSHIP AND JOHN SAUTER AND JEFF AND KIMBERLY BULLOCK 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 10 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
Approve Agreement with Conditions Attached to Private Road and Driveway 
Variance Approval Between Ypsilanti Township and John Sauter and Jeff and 
Kimberly Bullock. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. 1ST READING OF RESOLUTION 2020-13, PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2020-491, 
AMENDING THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI’S CODE OF 
ORDINANCES TO CLARIFY THE PROCEDURE FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF 
“HOUSES OF WORSHIP” IN CONFORMITY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF 
THE RELIGIOUS LAND USE AND INSTITUTIONALIZED PERSONS ACT 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve 1st Reading of Resolution 2020-13, Proposed Ordinance 2020-491, 
Amending the Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s Code of Ordinances to Clarify the 
Procedure for the Establishment of “Houses of Worship” in Conformity with the 
Requirements of the Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act (see 
attached). 
 
Jason Iacoangeli, Planning Director stated the religious land use and 
institutionalized persons act is a federal law that requires community zoning 
ordinances govern houses of worship the same as they do secular uses. He said 
that our Ordinance treated other secular uses in the township ordinance that 
were afforded more privileges than some houses of worship. He said houses of 
worship must be treated no better or no worse than uses that are of a secular 
nature. 
 
Eldridge……………….Yes             Wilson…………….Yes           Ross-Williams………….Yes 
Jarrell Roe…..……….Yes             Lovejoy Roe…….Yes           Doe……….………………..Yes 
Stumbo…………….….Yes 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

5. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO DEVELOP AN YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP EQUITY 
COMMITTEE FOR THE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING STRATEGIES TO CHANGE 
THE CULTURE OF TOWNSHIP GOVERNMENT TO ELEVATE THE QUALITY OF 
LIFE OF WOMEN, VETERANS AND PEOPLE OF COLOR IN OUR COMMUNITY 
AND TO AUTHORIZE THE HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT TO SEEK A 
SPECIALIST IN OUR AREA TO ASSIST IN FACILITATING THE NEEDS OF THE 
EQUITY COMMITTEE 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve the Request Authorization to Develop an Ypsilanti Township Equity 
Committee for the Purpose of Developing Strategies to Change the Culture of 
Township Government to Elevate the Quality of Life of Women, Veterans and 
People of Color in our Community and to Authorize the Human Resources 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 11 
 
Department to Seek a Specialist in our area to Assist in Facilitating the Needs of 
the Equity Committee. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated that with what was going on around the nation, like many 
of you we’ve taken a look at yourself and wondered what we could do in order to 
make our world a better place and fairer to people of color. She said the history of 
our country is not a pretty one and it’s one that many of us have looked at ways of 
what we can do. Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated that she knows both her and Supervisor 
Stumbo have witnessed the inequity especially in the eastern part of Washtenaw 
County. She said they have fought for equity for many years and have been 
mistreated. She said she thought if we had more research we could push the 
County and other organizations to help serve our community better.  
 
Michael Richardson, Township Resident, said he appreciates Clerk Lovejoy Roe but 
as far as the verbiage it is ok to say Black people and not people of color. He said 
that’s why it says Black Lives Matter and not Colored People Matter. He said he 
agrees with Clerk Lovejoy Roe 1000% and he would provide any assistance or 
sentiment he could. He said he’s behind the movement and as far as education he 
asked to please reach out to the residents. He said he was sure they are willing to 
educate and speak on the black experience. 
 
JoAnn McCollum, Township Resident said she questions the timing of this being 
brought forward by Clerk Lovejoy Roe. She said she thinks Clerk Roe has hindered 
not helped black people. She said she doesn’t think this is sincere. 
 
Emily Sherwood (inaudible) 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams said the County went through this creating their equity 
policy and they hosted a series of public meetings. She read the County’s equity 
policy. She said she considers herself to be African American. She said some people 
say that they are black but she said she is African American and she said she was 
proud of it. She said she is surprised by the timing. 
 
Trustee Wilson said that he agrees with the committee but thinks it should be in a 
work session. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe thanked Michael Richardson. She said the question is why now 
but she said with what is happening with the Black Lives Matter is why not now. 
She said sometimes what the County suggests and what comes out is a lot of data 
and she said she would like to see ours to be employee and resident driven 
because those ideas will come from what it is like in our Township directly. 
 
Denise Kirchoff, Township Resident said she was running for Washtenaw County 
Commissioner for the 5th District. She said she was not surprised because this was 
nothing unusual. She said Clerk Lovejoy Roe was the leader in affirmative inclusion. 
She said if you don’t know what affirmative inclusion is, its’ afforded to people who 
are not black. She said these people give their family extra help and extra 
advantage in getting jobs and making sure their community and their friends get 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 12 
 
the advantage and everyone else is excluded. She said she thinks Clerk Lovejoy Roe 
heard a lot of resistance because when you have been the leader of affirmative 
inclusion of your personal group of people, who reflect you for 30 years and you 
come out when the country is in the grip of a pandemic and a racial divide 
worldwide. She said intolerance and inclusion will no longer be tolerated. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams said that when she was on the Park Commission they didn’t 
work on equity they did work on our parks structures and updates for our parks. 
She said they addressed updates in the West Willow, Appleridge, and Bud and 
Blossom. She said they then looked at all the parks and decided on what needed to 
be updated. She said she thanked Michael Hoffmeister in following through with 
things they decided in 2012 & 2013 were now being followed. She said she hoped 
whatever this may be it would address privilege. She said privilege is a point where 
inequities lie. She said individuals who believe that other individuals cannot be in 
certain positions whether that is inside our township, as it relates to hiring, as it 
relates to housing, or as it relates to relations. She said we would need discussions 
being moving forward with this. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said she tried to educate herself before the board meeting. She 
said she contacted the Equity Officer in Washtenaw County just to help her try and 
understand exactly and she said she knows Clerk Roe just threw it out there, her 
words not mine, but we really should have discussed this in a work session and had 
a more meaningful discussion. She said we should bring in people who have 
experience in this area. She said she would not want to offend anyone on purpose 
so I’m not informed enough if we should you say African American that’s what 
Monica likes and Mr. Richardson likes to be called black. She said that is the kind of 
things you learn by going through conversations and training. She said she thinks 
it’s a good idea, we should look into this, and she said she definitely would support 
it but we need to discuss it with a professional and see what the budget would be. 
She said it took five years for Washtenaw County to get an Equity office. She said it 
took 18 months to go out to the public. She said it’s really important that when you 
do it you need to really do it right and professionally. She said we need someone to 
lead that. She said I don’t believe anyone on our Board or in our Township is 
trained or educated to lead that kind of committee. She said having a person to 
help is clearly the right thing to do. She said the HR Director, Karen Wallin asked 
her about it because she wondered what she could do to try and understand it. She 
said it’s really a deep, deep conversation with true goals that are measured. She 
said she isn’t slamming the County but I’m not sure how well they are doing 
because they never measure it. She said as far as equity, the biggest issue I see is 
the YMCA. She said she thinks that it will help more than anything we can do right 
now. She said everyone has to make that a goal, right! Supervisor Stumbo said that 
helps with the disparity, she said it connects people. She said the largest problem 
we have is we can’t connect the needs with all the services. She said she gets asked 
all the time, who should they call for this. She said at one time it was suggested 
that we get more Social Workers at the County level to help. She said all of that 
could be discussed as part of that. She said we could use what the County has.  She 
said they have adopted some policies and we should look and see. She said it is a 
large order just like our Master Plan that took 18 months and we spent 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 13 
 
$160,000.00 on. She said we had professionals leading us and we had a lot of 
citizen engagement. Supervisor Stumbo said to we should not do this now on a 
zoom meeting but she said it should be discussed during a work session. She said 
she stands with the Black community and Black Lives Matter. 
 
Mr. Tooson, Township Resident said that its’ needed but it doesn’t need to be 
rushed into. Mr. Tooson said he would like to correct this thing about African 
American and Black. He said he is sick and tired of these black folks talking about 
African American when they do not really know what it means. He said to be an 
African American you have to be born in Africa, come over to America and go 
through the process of becoming an American. He said you don’t hear white 
people calling themselves European Americans because they are sure of who they 
are. He said they white they are proud to be white. He said you’re proud to be 
black I’m no African American. He said he was born here, his folks were born here. 
He said they did not have to go through the process of becoming an American. He 
said there are some African Americans that have privilege. He said they are white 
people who were born in South Africa and have become American Citizens so they 
are African American but sometime they become suppressors. He said you black 
folks that call yourself African American that’s what Jesse Jackson wanted you to 
be called because he was tired of being called Negro. He said forget that mess 
sister Stumbo African American because if they didn’t go through the process they 
are a stone bone Black American. 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Wilson to have 
this on a Work Session Agenda to Discuss Equity in the Township. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION FOR THE TOWNSHIP BOARD TO REQUEST THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION TO ACT ON THE MOTION APPROVING 
RESOLUTION 2017-05, ORDINANCE 2017-473 TO REVISIT THE BACKYARD 
CHICKEN ORDINANCE LANGUAGE 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve the Request for the Planning Commission to Act on the Motion 
Approving Resolution 2017-05, Ordinance 2017-473 to Revisit the Backyard 
Chicken Ordinance Language. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe stated this came about through a next door conversation that 
she was contacted by some residents regarding our chicken ordinance. She said 
this came about with the pandemic and wanting to feed families safely. She said 
she looked back on our board meeting minutes from 2017 and it stated we would 
revisit it.  She said we also have language in our Master Plan but it is vague. She 
said it’s about our healthy neighborhood programs and she said having chickens 
could be part of that. She said if we want to make change on this issue the way to 
do it would be with this ordinance. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo asked if the Planning Commission discussed this. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 14 
 
 
Jason Iacoangeli stated the Planning Commission did discuss this at two meeting in 
November and December of 2016 before they made a resolution in 2017. He said 
they reduced the amount of acreage to one acre parcels. He said the one acre lots 
could not be in subdivisions. He said he spoke with the Supervisor today about it 
and if the board wants the planning department to bring this back up to the 
planning commission and have another discussion about it he said he would. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated that we had said we would look over the next year at 
what other communities have done and revisited it but we have not done that. She 
said when she started getting emails about it that’s why this was bought up again. 
She said and all this Request is would be to follow through with what we said we 
would do.  She said that with Covid I think that people were concerned about the 
contamination that was being reported and having your own eggs is a healthy, 
inexpensive source of protein to feed a family. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated one of the concerns was with 50” lots. She said Ms. 
Kaiser said in the previous minutes that one subdivision had 50” lots and that 
would be very close together. She said as she remembers some residents came to 
the meeting who live in subdivisions with 50”or less lots and they had concerns 
with noise of the chickens and some concerns with some sort of decanter in order 
to maintain the chickens, she said she assumed at night. She said she didn’t know if 
the planning committee even addressed but she said she also remembered that 
there was to be some sort of committee to look at how the small subdivisions, 50” 
or less could even be adoptable to chickens. She said she feels first things first, she 
said she didn’t know if those residents who sent emails were even updated with 
what has happened. She said if we are going to open this up again we need to 
include those residents on 50” lots and how close those animals would be to their 
fellow neighbors. She said also odor was another concern. She said she hoped 
those residents could be included and not excluded. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said the entire board voted unanimously on March 21, 2017 to 
request the planning commission to review the language at the beginning of 2018 
and host public meetings for smaller lots and also request the planning consultants 
to research other municipalities’ ordinances on this subject and report on problems 
they have experienced. She said what is on the agenda is just asking for us to 
follow up on that. 
 
Richard Roe, Township Resident said this was discussed in 2016 about different size 
lots and a lot of the issues that have been brought up are handled under multiple 
other ordinances such as noise, odor and cover animals such as dogs. He said these 
other ordinances would also cover hens. He said some of the other animals can be 
more noisy and stinky than hens. He said before we realized there was an 
ordinance against them we had them and our backyard neighbors had no idea we 
had them. He said point of clarification no one has a 50” lot it’s a 50’ lot. He said it 
would be nice to see this move forward since it was neglected by the board and the 
planning commission for two years now. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 15 
 
Trustee Wilson said he agreed with Mr. Richard Roe and said there has been a lot 
of renewed discussion about this topic. He said a lot of residents have educated 
him as having dogs having some of the same issues as chickens. He said since it was 
in the original motion we do have an obligation to do what we said we would do 
which is revisit it. He said he wasn’t sure if Mr. Iacoangeli and the planning 
commission would be the one to send out a survey to residents in the township but 
he said since some are not on social media this may be a way to hear from more 
residents. He said this would be in addition to the public meetings. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said that Jason Iacoangeli said he would bring this back to the 
planning commission. Mr. Iacoangeli said they would work on it and bring it back to 
the board. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated she knows people both for and against chickens. She 
said maybe there is more information regarding them since 2017.  
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said the City of Ann Arbor changed the city ordinance to allow 
them but you had to get permission to have them. She said she read recently that 
they no longer need to get permission to have chickens. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated it was already with the Planning Commission so we 
would just let them proceed. Clerk Lovejoy Roe and Trustee Jarrell Roe agreed. 
 

7. RESOLUTION 2020-15, RESOLUTION FOR GRANT APPLICATION WITH THE 
U.S. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION (EDA) PUBLIC WORKS 
AND ECONOMIC ADJUSTMENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Resolution 2020-16, Resolution for Grant Application with U.S. 
Economic Development Administration (EDA) Public Works and Economic 
Adjustment Assistance Program (see attached). 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams asked if this will be available for residents. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated there will be meetings on this if you want to ask more 
questions on this. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

8. REQUEST TO WAIVE THE FINANCIAL POLICY AND APPROVE THE PURCHASE 
OF BS&A ONLINE SERVICES FOR THE BS&A BUILDING SOFTWARE FROM 
SINGLE SOURCE PROVIDER BS&A IN THE AMOUNT OF $12,650.00 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #249-249-000-801-000 AND TO AMEND THE 
BUILDING DEPARTMENT FEE SCHEDULE TO ADD $2.00 TECHNOLOGY FEE 
TO BE APPLIED TO ONLINE APPLICATION SUBMITTALS FOR COST RECOVERY 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to Request 
to Waive the Financial Policy and Approve the Purchase of BS&A Online Services 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 16 
 
for the BS&S Building Software from Single Source Provider BS&A in the Amount 
of $12,650.00 Budgeted in Line Item #249-249-000-801-000 and to Amend the 
Building Department Fee Schedule to add $2.00 Technology Fee to be Applied to 
Online Application Submittals for Cost Recovery. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said she fully supported this but would suggest not to charge the 
$2.00 technology fee.  
 
Michael Radzik, OCS Director said he was sure how much staff time it would save 
but BSA is going to charge Ypsilanti Township $2.00 which could be $20,000.00 a 
year. He said BSA suggested that we pass the $2.00 on to the residents.   
 
Treasurer Doe said that he relates it back to when they were taking credit cards 
and they were being charged by the credit card company. He said we went with 
another server where the resident must pay 3% on top of the charge and it has 
worked out very well. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated this will help our residents tremendously when they are 
able to do this on line. 
 
Michael Radzik stated this will enable anyone who does business with OCS the 
ability to pay their bill on line. 
 
The motion carried. Clerk Lovejoy Roe opposed. 
 

9. REQUEST TO APPROVE 2020 L-4029 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve the Request to Approve 2020 L-4029 (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

10. BUDGET AMENDMENT #7 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
Approve Budget Amendment #7 (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 
 

1. REQUEST TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL AND DESIGNATE TRENDSET AS THE 
TOWNSHIP’S PREFERRED NETWORK CABLE INSTALLER AND TO AUTHORIZE 
FORGOING THE BID REQUIREMENTS FOR NETWORK CABLING JOBS UNDER 
$7,500.00  

 
A motion was made Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to Accept the 
Proposal and Designate Trendset as the Township’s Preferred Network Cable 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 17 
 
Installer and to Authorize Forgoing the Bid Requirements for Network Cabling 
Jobs Under $7,500.00. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
BOARD MEMBER UPDATES 
 
Trustee Eldridge stated last week he tried to get an item put on the agenda 
tonight however he was advised by the Clerk that the request he made was 
illegal. He said he was told that it couldn’t go on the agenda because it didn’t 
conform to the Michigan Election Law Act 116 1954. He said the section stated 
was 168.373. He said he read it and there may to a way to interrupt that 
differently but I’ll be quick in this reading. He said we all know it has been a 
unique time in the township for the past two months as it relates to the last filing 
deadline and all that has gone on with that issue. He sent his intent is not to 
rehash that in what has previously been discussed on the topic but to look 
forward to the up-coming primary election in August and the subsequent general 
election in November of 2020. He said he hopes that they will be conducted 
smoothly and in the most transparent manner possible and one that would 
provide for our residents and community to have confidence in everything 
related to the election process is done in a way will speak to fairness, open and 
total transparency. He said it’s not his intent to speak ill of anyone but simply to 
offer a suggestion that might help our residents in the community during this 
time. He said we know about the recent controversies regarding the deadline, we 
know about the actions on May 5, 2020 that we took. He said the local 
Democratic Party offered their own resolution on that same issue, and we are all 
aware at least on this board on sworn affidavits that indicated that the Clerk 
stated to others that she could choose the successor to her position. He said in 
July of 2017 according to the meeting minutes we first began to discuss a new 
requested position of an Election Specialist in the Clerks’ Office. He said while the 
request came from the Human Resources Department that Official indicated the 
request came from the Clerks’ Office and after a great deal of discussion it was 
tabled and brought back to our board in October 2017 where it was eventually 
referred to our Human Resource Office so they could begin working with our 
local AFSCME union to find a common ground to create this position. He said in 
August of 2018 this current board approved a brand new position within the 
Clerks’ Office as Deputy of Elections along with a new salary structure for that 
position. He said that employee who is currently in the position is a long time 
employee of the township and based on what I know this evening she has the 
ultimate respect and confidence not only by her fellow employees and every one 
of the board members and the community at large. He said she is extremely 
skilled person in her job and I have the utmost confidence in her ability to 
undertake all the attributes of an election.  He said here we are 18 months after 
that position was approved and I feel it is time we utilize that position to its’ 
fullest capacity for a variety of reasons. He said he reviewed the job description 
for the position and I saw that the person who is currently holding that position is 
asked to perform a variety of tasks. He said he won’t read them all but its’ 
election administration, the processing and recording of absentee ballots 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 18 
 
including the mailing of those ballots, to update master voter files, voter 
registration documentation and maintenance, to recruit and train set up staff, to 
recruit, train and assign election inspectors while also confirming their 
certification to work and the payments made to them, to schedule and prepare 
election commission meetings. He said Trustee Ross-Williams had a problem with 
this last week. He added handling the accuracy of all the testing of equipment, 
and ordering supplies, and among other things. He said the Clerk stated she 
needed this position and that this position’s sole responsibility is the managing of 
elections along with the Deputy Clerk. He said he is asking the Clerk and our 
Board to allow the Deputy of Elections to oversee and run this election, if she 
needs assistance from the Clerk she is certainly there. He said he would like the 
Deputy of Elections to oversee all aspects of the 2020 Primary and General 
elections. He said that people would know that elections in Ypsilanti Township 
are open, transparent done with the utmost integrity and honesty. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated if the item can be moved she would second it. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said everything that Trustee Eldridge read are being done in 
our office everyday by the Deputy of Elections. She said but as far as the person 
who is responsible legally, statutorily that would be me. She said she didn’t know 
if you were asking me to give up my statutory responsibilities because that is 
how I took what you were asking. She said in the motion she read it stated for 
her not to be involved in the elections and for the Deputy of Elections to be 
responsible and that cannot happen under the law. She said if her department 
breaks the law it would be her breaking the law. She said we work together as a 
team. She said you have been on the board for lots of years and asked Trustee 
Eldridge to not frame this as pure politics. She said its’ really important to protect 
the democratic process in Ypsilanti Township. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said Karen, you just put two items on the agenda and you had 
no discussion with anybody about it. She said statutorily you’re responsible for 
the accounting too but we have an Accounting Director who performs those 
functions. She said she is statutorily for Assessing but we have an Assessing 
Director that performs those functions. Clerk Lovejoy Roe said those are allowed 
under the law. Supervisor Stumbo said that what Stan was saying was to let the 
Director of Elections run the Elections. She said we are not proposing to take the 
statutory duties away, it is just to have the Director of Election to manage the 
election. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated that everything that is in that job description is being 
done. 
 
JoAnn McCollum, Township Resident said she would want the person who was 
hired to do it. She said she would do it for the people. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said the job description states she works directly under me and 
the Deputy Clerk.  She said just like what was said about her by Mr. Tooson he 
doesn’t really know her or he would not have said what he did about me. She 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 19 
 
said that as far as what Myla Harris said about the Deputy of Elections position 
she reported that Myla never supported that position and the only reason that it 
was approved was because a white man, Ron Wittenberg was the new chief 
steward and he fought for that position. 
  
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said Critical Action is Necessary to Protect the Democratic 
Process of Voting in Ypsilanti Township. She said this is a request by myself the 
Clerk of Ypsilanti Township, who is statutorily, under election law the official 
responsible for all aspects of insuring that elections are properly conducted in 
Ypsilanti Township. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said she respectfully requests that all elected officials that have 
questions or requests regarding the Clerk’s office to please make those requests 
to her in person, via email or by telephone. She said please do not make requests 
directly to the staff of the Clerk’s department.  
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said it is important to protect the employees who are working 
to meet deadlines and fulfill their responsibilities.  She said it is her sole 
responsibility to supervise the Clerks Department staff.  She said employees have 
the right to take instructions from one supervisor and that is her, the Clerk.   
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said her staff is very uncomfortable with the recent actions 
that have involved them.  She said those actions are:  
 

1) The recent filing of the lawsuit by Monica Ross Williams in Washtenaw 
County Circuit Court, Case No. 20-000451-CZ where in the Supplemental 
Brief dated May 25, 2020 Monica Ross Williams alleges that two Township 
employees of the Clerks department, were guilty of a crime by falsely 
signing and filing Monica Ross Williams’ Affidavit of Identity.  The truth is 
that Monica Ross Williams in her statement to the court when she accused 
two employees of signing and filing her Affidavit with a false date did not 
tell the truth.  All the written documentation showed this to be false yet it 
was presented to the court as truth. If true it would have been a crime 
committed by these two dedicated employees.  
 

2) The recent in person invitation by Monica Ross Williams, followed up by an 
email invitation to an employee of the Clerk’s Department to a political 
zoom meeting where myself, the Clerk and the direct supervisor of this 
employee and the Clerks department was slandered and accused of 
election law violations as a part of a campaign meeting made this 
employee and others uncomfortable. Monica Ross Williams in person 
invite and email invite to a township employee of a campaign promotion 
directly violated Board adopted Township Policy: Ypsilanti Township’s 
Political Intimidation and Harassment Policy, approved August 15, 1995; 
page 125 of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Policies & Procedures 
Manual.  Monica Ross-Williams’ email read……”You are receiving this email 
due to the Monica Ross-Williams engaging in contact with you at a local 
political event…”.   The Political Intimidation and Harassment Policy states, 
“…No employees or elected official, nor any person acting on their behalf, 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 20 
 

shall initiate a request to any other employee, subordinate to that 
employee or official, to engage in any political activity on behalf of any 
candidate, party, committee, organization, agency, person, or ballot 
question, …”.   
 

3) The continuous public slandering of the work conducted by the employees 
responsible for elections is seen as intimidation, bullying and a threat to 
their duty to perform their job functions and creates a hostile work 
environment for township employees.  

 
4) The recent facebook videos and numerous postings by Monica Ross-

Williams speaking specifically by name about a staff member of the Clerk’s 
office that adversely affects that employee is in direct violation of the 
Social Media Policy adopted by the Township Board on April 16, 2019. The 
policy states “…Any on-line conduct that adversely affects an employee, 
Township Board member, Township residents or the Township’s business 
interests may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination 
of employment….”.   
 

Clerk Lovejoy Roe said as those of us in the political arena are well aware 
anything goes in politics and that she personally did not condone or participate in 
campaigning that involves false information but fully recognize it is not illegal to 
lie and many candidates in the past and now do engage in this behavior. She 
stated that it is unbelievable by those outside of the world of politics that 
candidates sometimes participate like now, in devious acts during campaigns.  
She said that in her almost 32 years of being a part of this world she had many 
such incidents,  thrown at her by several candidates, orchestrated for her political 
defeat and bullying such as fire-bombing  her mailbox, picketing her home for a 
newspaper photo,  an alleged false 911 call reporting an intruder in her home, so 
that police arrive at her home at 3AM with no lights or sirens on but with guns 
pulled, of course when her husband was out of town and she was home with her 
5 children, her hardline phone has been tampered with and on two separate 
occasions during two different campaigns, she was investigated with detectives 
showing up at her workplace in regards to felony investigations, and again like 
now, those allegations made the headlines of the newspaper only to have articles 
run, of course, after the election that exonerated  her of all the false allegations.  
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said that as she had said all is fair game in the campaign.  
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said the recent rulings by both the Appeals Court and the 
Michigan Supreme Court upheld the decision she made as was recommended to 
her by both independent legal counsel specializing in Election Law and the 
Secretary of State, Bureau of Elections counsel.  She reported that the Appeals 
Court and the Michigan Supreme Court ruled that her validation of the three 
Affidavits of Identify resulting in her placing the three candidate’s names on the 
ballot was in fact the correct legal decision. She said It is a violation of the 
Township’s Social Media Policy for Monica Ross-Williams to continue to state 
that members of the Clerk’s staff and herself violated the law by approving 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 21 
 
Monica’s Affidavit of Identify as correct and placing her name on the ballot for 
Treasurer and Monica continues to make this statement even after the Supreme 
Court upheld her decision as legal. Clerk Lovejoy Roe said that only in Monica’s 
legal documents filed in Circuit Court did Monica admit for the first time that she 
tried to withdraw from being a candidate for Treasurer after the legal withdrawal 
deadline and did so with the wrong filing official. Clerk Lovejoy Roe said that 
therefore Monica had to stay on the ballot as Treasurer. She also reported that 
Monica did not meet the law to remove her name from the ballot in time and 
then she sued the County Clerk to have her name removed from the ballot.  Clerk 
Lovejoy Roe stated that she did not take Monica’s name off of the ballot as she 
continues to allege on her facebook postings. Clerk Lovejoy Roe said that suing to 
take her name off the ballot was not an ethical thing to do as her affidavit was 
not flawed as the highest Court of Michigan has ruled.  
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said the recent posts on facebook by Trustee Ross Williams not 
only violated the Township Social Media policy but were further troubling 
because it is not fair game to behave in a manner that is a detriment to the 
democratic voting process and in a way that adversely affects Township 
employees. She said that the current allegations by Monica Ross Williams that 
the office of the Clerk is mishandling and not legally running elections is not fair 
game. Monica Ross William’s repeated statements regarding elections dishonors 
and shames the thousands of election inspectors who have dedicated themselves 
to fair elections year after year.  Clerk Lovejoy Roe said the accusations that 
elections have not been conducted properly destroys the morale of the full time 
employees who work so very hard in stressful situations and take the work of 
conducting fair elections seriously. She further stated that the election inspectors 
and the employees do not deserve it, it is wrong and she respectfully asked that 
to stop. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said to her knowledge there has never been an audit by the 
Bureau of Elections of the Secretary of State’s office or the County Clerk’s office 
that has not been passed by the Clerk’s Department employees currently or ever 
in the past.  She said to date our employees in the Clerk’s Department, under her 
leadership have conducted 29 elections over 12 years with every election being 
externally audited and canvassed with perfect results.  She said we have a great 
team and work together and she was proud to work with such great employees 
who are good people. She said voter participation is crucial to the survival of our 
Democracy. She said that false statements without merit lead to distrust in our 
system of elections and suppresses voter turnout.   She shared that here is 
already doubt about the importance of voting, questioning does it really matter 
who votes and especially if elections are manipulated as Monica Ross Williams 
continues to insinuate. She said that President Trump through his continuous 
tweets has done more on the national scene to discredit the voting process, to 
accuse the Michigan Secretary of State of breaking the law, to fight against 
absentee voting and to talk about dead people voting and the list goes on.  She 
said Monica Ross-Williams is doing the same as President Trump with her 
continuous facebook postings and zoom meetings undermining the election 
process. She said please promote voting, stop making unsubstantiated claims 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 22 
 
about voting irregularities and a need for audits.  She said that If you have never 
worked an election it is hard to understand that the process is a very legal 
process that the election inspectors and the employees are trained and do their 
jobs of upholding the law every day and in every election and that every election 
is audited.   
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said she respectfully asks that we all do what we can to 
encourage voting, to support absentee voting and to encourage our residents to 
take part in working elections.  She said that so many have given the ultimate 
sacrifice, including her family, to allow us to live in the greatest nation on earth 
and to be able to vote without the fear of death or intimidation. She stated, let’s 
all do our part to encourage everyone to do their part and vote!  
 
Trustee Ross Williams said she needs to give her Board Member update. She said 
she filed for office on December 16, 2019. She said that set inside the Clerks’ 
Office until I found out by a call from a meeting that I was not at that I had a 
different date issue. She said that is the facts. She said now moving forward I 
have never accused any employee of the office. She said the Clerk as she said 
many times is responsible for the running of her office. She said I still don’t know 
why she could not find my issue, it was not just mine it was others. She also 
stated the Supreme Court decided a merit on my case, that is impossible, my case 
was never appealed. She said the Clerk in my case was dismissed, that is Karen 
Lovejoy Roe. She said the Washtenaw County Elections Commission and the 
Washtenaw County Clerk who were the sole parties of my case did not appeal 
the case and neither did I. She said both the Secretary of State and the Attorney 
General agreed that the other case needed to heard before the Supreme Court. 
She said the Secretary of State believed her authority was being ruined, why 
because she prescribes the forms and she has the right to do so. She said she is 
not here to argue with the Secretary of State she did that. She said as for the 
allegation, I’m about sick and tired of the slander from the clerk of this township 
as for the allegation that I have said anything in regards to employees in her 
office. She said that is just a lie and she said she is tired of it. She said her issues is 
with the clerk of the office. She said she thinks the employees of the office do a 
great job but she said they might be limited by the clerk who do not allow them 
to do the extent of their job that they would like to do. She said as for a zoom 
meeting, she said the last time she remembers there is a right of free speech in 
this country and I am a member of the Election Commission and she said she has 
the right to speak as a member of the Election Commission. She said it is really 
sad that this is where we are. She said it is really sad that she continues to be 
slandered by this clerk. She said it is really sad that she was called a liar, accused 
of trickery, and telling falsehoods on a case that she said she won and her 
attorney won, she said we won. She said the question she has for the clerk, which 
is a question she has had the whole time, is how is it that she cannot see what 
was able to be told to the County Clerk and unfortunately that was told at a 
meeting that she said she was not at, how was she not able to see that. She said 
isn’t that her job as clerk to review these items so she said if we are going to go 
there she said she was going to go with the following, she said she totally 
believes that the Clerk did review the items, she said she totally believes that the 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 23 
 
Clerk basically had every intention on the 24th of basically pulling me out of the 
race that I was formally at, and she said she totally believes that the reason she 
did not is because of an item I found on the 24th which happens to be her 
daughter-in-laws. She said if there is a question about the 4:02, she said the 4:02 
if she has it right is it was sent to the wrong office. She said she has never denied 
that I tried to withdraw the 4:02 but then it was sent to the wrong office. She 
said that Clerk Roe at 8:00pm said she could not see it that was sent from the 
county office because of an IT issue. She said an IT issue from everything that I 
have heard was not true. She said it was also able to be seen by another party 
that is on our elected board that saw it to. Trustee Ross-Williams said that she 
doesn’t think that the next election should be debated here but she said she is 
not going to continue to allow the Clerk to continue to slander and degrade her 
name on something that she said she has won. She said that is the bottom line. 
She said she is not going to allow her to slander and degrade her name as it 
relates to me saying things, supposedly about employees that I did not say. She 
said her problems are with her and her duties and her ability as a clerk. She said 
it is about you, Karen Lovejoy Roe, it has never been about your employees. She 
said she did not know until April 25th at 9:25am that there was a problem with 
her paperwork that you should have known because she said all you had to do is 
look at it. She said from that time forward her problem has been with her so 
please don’t sit her and lie and say that I have a problem or any issue with any 
employees in her office. She said that is not correct the issue is with you and she 
said she will not be slandered again at another board meeting. 
 
Trustee Wilson said he votes on the facts that are in front of him similar to how 
he voted on May 5, 2020. He said he had what he believed to be the facts in front 
of him then and today because of the facts in front of him we cannot take the 
statutory rights away from the Clerk Office. He said he believes that to be illegal,  
he said that was his opinion, he said he is not an attorney but he said he does feel 
we can’t take that away from Clerk Lovejoy Roe. He said so he will be voting no 
to this motion because he didn’t think we could legally take her statutory rights 
away from her being responsible for the elections. He said we can hope that she 
continues to let the Deputy of Elections to run the elections but he said he 
doesn’t think we can take her rights away. 
 
Trustee Eldridge stated he is not asking to take statutory rights away and he said 
he apologizes if that is how it came across. He said he is looking a page 13 of the 
minutes from July 18, 2017 where the Clerk mentions that other Townships of 
our size have at least one staff person whose sole responsibility is to manage 
elections. He said all he is asking is to allow our Deputy of Elections to manage 
and run the elections with the oversight provided by the Clerk. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe asked what made Trustee Eldridge think that we are not doing 
that because that is exactly what we are doing. 
 
Trustee Eldridge said that what has been said tonight there is an issue and he 
thinks if we let the Deputy Specialist run this, manage it with your oversight to 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE JUNE 16, 2020 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 24 
 
give her the free range to run the election. He said and if you vote no as a board I 
asked and I didn’t get it. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said she was confused and maybe someone can read the 
motion back. She said the Deputy of Elections always does what her job 
description states. She said she may answer the phone or go to the counter but 
she works the 365 days doing election work. She said it is a team effort different 
people do different things but she does exactly what’s in that job description 
overseen by herself and the Deputy Clerk.  
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to call 
to question. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, there was no support, to designate 
Ypsilanti Township Deputy of Elections to Oversee and Manage all Aspects of the 
August 2020 Primary and the November 2020 General Elections under Guidance 
if needed from the Clerk.  
 
Ross-Williams..……………...Yes          Doe………………….Yes   Eldridge………………….Yes 
Jarrell Roe………………………No          Wilson……………..No     Lovejoy Roe……………No 
Stumbo………….not available on zoom 
 
The motion tied and therefore was denied. 
 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Jarrell Roe, supported by Trustee Wilson to 
Adjourn. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 10:24 PM.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

RESOLUTION 2020-10 
(In Reference to Ordinance 2020 - 490) 

 
Prohibition of Recreational 
Marijuana Establishments 

 
 Whereas, the Michigan Legislature adopted the 2018 Michigan Regulation and 

Taxation of Marijuana Act; and 

 Whereas, the 2018 Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marijuana Act 

governs recreational marijuana; and 

 Whereas, prior to the approval of the 2018 Michigan Regulation and Taxation 

of Marijuana Act Michigan voters and the Michigan legislature approved the Michigan 

Medical Marijuana Act, Initiated Law 1 of 2008 legalizing medical marijuana and the 

Michigan Medical Marijuana Facilities Licensing Act of 2016; and 

 Whereas, proposed Township Ordinance 2020-490 entitled Prohibition of 

Recreational Marijuana Establishments applies to recreational marijuana 

businesses pursuant to the 2018 Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marijuana 

Act; and 

 Whereas, proposed Township Ordinance 2020-490 does not affect medical 

marijuana patients’ rights or medical marijuana caregivers’ rights under the 2008 

Medical Marijuana Ballot Initiative, to use and grow medical marijuana; and 

 Whereas, proposed Township Ordinance 2020-490  does not affect adult 

recreational marijuana users rights to consume, smoke or ingest marijuana; and 

 Whereas, municipalities have the right, under the 2018 Michigan Regulation 

and Taxation of Marijuana Act, to decide whether recreational marijuana businesses 

are permitted within their communities and if they are permitted, the type or types of 

businesses so allowed, the zoning districts in which said businesses are permitted, as 

well as the adoption of other local regulations and requirements that are deemed to be 

in the best interests of the community; and 

 Whereas, the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees needs additional time to 

consider the important issues of whether commercial recreational marijuana businesses 

are in the best interests of the Township and, if so, the types of businesses that may be 



suited to the Township based upon the zoning district(s) for such businesses and 

whether other local regulations and requirements should be adopted. 

 Now Therefore, 

 Be it resolved, that Ordinance 2020-490 prohibiting recreational marijuana 

establishments (businesses) within Ypsilanti Township as set forth in the 2018 

Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marijuana Act is hereby adopted by reference. 

 Be it further resolved, that the Township’s Planning Director, Planning 

Consultants and Township Attorneys are hereby directed to provide the Ypsilanti 

Township Board of Trustees quarterly updates as it pertains to all information and 

research that is being conducted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2020-10 approved 
by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on June 16, 2020. 
                                    
                                                                                    ___________________________________ 
                                                                                                                Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
                                                                                                          Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 



                                   

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-490 
 

An Ordinance Prohibiting Recreational Marijuana Establishments within Ypsilanti 
Township as Provided by the Recreational Marijuana Ballot Initiative 1 of 2018 

  
 The Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby ordains that pursuant to the authority 

granted to municipalities in the Recreational Marijuana Ballot Initiative 1 of 2018, 

otherwise known as the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marijuana Act (the Act), as 

amended,  marijuana establishments as defined in the Act, are prohibited within the 

boundaries of Ypsilanti Township. 

 

Penalty for Violations 

  Violation of this Ordinance constitutes a municipal civil infraction punishable by a 

$500 fine. The violator shall be required to pay all direct and indirect expenses incurred 

by the Township in connection with the prosecution of the civil infraction. Each day 

during which a violation continues to exist shall be a separate offense. 

The Township may seek injunctive relief against persons alleged to be in 

violation of this Ordinance and such other relief as may be provided by law. 

 
Severability 

 Should any section, subdivision, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance be 

declared by the Courts to be invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of the 

Ordinance as a whole or any part thereof other than the part as invalidated. 

 
Publication 
 This Ordinance shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation as 

required by law.   

 
 
Effective date 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon publication in a newspaper of 

general circulation as required by law.  This ordinance shall cease effect on March 31, 

2021.  Furthermore, the Township’s Planning Director, Planning Consultants and 

Township Attorneys are hereby directed to provide the Ypsilanti Township Board of 

Trustees quarterly updates as it pertains to all information and research that is being 

conducted. 

 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify adoption of Ordinance No. 2020-490 by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular Meeting held on June 16, 2020 after first being 
introduced at a Regular Meeting held on May 19, 2020. The motion to approve was made by 
member Roe and seconded by Wilson YES:  Stumbo, Roe, Doe, Eldridge, Ross Williams 
ABSENT:  Wilson  NO: Jarrell Roe  ABSTAIN:  None.  
 

 
___________________________________ 

     Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

Published:  Thursday, June 25, 2020 
 























CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

RESOLUTION 2020-13 
(In Reference to Ordinance 2020-491) 

 
Amending the Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s Code of 

Ordinances to Clarify the Procedure for the Establishment of 
“Houses of Worship” in Conformity with the Requirements of 

the Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act  
 

Whereas, at its regularly scheduled meeting held May 26, 

2020, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti (Township) Planning 

Commission (Commission) recommended to the Township Board of 

Trustees (Board) changes to its Zoning Code to accommodate the 

requirements of the Federal “Religious Land Use and 

Institutionalized Persons Act;” and   

Whereas, the changes recommended by the Commission include:  

1. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE II: 
“Definitions” by adding the following to Section 201: 

  
House of Worship: A site used for or intended for the regular assembly of 
persons for the conducting of religious services and accessory uses 
therewith. 

 
 2.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE III: 
 “Zoning Districts and Map” by amending Section 306 “Schedule of 
 Uses”, sub-section 3, table “Residential Districts Use Table”, so as to 
 make the process for establishing a “House of Worship” in various 
 residential zoning districts  compatible with other similar uses.   
 
 3.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE 
 III: “Zoning Districts and Map” by amending Section 306 “Schedule of 
 Uses”, sub-section 6, Table “Industrial Use” so as to require a “House 
 of Worship” to obtain a special conditional use permit for 
 establishment in the enumerated  industrial districts, specifically, the 1RO  
 district.  
 
 4.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ORDINANCE ARTICLE XXI:  
 “General Provisions” by amending Section 2104 “Parking 
 Requirements” for “Places of Worship.”  
 
 5.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XXI:  
 “General Provisions” by removing Section 2118 “Access to Major 
 Thoroughfares or Collector Streets.” 
 
 6.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE 
 XVIII:  “Specific Land Use Provisions” by amending Section 1805 
 “Institutional or community recreation centers and nonprofit 
 swimming pool clubs” so as to provide requirements for lot size, 
 landscaping, parking, and with respect to the construction of swimming 
 pools, certain safety requirements.   



 
 7.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE 
 XVIII:  “Specific Land Use Provisions” by amending Section 1806 “Golf 
 Courses” whether or not operated for profit so as to provide for specific 
 site plan requirements and in the case of construction of a swimming pool, 
 safety requirements.  
  
 8.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE 
 XVIII:  “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1807 
 “Colleges and Universities,”  to require colleges and universities and   
 other such institutions of higher learning, public and private, offering 
 courses in general, technical or religious education and not operated for 
 profit, be developed only on sites of at least 40 acres in area, not be 
 permitted on  any portion of any recorded subdivision  plat, and no building 
 shall be closer than 80 feet to any property line.  
 
 9.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE 
 XVIII:  “Specific Land Use Provisions” by amending Section 1822 
 “Restaurants” to provide that restaurants in the OS-1 and B-1 zoning 
 districts meet certain specific conditions; and 
 
 
 Whereas, proposed Ordinance 2020-491 correctly memorializes the 

recommendations of the Township’s Commission and this Board finds that the 

adoption of this Ordinance is in the best interest of the Charter Township of 

Ypsilanti.  

 Now Therefore, Be it resolved that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

Board of Trustees hereby adopts and incorporates by reference the attached 

Ordinance No. 2020-491 in its entirety.  

 

 

 

 



  Page 1 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

ORDINANCE 2020-491 

An Ordinance Amending the Zoning Code of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby ordains that the Ypsilanti Township Zoning Code, 
adopted May 18, 1994, shall be amended as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE II: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article II, “Definitions” by amending Section 201 “Definitions”, as 
follows: 

House of Worship: A site used for or intended for the regular assembly of persons for the 
conducting of religious services and accessory uses therewith. 

 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE III: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article III, “Zoning Districts and Map” by amending Section 306 
“Schedule of Uses”, sub-section 3, table “Residential Districts Use Table”, as follows: 

Residential Districts Use 
Table 

R-1 to 
R-5 

RM-1 
and 

RM-2 

RM-3 
and 

RM-4 

RM
-5 MHP Notes 

P= Permitted Use     S=Special Conditional Use     A= Accessory Use      -- = Not permitted 

House of Worship  S P P -  P  

Publicly owned and 
operated libraries S P P - P  

Public, parochial and other 
private elementary schools 
offering courses in general 
education, and not operated 
for profit. 

 S - - - -  

Public, parochial and 
private intermediate and/or 
secondary schools offering 
courses in general 
education, not operated for 
profit. 

S P P - -  . 

Publicly owned and 
operated recreational 
facilities 

 S p P - P Subject to conditions 
in section 1805 

Institutional or community 
recreation centers and 
nonprofit swimming pool 
clubs 

 S P P P P  

 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE III: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article III, “Zoning Districts and Map” by amending Section 306 
“Schedule of Uses”, sub-section 6, table “Industrial Use”, as follows: 

Industrial Districts Use 
Table IRO I-1 I-2 I-3 I-C Notes 

P= Permitted Use     S=Special Conditional Use     A= Accessory Use      -- = Not permitted 

House of Worship  S - - - -  

 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XXI: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XXI, “General Provisions” by amending Section 2104 
“Parking Requirements”, to change the following term:  

https://library.municode.com/mi/ypsilanti_charter_township%2C_(washtenaw_co.)/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APXAZO_ARTXVIIISPUSPR_S1805INCORECENOSWPOCL


  Page 2 

USE  Number of Minimum Parking Spaces Per Unit of 
Measure  

b.   Institutional 

 
(1)  

 
Places of Worship 

 

One for each three seats or six 
feet of pews in the main unit of 

worship 
 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XXI: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XXI, “General Provisions” by removing Section 2118 
“Access to Major Thoroughfares or Collector Streets” 

 
SECTION 6. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1805 
“Institutional or community recreation centers and nonprofit swimming pool clubs”, to amend as 
follows: 

Institutional or community recreation centers and nonprofit swimming pool clubs, all 
subject to the following conditions: 

 
a. Front, side and rear yards shall be at least 80 feet wide, and shall be landscaped in 

trees, shrubs, and grass. All such landscaping shall be maintained in a healthy 
condition. There shall be no parking or structures permitted in these yards, except 
required entrance drives and those walls used to obscure the use from abutting 
residential districts. 

b. Off-street parking shall be provided so as to accommodate not less than one-half 
of the member families and/or individual members. The planning commission may 
modify the off-street parking requirements in those instances wherein it is 
specifically determined that the users will originate from the immediately adjacent 
areas, and will therefore be pedestrian. Prior to the issuance of a building permit or 
zoning compliance permit, bylaws of the organization shall be provided in order to 
establish the membership involved for computing the off-street parking 
requirements. In those cases wherein the proposed use or organization does not 
have bylaws or formal membership, the off-street parking requirement shall be 
determined by the planning commission on the basis of usage. 

c. Whenever a swimming pool is constructed under this ordinance, said pool area 
shall be provided with a protective fence, six feet in height, and entry shall be 
provided by means of a controlled gate. 
 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1806 
“Golf Courses”, to amend as follows: 

Golf courses, which may or may not be operated for profit, subject to the following 
conditions: 

a. The site plan shall be laid out to achieve a relationship between the major 
thoroughfare and any proposed service roads, entrances, driveways, and parking 
areas which will encourage pedestrian and vehicular traffic safety. 

b. In residential zoning districts where golf courses are allowed (R-1 to R-5, RM-1 to 
RM-4), development features including the principal and accessory buildings and 
structures shall be so located and related as to minimize the possibilities of any 
adverse effects upon adjacent property. All principal or accessory buildings shall 
be not less than 200 feet from any property line abutting residentially zoned lands; 
provided that where topographic conditions are such that buildings would be 
screened from view, the planning commission may modify this requirement. 

c. Whenever a swimming pool is to be provided, said pool shall be provided with a 
protective fence, six feet in height, and entry shall be provided by means of a 
controlled gate. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1807 
“Colleges and universities”, to amend as follows: 



  Page 3 

Colleges, universities and other such institutions of higher learning, public and private, 
offering courses in general, technical, or religious education and not operated for profit, 
all subject to the following conditions: 

a. Any use permitted herein shall be developed only on sites of at least 40 acres in 
area, and shall not be permitted on any portion of a recorded subdivision plat. 

b. No building shall be closer than 80 feet to any property line. 

 
SECTION 9. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1822 
“Restaurants”, to amend as follows: 

a. In the OS-1 and B-1 zoning districts, restaurants must meet the following conditions: 
1) Service is wholly within the building and no drive-in facilities are provided. 
2) When adjacent to a residential zoning district boundary, the building shall 

have a minimum setback of 20 feet from the residential zoning district 
boundary. 

3) Parking areas shall be screened from adjacent residential areas in accord 
with section 2108 and such screening walls shall be constructed of finished 
materials in harmony with the residential character of abutting residential 
zones. 

4) Outdoor lighting, of a type and location which will not be a nuisance to 
abutting residential districts, shall be provided. The type of lighting and the 
location of such lighting shall be included on the plan for review by the 
planning commission. 

5) All access to the site shall be from an existing or planned major or minor 
thoroughfare, or from a collector street.   

 
SECTION 10. SEVERABILITY.  In the event that any one or more sections, provisions, phrases 
or words of this ordinance shall be found to be invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such 
holding shall not affect the validity nor the enforceability of the remaining sections, provisions, 
phrases or words of this Ordinance unless expressly so determined by a Court of competent 
jurisdiction. 
 
SECTION 11.  PUBLICATION.  This ordinance shall be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation as required by law. 
 
SECTION 12. EFFECTIVE DATE: This ordinance shall become effective upon publication in 
a newspaper of general circulation as required by law. 
 
SECTION 13. REPEAL: All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

 
 

Effective date This Ordinance shall become effective upon publication in a newspaper of 

general circulation as required by law.   

 

 

I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify approval of the first reading of Proposed Ordinance No. 2020-491 by the 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees assembled at a regular meeting held on June 
16, 2020. The second reading is scheduled to be heard on July 21, 2020. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

                                                                                                            Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 



 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

Resolution 2020-15 
 

RESOLUTION FOR GRANT APPLICATION WITH THE  
U.S. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION (EDA) 

PUBLIC WORKS AND ECONOMIC ADJUSTMENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 
  
 WHEREAS, the Economic Development Administration’s (EDA’s) mission is to 
lead the federal economic development agenda by promoting innovation and 
competitiveness, preparing American regions for economic growth and success in the 
worldwide economy, and   
 
 WHEREAS, the EDA solicits applications from applicants in order to provide 
investments that support construction, non-construction, planning, technical assistance, 
and revolving loan fund projects under EDA’s Public Works program and EAA program, 
and  
 

WHEREAS, The LDFA has a goal to establish a connected high-tech ecosystem 
with infrastructure; 
 

WHEREAS, An integral part of this goal is the connection of the Ann Arbor 
downtown Tech Park with the City of Ypsilanti and the American Center for Mobility; 
 
 WHEREAS, The City of Ann Arbor has already installed conduit and fiber in the 
downtown area which could be leveraged, but with little exception the system is full and 
cannot handle additional needs,  
 
 WHEREAS, the installation of a robust conduit and fiber system linking 
Downtown Ann Arbor to Ypsilanti, running through Ypsilanti Township and Pittsfield 
Township will leverage existing infrastructure investments and make it easier for 
company to innovate and grow, and 
 
  WHEREAS, Ann Arbor SPARK, in partnership with its local partners in the City 
of Ann Arbor, City of Ypsilanti, Ypsilanti Township, Pittsfield Township will file an 
application for the ANN ARBOR -YPSILANTI FIBER AND CONDUIT NETWORK 
BACKBONE  , with the EDA under Funding Opportunity number PWEAA2020 
requesting $3,000,000, and   

 
WHEREAS, the Ann Arbor/Ypsilanti Smartzone will provide a match of $600,000 

to construct the ANN ARBOR -YPSILANTI FIBER AND CONDUIT NETWORK 
BACKBONE which will be used as a matching grant funds that are a cash match that is 
readily available and unencumbered, and  

 
WHEREAS, Ann Arbor SPARK will be the lead applicant, with City of Ann Arbor, 

City of Ypsilanti, Ypsilanti Township and Pittsfield Township as the co-applicants, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Ann Arbor SPARK will administer the grant, and 

  
WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township will not incur any costs associated with 

construction of the Fiber and Conduit Network Backbone 
 
 WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township representatives of the effected taxing units will 
be  given an opportunity for public comment at an informational meeting held on a date 
yet to be determined, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the SPARK CEO Paul Krutko, is the authorized representative on 
behalf of the EDA Grant, and is authorized to sign any and all documentation related to 
the grant.  
 
 
 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2020-15 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on June 16, 2020. 
                                    
                                                                                    ___________________________________ 
                                                                                                                Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
                                                                                                          Charter Township of Ypsilanti 





CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2020 BUDGET AMENDMENT #7 REVISED

June 16, 2020

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $321,941.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $20,000.00

Net Revenues $20,000.00

Expenditures: COVID-19 Supplies & Equip 101-267-000-727.300 $20,000.00

Net Expenditures $20,000.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $1,941.00

Net Revenues $1,941.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out - PTO & Sick 101-253-000-708.004 $1,803.00
FICA 101-253-000-715.000 $138.00

Net Expenditures $1,941.00

*

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $300,000.00

Net Revenues $300,000.00

Expenditures: Transfer to 14B Court 101-999-000-969.236 $300,000.00

Net Expenditures $300,000.00

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request of 60  hours to be paid at 75%.  This will be funded by an 
Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for additional expenses related to supplies and equipment needed for  the COVID-19 
pandemic to reopen facilities.   These additional funds are needed for PPE and preparing buildings for the return 
of public and opening of the buildings. This will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget to transfer funds from General Fund to 14B District Court Fund for operations such as 
payroll and health care. Due to the circumstances revolving around the COVID-19 pandemic, the revenue has 
been extremely low.   This will be funded by an Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 2



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2020 BUDGET AMENDMENT #7 REVISED

June 16, 2020

236 - 14 B DISTRICT COURT FUND $1,395.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 236-000-000-699.000 $1,395.00

Net Revenues $1,395.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out - PTO & Sick 236-136-000-708.004 $1,296.00
FICA 236-136-000-715.000 $99.00

Net Expenditures $1,395.00

*

Revenues: Transfer In: General Fund 236-000-000-697.000 $300,000.00

Net Revenues $300,000.00

Revenues 14B Ordinance Fines and Costs 236-000-000-605.001 ($300,000.00)

Net Expenditures ($300,000.00)

* Revised budget amendment requested by Supervisor Stumbo

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request of 45  hours to be paid at 75%.  This will be funded by an 
Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to accept transferred funds from General Fund to  14B District Court Funds for operations such as 
payroll and health care. Due to the circumstances revolving around the COVID-19 pandemic, the revenue has 
been extremely low.    The net to the Fund Balance will be zero because we will increase the transfer in revenue 
line and decrease the fines and costs revenue line. This will be funded by a Transfer of cash from General Fund to 
14B District Court Fund.

2 of 2



Motion to Amend the 2020 Budget (#7 REVISED) 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $321,941 to $9,937,512 and approve 
the department line item changes as outlined. 

Move to increase the 14B District Court Fund budget by $1,395 to $1,779,765 and 
approve the department line item changes as outlined.  





















         OFFICE OF THE TREASURER

                     LARRY J. DOE

MONTHLY TREASURER'S  REPORT

Account Name Beginning Balance Cash Receipts Cash Disbursements Ending Balance

101 - General Fund 6,732,355.95 4,845,052.92 5,393,683.80 6,183,725.07
101 - Payroll 248,043.15 798,338.35 795,281.64 251,099.86
101 - Willow Run Escrow 145,326.52 11.91 0.00 145,338.43
206 - Fire Department 5,654,486.26 223,328.81 2,282,500.41 3,595,314.66
208 - Parks Fund 26,551.74 2.26 962.42 25,591.58
212 - Roads/Bike Path/Rec/General Fund 1,512,558.25 47,090.03 16,523.50 1,543,124.78
226 - Environmental Services 3,006,581.94 97,858.40 222,964.99 2,881,475.35
230 - Recreation 149,660.57 9,878.14 81,589.04 77,949.67
236 - 14-B District Court 21,721.34 401,549.19 309,158.27 70,669.58
244 - Economic Development 70,434.27 6.15 0.00 70,440.42
249 - Building Department Fund 1,369,636.92 113,272.84 91,734.54 1,391,175.22
250 - LDFA Tax 149,150.88 3.24 129,163.92 19,990.20
252 - Hydro Station Fund 819,257.78 152,750.31 48,321.02 923,687.07
266 - Law Enforcement Fund 8,263,347.57 298,147.75 1,165,746.22 7,395,749.10
398 - LDFA 2006 Bonds 11,277.09 129,174.68 0.00 140,451.77
584 - Green Oaks Golf Course 165,605.16 122,575.26 64,481.16 223,699.26
590 - Compost Site 766,685.42 66,173.84 27,985.21 804,874.05
595 - Motor Pool 234,126.80 38.41 4,625.47 229,539.74
701 - General Tax Collection 58,096.44 11,208.03 32,399.15 36,905.32
703 - Current Tax Collections 51,592.96 0.00 0.00 51,592.96
707 - Bonds & Escrow/GreenTop 1,227,119.37 25,850.90 9,453.29 1,243,516.98
708 - Fire Withholding Bonds 96,069.36 7.18 12,746.00 83,330.54
893 - Nuisance Abatement Fund 90,420.58 13,221.58 29,693.00 73,949.16
GRAND  TOTAL 30,826,663.63 7,355,540.18 10,719,013.05 27,463,190.76

JUNE 1, 2020 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2020



 

ATTORNEY REPORT 

 
GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
 



 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

RESOLUTION 2020-13 
(In Reference to Ordinance 2020-491) 

 
Amending the Charter Township of Ypsilanti’s Code of 

Ordinances to Clarify the Procedure for the Establishment of 
“Houses of Worship” in Conformity with the Requirements of 

the Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act  
 

Whereas, at its regularly scheduled meeting held May 26, 

2020, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti (Township) Planning 

Commission (Commission) recommended to the Township Board of 

Trustees (Board) changes to its Zoning Code to accommodate the 

requirements of the Federal “Religious Land Use and 

Institutionalized Persons Act;” and   

Whereas, the changes recommended by the Commission include:  

1. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE II: 
“Definitions” by adding the following to Section 201: 

  
House of Worship: A site used for or intended for the regular assembly of 
persons for the conducting of religious services and accessory uses 
therewith. 

 
 2.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE III: 
 “Zoning Districts and Map” by amending Section 306 “Schedule of 
 Uses”, sub-section 3, table “Residential Districts Use Table”, so as to 
 make the process for establishing a “House of Worship” in various 
 residential zoning districts  compatible with other similar uses.   
 
 3.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE 
 III: “Zoning Districts and Map” by amending Section 306 “Schedule of 
 Uses”, sub-section 6, Table “Industrial Use” so as to require a “House 
 of Worship” to obtain a special conditional use permit for 
 establishment in the enumerated  industrial districts, specifically, the 1RO  
 district.  
 
 4.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ORDINANCE ARTICLE XXI:  
 “General Provisions” by amending Section 2104 “Parking 
 Requirements” for “Places of Worship.”  
 
 5.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XXI:  
 “General Provisions” by removing Section 2118 “Access to Major 
 Thoroughfares or Collector Streets.” 
 
 6.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE 
 XVIII:  “Specific Land Use Provisions” by amending Section 1805 
 “Institutional or community recreation centers and nonprofit 
 swimming pool clubs” so as to provide requirements for lot size, 
 landscaping, parking, and with respect to the construction of swimming 
 pools, certain safety requirements.   



 
 7.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE 
 XVIII:  “Specific Land Use Provisions” by amending Section 1806 “Golf 
 Courses” whether or not operated for profit so as to provide for specific 
 site plan requirements and in the case of construction of a swimming pool, 
 safety requirements.  
  
 8.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE 
 XVIII:  “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1807 
 “Colleges and Universities,”  to require colleges and universities and   
 other such institutions of higher learning, public and private, offering 
 courses in general, technical or religious education and not operated for 
 profit, be developed only on sites of at least 40 acres in area, not be 
 permitted on  any portion of any recorded subdivision  plat, and no building 
 shall be closer than 80 feet to any property line.  
 
 9.  AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE 
 XVIII:  “Specific Land Use Provisions” by amending Section 1822 
 “Restaurants” to provide that restaurants in the OS-1 and B-1 zoning 
 districts meet certain specific conditions; and 
 
 
 Whereas, proposed Ordinance 2020-491 correctly memorializes the 

recommendations of the Township’s Commission and this Board finds that the 

adoption of this Ordinance is in the best interest of the Charter Township of 

Ypsilanti.  

 Now Therefore, Be it resolved that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

Board of Trustees hereby adopts and incorporates by reference the attached 

Ordinance No. 2020-491 in its entirety.  

 

 

 

 



  Page 1 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

ORDINANCE 2020-491 

An Ordinance Amending the Zoning Code of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby ordains that the Ypsilanti Township Zoning Code, 
adopted May 18, 1994, shall be amended as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE II: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article II, “Definitions” by amending Section 201 “Definitions”, as 
follows: 

House of Worship: A site used for or intended for the regular assembly of persons for the 
conducting of religious services and accessory uses therewith. 

 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE III: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article III, “Zoning Districts and Map” by amending Section 306 
“Schedule of Uses”, sub-section 3, table “Residential Districts Use Table”, as follows: 

Residential Districts Use 
Table 

R-1 to 
R-5 

RM-1 
and 

RM-2 

RM-3 
and 

RM-4 

RM
-5 MHP Notes 

P= Permitted Use     S=Special Conditional Use     A= Accessory Use      -- = Not permitted 

House of Worship  S P P -  P  

Publicly owned and 
operated libraries S P P - P  

Public, parochial and other 
private elementary schools 
offering courses in general 
education, and not operated 
for profit. 

 S - - - -  

Public, parochial and 
private intermediate and/or 
secondary schools offering 
courses in general 
education, not operated for 
profit. 

S P P - -  . 

Publicly owned and 
operated recreational 
facilities 

 S p P - P Subject to conditions 
in section 1805 

Institutional or community 
recreation centers and 
nonprofit swimming pool 
clubs 

 S P P P P  

 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE III: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article III, “Zoning Districts and Map” by amending Section 306 
“Schedule of Uses”, sub-section 6, table “Industrial Use”, as follows: 

Industrial Districts Use 
Table IRO I-1 I-2 I-3 I-C Notes 

P= Permitted Use     S=Special Conditional Use     A= Accessory Use      -- = Not permitted 

House of Worship  S - - - -  

 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XXI: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XXI, “General Provisions” by amending Section 2104 
“Parking Requirements”, to change the following term:  

https://library.municode.com/mi/ypsilanti_charter_township%2C_(washtenaw_co.)/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APXAZO_ARTXVIIISPUSPR_S1805INCORECENOSWPOCL


  Page 2 

USE  Number of Minimum Parking Spaces Per Unit of 
Measure  

b.   Institutional 

 
(1)  

 
Places of Worship 

 

One for each three seats or six 
feet of pews in the main unit of 

worship 
 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XXI: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XXI, “General Provisions” by removing Section 2118 
“Access to Major Thoroughfares or Collector Streets” 

 
SECTION 6. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1805 
“Institutional or community recreation centers and nonprofit swimming pool clubs”, to amend as 
follows: 

Institutional or community recreation centers and nonprofit swimming pool clubs, all 
subject to the following conditions: 

 
a. Front, side and rear yards shall be at least 80 feet wide, and shall be landscaped in 

trees, shrubs, and grass. All such landscaping shall be maintained in a healthy 
condition. There shall be no parking or structures permitted in these yards, except 
required entrance drives and those walls used to obscure the use from abutting 
residential districts. 

b. Off-street parking shall be provided so as to accommodate not less than one-half 
of the member families and/or individual members. The planning commission may 
modify the off-street parking requirements in those instances wherein it is 
specifically determined that the users will originate from the immediately adjacent 
areas, and will therefore be pedestrian. Prior to the issuance of a building permit or 
zoning compliance permit, bylaws of the organization shall be provided in order to 
establish the membership involved for computing the off-street parking 
requirements. In those cases wherein the proposed use or organization does not 
have bylaws or formal membership, the off-street parking requirement shall be 
determined by the planning commission on the basis of usage. 

c. Whenever a swimming pool is constructed under this ordinance, said pool area 
shall be provided with a protective fence, six feet in height, and entry shall be 
provided by means of a controlled gate. 
 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1806 
“Golf Courses”, to amend as follows: 

Golf courses, which may or may not be operated for profit, subject to the following 
conditions: 

a. The site plan shall be laid out to achieve a relationship between the major 
thoroughfare and any proposed service roads, entrances, driveways, and parking 
areas which will encourage pedestrian and vehicular traffic safety. 

b. In residential zoning districts where golf courses are allowed (R-1 to R-5, RM-1 to 
RM-4), development features including the principal and accessory buildings and 
structures shall be so located and related as to minimize the possibilities of any 
adverse effects upon adjacent property. All principal or accessory buildings shall 
be not less than 200 feet from any property line abutting residentially zoned lands; 
provided that where topographic conditions are such that buildings would be 
screened from view, the planning commission may modify this requirement. 

c. Whenever a swimming pool is to be provided, said pool shall be provided with a 
protective fence, six feet in height, and entry shall be provided by means of a 
controlled gate. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1807 
“Colleges and universities”, to amend as follows: 



  Page 3 

Colleges, universities and other such institutions of higher learning, public and private, 
offering courses in general, technical, or religious education and not operated for profit, 
all subject to the following conditions: 

a. Any use permitted herein shall be developed only on sites of at least 40 acres in 
area, and shall not be permitted on any portion of a recorded subdivision plat. 

b. No building shall be closer than 80 feet to any property line. 

 
SECTION 9. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1822 
“Restaurants”, to amend as follows: 

a. In the OS-1 and B-1 zoning districts, restaurants must meet the following conditions: 
1) Service is wholly within the building and no drive-in facilities are provided. 
2) When adjacent to a residential zoning district boundary, the building shall 

have a minimum setback of 20 feet from the residential zoning district 
boundary. 

3) Parking areas shall be screened from adjacent residential areas in accord 
with section 2108 and such screening walls shall be constructed of finished 
materials in harmony with the residential character of abutting residential 
zones. 

4) Outdoor lighting, of a type and location which will not be a nuisance to 
abutting residential districts, shall be provided. The type of lighting and the 
location of such lighting shall be included on the plan for review by the 
planning commission. 

5) All access to the site shall be from an existing or planned major or minor 
thoroughfare, or from a collector street.   

 
SECTION 10. SEVERABILITY.  In the event that any one or more sections, provisions, phrases 
or words of this ordinance shall be found to be invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such 
holding shall not affect the validity nor the enforceability of the remaining sections, provisions, 
phrases or words of this Ordinance unless expressly so determined by a Court of competent 
jurisdiction. 
 
SECTION 11.  PUBLICATION.  This ordinance shall be published in a newspaper of general 
circulation as required by law. 
 
SECTION 12. EFFECTIVE DATE: This ordinance shall become effective upon publication in 
a newspaper of general circulation as required by law. 
 
SECTION 13. REPEAL: All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 

 
 

Effective date This Ordinance shall become effective upon publication in a newspaper of 

general circulation as required by law.   

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety • Planning & Zoning • Ordinance Enforcement • Police Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-4393 
 

To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Jason Iacoangeli AICP, Planning Director  
 

Re: Zoning Ordnance Amendments to comply with the Religious Land Use and 
Institutionalized Persons Act (RLUIPA) of 2000 

 
 

Date:  June 1, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
Background: 
 

The land use provisions of the Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act of 
2000 (RLUIPA), protect individuals, houses of worship, and other religious institutions from 
discrimination in zoning and land regulations. RLUIPA prohibits zoning and land regulations that 
substantially burden the religious exercise of churches or other religious assemblies or 
institutions absent the least restrictive means of furthering a compelling governmental interest. 
RLUIPA is not a blanket exemption from zoning laws. As a general matter, religious institutions 
must apply for the same permits, follow the same requirements, and go through the same land 
use processes as other like assembly uses. 
 
 RLUIPA prohibits a local government from applying zoning laws or regulations in a way that: 
 

1. Substantially burdens religious exercise without a compelling justification pursued 
through the least restrictive means. 
 

2. Treats religious uses less favorably than nonreligious assemblies and institutions 
Discriminates based on religion or religious denomination.  
 

3. Totally or unreasonably restricts religious uses in the local jurisdiction. 
 

With regards to land use regulations, the most common RLUIPA violation is placing land 
use regulations on religious institutions that do not apply to like nonreligious places of assembly 
and institutions. Nonreligious assemblies and institutions in the Township Zoning Ordinance 
include libraries, theaters, assembly halls, concert halls, halls for private clubs, recreational clubs 
and centers, fraternal order halls, lodge halls, civic organizations, unions and membership halls, 
schools, and government buildings. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-4393 •  ytown.org 

Proposed Ordinance Changes:   
 

The proposed Ordinance changes address the RLUIPA issues in the R1-R5 Single Family 
Zoning Districts. In the draft Ordinance amendment, Houses of Worship are currently treated as 
a Special Conditional Use in the Single Family Zoning Districts. This is in contrast to other 
assembly uses being Permitted Uses in those districts, like libraries, schools, and non-profit 
recreation centers and pools.  This Ordinance amendment remedies the situation by making all 
assembly uses in the R1-R5 Zoning Districts Special Conditional Uses, thus eliminating 
inconsistency with regard to religious institutions.  Planning Commission can make the right 
decisions with regard to assembly uses in neighborhoods by giving them the tools to make sure 
those uses are in harmony with surrounding land uses.   
 

Another issue being addressed in this Ordinance amendment is Section 2218, Access to 
Major Thoroughfares.  Currently, the Ordinance requires that Houses of Worship be located on 
Major Thoroughfares as a condition of the special use.  We identified this section as cumbersome 
and confusing.  Not only does this section apply to Houses of Worship but other assembly uses.  
The current standards for traffic and access management review, as a part of the site plan review 
process, limit the need to regulate assembly uses to major thoroughfares and collector streets.  
Our planning standards ensure that new development occurs on a scale that is appropriate for 
the surrounding area.  This amendment eliminates Section 2118 and all of the references to it 
throughout the Ordinance. 

 
Finally, the amendment proposes a definition for Houses of Worship that is inclusive of 

all faiths within our community.  The amendments replace the term “Churches and Temples” to 
Houses of Worship to provide a broader term for religious inclusion. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
 In conclusion the Planning Department feels that these changes to our Ordinance are a 
meaningful and proactive approach to keeping our Ypsilanti Township Zoning Ordinance in 
compliance with State and Federal Law. Further, the proposed changes create a fair approach to 
land use decisions in the Township that deals with both faith based and secular places of 
assembly. If you have any questions or concerns regarding this matter please feel free to contact 
me anytime. 
 
Jason Iacoangeli 
_____________________ 
Jason Iacoangeli, AICP 
Planning Director 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 



Date: May 27, 2020 
Rev:  

Text is proposed for deletion 
Text is proposed to be added  Page 1 

 

 
PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2020-491 

An Ordinance Amending the Zoning Code of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby ordains that the Ypsilanti Township Zoning Code, adopted 
May 18, 1994, shall be amended as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE II: Township 
Zoning Ordinance Article II, “Definitions” by amending Section 201 “Definitions”, as follows: 

House of Worship: A site used for or intended for the regular assembly of persons for the 
conducting of religious services and accessory uses therewith. 

 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE III: Township 
Zoning Ordinance Article III, “Zoning Districts and Map” by amending Section 306 “Schedule of Uses”, 
sub-section 3, table “Residential Districts Use Table”, as follows: 

Residential Districts Use 
Table 

R-1 to 
R-5 

RM-1 
and 

RM-2 

RM-3 
and 

RM-4 

RM
-5 MHP Notes 

P= Permitted Use     S=Special Conditional Use     A= Accessory Use      -- = Not permitted 

House of Worship  S P P -  P Access must comply with 
regulations in section 2118. 

Publicly owned and operated 
libraries P   S P P - P  

Public, parochial and other 
private elementary schools 
offering courses in general 
education, and not operated 
for profit. 

P   S - - - -  

Public, parochial and private 
intermediate and/or 
secondary schools offering 
courses in general education, 
not operated for profit. 

S P P - -  Access must comply with 
regulations in section 2118. 

Publicly owned and operated 
recreational facilities P   S p P - P Subject to conditions 

in section 1805 

Institutional or community 
recreation centers and 
nonprofit swimming pool 
clubs 

P   S P P P P  

 

https://library.municode.com/mi/ypsilanti_charter_township%2C_(washtenaw_co.)/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APXAZO_ARTXXIGEPR_S2118ACMATHCOST
https://library.municode.com/mi/ypsilanti_charter_township%2C_(washtenaw_co.)/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APXAZO_ARTXXIGEPR_S2118ACMATHCOST
https://library.municode.com/mi/ypsilanti_charter_township%2C_(washtenaw_co.)/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APXAZO_ARTXVIIISPUSPR_S1805INCORECENOSWPOCL


Date: May 27, 2020 
Rev:  

Text is proposed for deletion 
Text is proposed to be added  Page 2 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE III: Township 
Zoning Ordinance Article III, “Zoning Districts and Map” by amending Section 306 “Schedule of Uses”, 
sub-section 6, table “Industrial Use”, as follows: 

Industrial Districts Use 
Table IRO I-1 I-2 I-3 I-C Notes 

P= Permitted Use     S=Special Conditional Use     A= Accessory Use      -- = Not permitted 

House of Worship  S - - - -  

 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XXI: Township 
Zoning Ordinance Article XXI, “General Provisions” by amending Section 2104 “Parking 
Requirements”, to change the following term:  

USE  Number of Minimum Parking Spaces Per Unit of Measure  

b.   Institutional 

 

(1)  

Churches and Temples 
  

Places of Worship 
 

One for each three seats or six feet 
of pews in the main unit of 

worship 

 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XXI: Township 
Zoning Ordinance Article XXI, “General Provisions” by amending Section 2118 “Access to Major 
Thoroughfares or Collector Streets”, to remove as follows: 

For uses making reference to this section 2118, vehicular access shall be provided only to an 
existing or planned major thoroughfare, freeway service drive, or collector street. Provided, 
however, that access driveways may be permitted to other than a major thoroughfare, freeway 
service drive, or collector street where such access is provided to a street where the property 
directly across the street from such driveway and the major thoroughfare, freeway service drive, 
or collector street is zoned for multiple-family use or any collector street is zoned for multiple-
family use or any nonresidential uses, is developed with permanent uses other than single-family 
residences or is an area which, in the opinion of the planning commission, will be used for other 
than single-family purposes in the future. This exception shall only apply if the planning 
commission finds that there are special circumstances which indicate that there will be a 
substantial improvement in traffic safety by reducing the number of driveways to a thoroughfare. 

 
SECTION 6. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1805 
“Institutional or community recreation centers and nonprofit swimming pool clubs”, to amend as follows: 

Institutional or community recreation centers and nonprofit swimming pool clubs, all subject to 
the following conditions: 

 



Date: May 27, 2020 
Rev:  

Text is proposed for deletion 
Text is proposed to be added  Page 3 

a. The site shall have at least one property line abutting a major thoroughfare as designated 
on the major thoroughfare plan, and the site shall be so planned as to provide all access in 
accordance with section 2118.  

a. Front, side and rear yards shall be at least 80 feet wide, and shall be landscaped in trees, 
shrubs, and grass. All such landscaping shall be maintained in a healthy condition. There 
shall be no parking or structures permitted in these yards, except required entrance drives 
and those walls used to obscure the use from abutting residential districts. 

b. Off-street parking shall be provided so as to accommodate not less than one-half of the 
member families and/or individual members. The planning commission may modify the 
off-street parking requirements in those instances wherein it is specifically determined that 
the users will originate from the immediately adjacent areas, and will therefore be 
pedestrian. Prior to the issuance of a building permit or zoning compliance permit, bylaws 
of the organization shall be provided in order to establish the membership involved for 
computing the off-street parking requirements. In those cases wherein the proposed use or 
organization does not have bylaws or formal membership, the off-street parking 
requirement shall be determined by the planning commission on the basis of usage. 

c. Whenever a swimming pool is constructed under this ordinance, said pool area shall be 
provided with a protective fence, six feet in height, and entry shall be provided by means 
of a controlled gate. 
 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1806 “Golf 
Courses”, to amend as follows: 

Golf courses, which may or may not be operated for profit, subject to the following conditions: 

a. The site shall be so planned as to provide all access in accordance with section 2118. 
a. The site plan shall be laid out to achieve a relationship between the major thoroughfare 

and any proposed service roads, entrances, driveways, and parking areas which will 
encourage pedestrian and vehicular traffic safety. 

b. In residential zoning districts where golf courses are allowed (R-1 to R-5, RM-1 to RM-4), 
development features including the principal and accessory buildings and structures shall 
be so located and related as to minimize the possibilities of any adverse effects upon 
adjacent property. All principal or accessory buildings shall be not less than 200 feet from 
any property line abutting residentially zoned lands; provided that where topographic 
conditions are such that buildings would be screened from view, the planning commission 
may modify this requirement. 

c. Whenever a swimming pool is to be provided, said pool shall be provided with a 
protective fence, six feet in height, and entry shall be provided by means of a controlled 
gate. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1807 
“Colleges and universities”, to amend as follows: 

Colleges, universities and other such institutions of higher learning, public and private, offering 
courses in general, technical, or religious education and not operated for profit, all subject to 
the following conditions: 



Date: May 27, 2020 
Rev:  

Text is proposed for deletion 
Text is proposed to be added  Page 4 

a. Any use permitted herein shall be developed only on sites of at least 40 acres in area, and 
shall not be permitted on any portion of a recorded subdivision plat. 

b. All access to said site shall be in accordance with section 2118. 
b. No building shall be closer than 80 feet to any property line. 

 
SECTION 9. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1822 
“Restaurants”, to amend as follows: 

a. In the OS-1 and B-1 zoning districts, restaurants must meet the following conditions: 
1) Service is wholly within the building and no drive-in facilities are provided. 
2) When adjacent to a residential zoning district boundary, the building shall have a 

minimum setback of 20 feet from the residential zoning district boundary. 
3) Parking areas shall be screened from adjacent residential areas in accord with section 

2108 and such screening walls shall be constructed of finished materials in harmony 
with the residential character of abutting residential zones. 

4) Outdoor lighting, of a type and location which will not be a nuisance to abutting 
residential districts, shall be provided. The type of lighting and the location of such 
lighting shall be included on the plan for review by the planning commission. 

5) All access to the site shall be in accordance with section 2118.  from an existing or 
planned major or minor thoroughfare, or from a collector street.   

 
SECTION 10. SEVERABILITY.  In the event that any one or more sections, provisions, phrases or words 
of this ordinance shall be found to be invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not 
affect the validity nor the enforceability of the remaining sections, provisions, phrases or words of this 
Ordinance unless expressly so determined by a Court of competent jurisdiction. 
 
SECTION 11.  PUBLICATION.  This ordinance shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation 
as required by law. 
 
SECTION 12. EFFECTIVE DATE: This ordinance shall become effective upon publication in a 
newspaper of general circulation as required by law. 
 
SECTION 13. REPEAL: All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 



Date: May 27, 2020 
Rev:  

  Page 1 

 

 
PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2020-491 

An Ordinance Amending the Zoning Code of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby ordains that the Ypsilanti Township Zoning Code, adopted 
May 18, 1994, shall be amended as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE II: Township 
Zoning Ordinance Article II, “Definitions” by amending Section 201 “Definitions”, as follows: 

House of Worship: A site used for or intended for the regular assembly of persons for the 
conducting of religious services and accessory uses therewith. 

 

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE III: Township 
Zoning Ordinance Article III, “Zoning Districts and Map” by amending Section 306 “Schedule of Uses”, 
sub-section 3, table “Residential Districts Use Table”, as follows: 

Residential Districts Use 
Table 

R-1 to 
R-5 

RM-1 
and 

RM-2 

RM-3 
and 

RM-4 

RM
-5 MHP Notes 

P= Permitted Use     S=Special Conditional Use     A= Accessory Use      -- = Not permitted 

House of Worship  S P P -  P  

Publicly owned and operated 
libraries S P P - P  

Public, parochial and other 
private elementary schools 
offering courses in general 
education, and not operated 
for profit. 

 S - - - -  

Public, parochial and private 
intermediate and/or 
secondary schools offering 
courses in general education, 
not operated for profit. 

S P P - -  . 

Publicly owned and operated 
recreational facilities  S p P - P Subject to conditions 

in section 1805 

Institutional or community 
recreation centers and 
nonprofit swimming pool 
clubs 

 S P P P P  

 

https://library.municode.com/mi/ypsilanti_charter_township%2C_(washtenaw_co.)/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_APXAZO_ARTXVIIISPUSPR_S1805INCORECENOSWPOCL


Date: May 27, 2020 
Rev:  

  Page 2 

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE III: Township 
Zoning Ordinance Article III, “Zoning Districts and Map” by amending Section 306 “Schedule of Uses”, 
sub-section 6, table “Industrial Use”, as follows: 

Industrial Districts Use 
Table IRO I-1 I-2 I-3 I-C Notes 

P= Permitted Use     S=Special Conditional Use     A= Accessory Use      -- = Not permitted 

House of Worship  S - - - -  

 

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XXI: Township 
Zoning Ordinance Article XXI, “General Provisions” by amending Section 2104 “Parking 
Requirements”, to change the following term:  

USE  Number of Minimum Parking Spaces Per Unit of Measure  

b.   Institutional 

 
(1)  

 
Places of Worship 

 

One for each three seats or six feet 
of pews in the main unit of 

worship 
 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XXI: Township 
Zoning Ordinance Article XXI, “General Provisions” by removing Section 2118 “Access to Major 
Thoroughfares or Collector Streets” 

 
SECTION 6. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1805 
“Institutional or community recreation centers and nonprofit swimming pool clubs”, to amend as follows: 

Institutional or community recreation centers and nonprofit swimming pool clubs, all subject to 
the following conditions: 

 
a. Front, side and rear yards shall be at least 80 feet wide, and shall be landscaped in trees, 

shrubs, and grass. All such landscaping shall be maintained in a healthy condition. There 
shall be no parking or structures permitted in these yards, except required entrance drives 
and those walls used to obscure the use from abutting residential districts. 

b. Off-street parking shall be provided so as to accommodate not less than one-half of the 
member families and/or individual members. The planning commission may modify the 
off-street parking requirements in those instances wherein it is specifically determined that 
the users will originate from the immediately adjacent areas, and will therefore be 
pedestrian. Prior to the issuance of a building permit or zoning compliance permit, bylaws 
of the organization shall be provided in order to establish the membership involved for 
computing the off-street parking requirements. In those cases wherein the proposed use or 



Date: May 27, 2020 
Rev:  

  Page 3 

organization does not have bylaws or formal membership, the off-street parking 
requirement shall be determined by the planning commission on the basis of usage. 

c. Whenever a swimming pool is constructed under this ordinance, said pool area shall be 
provided with a protective fence, six feet in height, and entry shall be provided by means 
of a controlled gate. 
 

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1806 “Golf 
Courses”, to amend as follows: 

Golf courses, which may or may not be operated for profit, subject to the following conditions: 

a. The site plan shall be laid out to achieve a relationship between the major thoroughfare 
and any proposed service roads, entrances, driveways, and parking areas which will 
encourage pedestrian and vehicular traffic safety. 

b. In residential zoning districts where golf courses are allowed (R-1 to R-5, RM-1 to RM-4), 
development features including the principal and accessory buildings and structures shall 
be so located and related as to minimize the possibilities of any adverse effects upon 
adjacent property. All principal or accessory buildings shall be not less than 200 feet from 
any property line abutting residentially zoned lands; provided that where topographic 
conditions are such that buildings would be screened from view, the planning commission 
may modify this requirement. 

c. Whenever a swimming pool is to be provided, said pool shall be provided with a 
protective fence, six feet in height, and entry shall be provided by means of a controlled 
gate. 

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1807 
“Colleges and universities”, to amend as follows: 

Colleges, universities and other such institutions of higher learning, public and private, offering 
courses in general, technical, or religious education and not operated for profit, all subject to 
the following conditions: 

a. Any use permitted herein shall be developed only on sites of at least 40 acres in area, and 
shall not be permitted on any portion of a recorded subdivision plat. 

b. No building shall be closer than 80 feet to any property line. 

 
SECTION 9. AMENDMENT TO TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE XVIII: 
Township Zoning Ordinance Article XVIII, “Specific Use Provisions” by amending Section 1822 
“Restaurants”, to amend as follows: 

a. In the OS-1 and B-1 zoning districts, restaurants must meet the following conditions: 
1) Service is wholly within the building and no drive-in facilities are provided. 
2) When adjacent to a residential zoning district boundary, the building shall have a 

minimum setback of 20 feet from the residential zoning district boundary. 
3) Parking areas shall be screened from adjacent residential areas in accord with section 

2108 and such screening walls shall be constructed of finished materials in harmony 
with the residential character of abutting residential zones. 



Date: May 27, 2020 
Rev:  

  Page 4 

4) Outdoor lighting, of a type and location which will not be a nuisance to abutting 
residential districts, shall be provided. The type of lighting and the location of such 
lighting shall be included on the plan for review by the planning commission. 

5) All access to the site shall be from an existing or planned major or minor 
thoroughfare, or from a collector street.   

 
SECTION 10. SEVERABILITY.  In the event that any one or more sections, provisions, phrases or words 
of this ordinance shall be found to be invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not 
affect the validity nor the enforceability of the remaining sections, provisions, phrases or words of this 
Ordinance unless expressly so determined by a Court of competent jurisdiction. 
 
SECTION 11.  PUBLICATION.  This ordinance shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation 
as required by law. 
 
SECTION 12. EFFECTIVE DATE: This ordinance shall become effective upon publication in a 
newspaper of general circulation as required by law. 
 
SECTION 13. REPEAL: All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

MINUTES OF THE MAY 26, 2020 REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
Chair Sally Richie called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 pm via Zoom due to 
COVID-19.   
 
Commissioners Present:   Chair Sally Richie and Commissioners Bill Sinkule, Laurence 

Krieg, Elizabeth El-Assadi, Muddassar Tawakkul, Gloria 
Peterson and Stan Eldridge  

 
Commissioners Absent:   None 
 
Others in Attendance: Denny McLain, Township Attorney; Megan Masson-Minock, 

Carlisle-Wortman; Elliot Smith, OHM; Jason Iacoangeli, 
Planning Director and Charlotte Wilson, Planning and 
Development Coordinator  

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL  

 
3. APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 28, 2020 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Eldridge supported by Commissioner 
Sinkule to approve the minutes of the April 28, 2020 Regular Meeting.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Eldridge supported by Commissioner 
Sinkule to approve the agenda. The motion carried unanimously. 

   
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PLAN REVIEW 
 

A. ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS – TO CONSIDER RECOMMENDING 
TO THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES THE PROPOSED 
AMENDMENTS TO UPDATE THE ZONING ORDINANCE IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE RELIGIOUS LAND USE AND INSTITUTIONALIZED PERSONS 
ACT.   

 
The public hearing opened at 6:38pm 
 
Lamar Weir, representative of Congresswoman Dingell spoke.  
 
The public hearing closed at 6:41pm 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Tawakkul, supported by Commissioner 
Eldridge to recommend to the Township Board of Trustees the proposed 
amendments to update the zoning ordinance in accordance with the Religious 
Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act.    
 
The motion carried as follows:  
 
Sinkule: Yes     Eldridge: Yes Krieg: Yes   Tawakkul: Yes     Richie: Yes 
 
El-Assadi: Yes   Peterson: Yes 
 

B. EARTH BALANCING AND EXCAVATION PERMIT EXTENSION – 
CREEKSIDE VILLAGE NORTH – 6601 TUTTLE HILL ROAD – TO CONSIDER 
EXTENDING THE EARTH BALANCING AND EXCAVATION PERMIT 
GRANTED ON MAY 28, 2019 FOR AN ADDITIONAL YEAR TO MOVE, AND 
THEN GRADE, APPROXIMATELY 10,000 CUBIC YARDS OF FILL MATERIAL 
FROM TRENCH AND BASEMENT EXCAVATIONS AT LOMBARDO 
PROJECTS MAJESTIC LAKES ESTATE (CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF  



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 26, 2020 
Page 2 
 

YPSILANTI), THE VILLAGE AT MAJESTIC LAKES (CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI), THE PONDS AT MAJESTIC LAKES (CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 
YPSILANTI), AND ARBOR RIDGE (CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF PITTSFIELD) 
TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE CREEKSIDE VILLAGE NORTH 
DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT 6601 TUTTLE HILL ROAD, PARCEL K-11-26-
300-009. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Eldridge, supported by Commissioner El-
Assadi to approve an extension of the earth balancing permit to SE Michigan 
Land Holdings LLC to transport, place and grade approximately 10,000 cubic 
yards of fill material on the designated area of Parcel K-11-26-300-009 known as 
6601 Tuttle Hill Road subject to the following conditions: 
 

The permit authorizes the placement and grading of fill materials, no 
excavation has been requested or approved for the location. 
 
The origin and type of fill material shall be documented and the reports 
provided to the Office of Community Standards. 
 
The fill material originating from outside of Ypsilanti Township may require 
testing upon request of the Township and based on conditions set forth by 
Township Engineer. 
 
The fill material delivered to the site shall be graded within two (2) weeks of 
placement. 
 
Dust control measures shall be implemented and maintained at all times.  
 
The trucking and grading activity shall be restricted to the hours of 8am to 
5pm with no activity on Sundays or legal holidays.   
 
The designated trucking routes shall be noted and used.   
 
That an escrow in the amount of $2,500 be maintained.  
 
That a surety in the amount of $30,000 shall be maintained.   
 

Sinkule: Yes     Eldridge: Yes Krieg: Yes   Tawakkul: Yes     Richie: Yes 
 
El-Assadi: Yes   Peterson: Yes 
 
6. OLD BUSINESS 

 
None 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
8. OPEN DISCUSSION FOR ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 

A. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 
 
None 
 

B. PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 
 
None 
 

C. MEMBERS OF THE AUDIENCE 
  
None 



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
May 26, 2020 
Page 3 
 
 
9. TOWNSHIP BOARD REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
Commissioner Eldridge spoke about Covid testing in the Township. 
 
10. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
None 
 
11. TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
None 
 
12. PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
Jason Iacoangeli gave an update. 
 
13. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
None 

 
A motion was made by a Commissioner Peterson, supported by Commissioner 
Eldridge to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:15 pm 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Laura Gough 
OCS Clerk 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

MINUTES OF THE APRIL 28, 2020 REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
Vice Chair Sally Richie called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 pm via Zoom due to 
COVID-19.   
 
Commissioners Present:   Chair Sally Richie and Commissioners Bill Sinkule, Laurence 

Krieg, Elizabeth El-Assadi, Muddassar Tawakkul and Stan 
Eldridge  

 
Commissioners Absent:   None  
 
Others in Attendance: Denny McLain, Township Attorney; Megan Masson-Minock, 

Carlisle-Wortman; Jason Iacoangeli, Planning Director, 
Charlotte Wilson, Planning and Development Coordinator 
and Mike Radzik, OCS Director 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL  

 
3. APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 11, 2020 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Krieg supported by Commissioner 
Eldridge to approve the minutes of the February 11, 2020 Regular Meeting.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Eldridge supported by Commissioner 
Sinkule to approve the agenda. The motion carried unanimously. 

   
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PLAN REVIEW 
 

A. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN AND SPECIAL USE PERMIT – SUNCO 
PROPERTIES LLC – 2380 EAST MICHIGAN AVENUE – TO CONSIDER THE 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN AND SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF A 2,783 SQUARE FOOT OIL CHANGE AND MINOR 
AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR FACILITY LOCATED AT 2380 EAST MICHIGAN 
AVENUE, PARCEL K-11-02-480-011.   

 
The public hearing opened at 7:02pm 
 
No persons wished to speak. 
 
The public hearing closed at 7:04pm 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Eldridge, supported by Commissioner 
Sinkule to approve the preliminary site plan for the Parcel K-11-02-480-011 at 2380 
East Michigan Avenue for Sunco Properties LLC  
 
The motion carried as follows:  
 
Sinkule: Yes     Eldridge: Yes Krieg: Yes   Tawakkul: Yes     Richie: Yes 
 
El-Assadi: Yes    
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Eldridge, supported by Commissioner 
Krieg to approve the special use permit for Parcel K-11-02-480-011 at 2380 East 
Michigan Avenue for Sunco Properties LLC with the following conditions: 
 
 The correct square footage be listed in all paperwork. 
 



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2020 
Page 2 
 

No vehicles shall park outside overnight.  All vehicles to be repaired should 
be pulled inside the building after business hours. 

 
That the truck turning and access is sufficient and gains approval from the 
Township engineer and Fire Marshal. 
 
The installation of shrubs to screen. 
 
The vinyl fencing along the western property line be six (6) feet in height 
and be sufficient grade and color. 
 
The applicant agrees to make payment in lieu of a sidewalk along Wiard 
Road, the amount to be determined by the Township engineer.  
 
All full color elevations of the facility are provided. 
 
The installation of an exterior security video system be added with a 
retaining date of 30-40 dates and access to law enforcement at request.   

 
The motion carried as follows:  
 
Sinkule: Yes     Eldridge: Yes Krieg: Yes   Tawakkul: Yes     Richie: Yes 
 
El-Assadi: Yes    
 

B. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN AMENDMENT AND SPECIAL USE PERMIT – 
AMERICAN CENTER FOR MOBILITY (ACM) – 2801 AIRPORT DRIVE – TO 
CONSIDER THE PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN AMENDMENT AND SPECIAL USE 
PERMIT FOR AN EVENT CENTER AND TEMPORARY PARKING AT THE 
EXISTING AMERICAN CENTER FOR MOBILITY (ACM) FACILITY LOCATED 
AT 2801 AIRPORT DRIVE, PARCEL K-11-12-100-005.   

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Tawakkul, supported by Commissioner Sinkule to 
table the item for sixty (60) days. 
 
The motion carried as follows:  
 
Sinkule: Yes     Eldridge: Yes Krieg: Yes   Tawakkul: Yes     Richie: Yes 
 
El-Assadi: Yes    

 
6. OLD BUSINESS 

 
None 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS – TO DISCUSS PROPOSED 
AMENDMENTS TO UPDATE THE ZONING ORDINANCE IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE RELIGIOUS LAND USE AND INSTITUTIONALIZED PERSONS 
ACT.  

 
Planning Director Iacoangeli and Planning Consultant Megan Masson-Minock 
discussed the Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons Act with the Planning 
Commission.  Megan Masson-Minock reviewed the changes to the Township Zoning 
Ordinance with the Planning Commission.  Planning Director Iacoangeli made a request 
that the Planning Commission set a Public Hearing date of May 26th, 2020 to take public 
comment on the proposed Ordinance Amendment.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Eldridge, supported by Commissioner Krieg to 
set a public hearing date of May 26th, 2020 for the proposed Ordinance Changes 



Charter Township Of Ypsilanti 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 28, 2020 
Page 3 
 
regarding houses of worship and the Religious Land Use and Institutionalized Persons 
Act. 
 
The motion carried as follows:  
 
Sinkule: Yes     Eldridge: Yes Krieg: Yes   Tawakkul: Yes     Richie: Yes 
 
El-Assadi: Yes    
 
 
 
8. OPEN DISCUSSION FOR ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 

A. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED 
 
None 
 

B. PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 
 
None 
 

C. MEMBERS OF THE AUDIENCE 
  
None 
 
9. TOWNSHIP BOARD REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
None 
 
10. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REPRESENTATIVE REPORT 
 
None 
 
11. TOWNSHIP ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
None 
 
12. PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
None 
 
13. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
None 

 
A motion was made by a Commissioner Krieg, supported by Commissioner 
Eldridge to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 9pm 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Laura Gough 
OCS Clerk 



 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 

 

Building Safety • Planning & Zoning • Ordinance Enforcement • Police Services 

7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-4393 

To: 

From: 

Re: 

Copy: 

Date: 

Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

Jason Iacoangeli AICP, Planning Director 

Request to approve the variance from the Private Road Ordinance: 

Section 47-28.1 Private driveway design standards, sub-section (a). for one (1) 
private driveway to access two (2) lots zoned R-1, Single Family Residential 
where only one (1) lot can be accessed by a private driveway for sites zoned R-
1, Single Family Residential, located at 5485 Merritt Road, Parcel # K -11-30-300-
045 and 5507 Merritt Road (Vacant), Parcel # K -11-30-400-018 . 

McLain & Winters, Township Attorneys 

July 8, 2020 

Background 

The Applicant Mr. Scott Wiard is requesting a variance to Section 47-28.1 Private Driveway Design 
in order to utilize an existing seven hundred and thirty seven (737’) foot long driveway to service 
two (2) homes.  The original plan set was reviewed by the Township Planning Department on 
February 26, 2020.  The plans were recommended to be revised and resubmitted based on the 
Directors Report (attached for your review).  The Planning Department received a revised set of 
plans on March 16, 2020.  The plans were revised to address all of the comments and reduce the 
plan sets down to the one variance request for the use of one (1) driveway for the two (2) 
adjacent homes.  The applicant was also asked to provide the Township with an ingress and 
egress easement that will run with the land and will be required to be recorded for both parcels. 
The easement was received by the Planning Department on May 12, 2020. Included in this packet 
is the Directors Report which includes all of the reviews of the original plans as well as the revised 
plan set that addresses all of the comments. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

7200 S. Huron River Drive  •  Ypsilanti, MI  48197  •  (734) 485-4393 •  ytown.org 

Summary and Recommendation 

At this time the Planning Department feels that the variance to allow the existing drive-way at 
5485 Merritt Road to serve as the driveway for a new home to be constructed on 5507 Merritt 
Road (Vacant) is a practical difficulty.  To require the new lot to be serviced by a parallel seven 
hundred foot (700’) foot driveway would be a valid hardship. Most of the homes on the north 
side of Merritt across from Rolling Hills County Park have large front yard setbacks for the homes 
based on the long narrow lots they sit on.  The applicant has agreed to end the driveway in a T-
Turnaround for the Fire Department and has agreed to sprinkle the new home using a residential 
fire suppression system as a hydrant will not be within six hundred (600’) feet.  The homes on 
both lots currently use well, and septic systems.  

If the Township Board approves the variance request the Township Attorney, and township staff 
will work with the applicant to sign and execute an ingress and egress easement that is to be 
recorded to run with both properties.   

We respectfully request that you place this information packet on the July 21, 2020 Board of 
Trustees meeting agenda for its consideration.  Please contact us with questions or concerns. 

Jason Iacoangeli 
________________________ 
Jason Iacoangeli, AICP 
Planning Director 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 































Director's Report 

Project Name:  
Description: 
Date of Agenda this 
packet pertains to:

□ Public Hearing □ Special Land Use
□ Initial Submittal □ Rezoning
□ Revised Plans □ Tentative Preliminary Plat
□ Preliminary Approval □ Final Preliminary Plat
□ Final Approval □ Other __________________

Contact Consultants & 
Departments 

Approval Denial Approved 
w/ 
Conditions 

Comments 

Planning Director's Recommended Action: Please revise and resubmit the site  
plans to address the review comments. The last page (SP-03) from the site plan 
should be removed from the next submission. The applicant does not need a 
WCRC or a WCWRC permit for the variance request. Assessing Department 
approval is contingent on meeting State law for lot divisions. The accessory 
structure (PR Garage) within the front yard will require a building permit and 
variance from the Zoning Board of Appeals.

Jason Iacoangeli Planning Director

OHM / Stantec Engineering Consultant

Carlisle/Wortman
Associates

Planning Consultant

Gary Streight WCRC

Dan Kimball Fire Department

Scott Westover YCUA

Dave Bellers Building Official

Brian McCleery Assessing Department

Theresa Marsik WCWRC



 
 
 

 

February 26, 2020 
 
 
Mr. Jason Iacoangeli 
Township Planning Director 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
 
RE: 5485 and 5507 Merritt Road 
 Private Road Review #1 
 
 
Dear Mr. Iacoangeli: 
 
We have completed our first private road review for the above referenced project with plans dated October 4, 2019, 
with a latest revision date of December 17, 2019, and were received by OHM Advisors on February 12, 2020.  
 
At this time, the proposed plans are not recommended for approval. The following comments shall be addressed prior 
to resubmitting for administrative site plan review and approval.  
 
A brief description of the project has been provided below (Section A), followed by our comments (Section B) and a list 
of anticipated required permits and approvals (Section C).   
 

A. PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 

The applicant is requesting a variance to serve an existing lot, 5485 Merritt Road, and a proposed lot, 5507 
Merritt Road, by means of a 10-foot wide paved private driveway. The applicant is also proposing to widen the 
existing private driveway to 12-feet by providing two (2) 1-foot wide gravel shoulders on either side of the 
drive. The applicant is proposing a T-turnaround for emergency vehicles and the proposed home will have a 
fire suppression system. 
 
The plan set proposes the potential of servicing six (6) lots in the future, of which includes 5485 and 5507 
Merritt Road. If the applicant wishes to split the existing parcels into an additional four (4) lots, a separate 
review and variance request will be required. 
 

B. PRIVATE ROAD REVIEW COMMENTS:  
 

1. The applicant shall provide all existing and proposed utilities (water, sanitary, storm) on the plans. 
2. The applicant shall provide a brief stormwater narrative on the plans. The narrative shall include a 

description of the existing drainage patterns, any Best Management Practices (BMPs) or driveway 
culverts, and the ultimate stormwater outlet. It is recommended that ditches are provided along the 
private drive to ensure positive drainage is occurring. 

3. The applicant shall provide a cross-section of the existing and proposed drives on the plans, including 
the proposed shoulders.  

4. The applicant shall provide a turning template for the largest vehicle proposed to access the site (i.e. 
fire truck). This office defers to the Ypsilanti Township Fire Department for the acceptability of site 
circulation and the proposed t-turnaround. 



Mr. Iacoangeli – 5485 and 5507 Merritt Road – Private Road Review #1 
February 26, 2020  
Page 2 of 2 
 

5. The applicant shall revise the plans to clarify if the proposed road is a driveway or a road, as there are 
references to both in the plan set and in in the Private Road Maintenance Agreement and Attachment 
B: Legal Description of Private Road and Private Utilities Easements. 

6. The applicant shall provide a minimum of two (2) benchmarks, including their descriptions and 
locations, on the plans, per Ypsilanti Township Standards. 

7. The applicant shall provide a cover sheet on the plans, including a brief project description. 
 

C. REQUIRED PERMITS & APPROVALS 
 
The following outside agency reviews and permits will be required for the project. Copies of any 
correspondence between the applicant and the review agencies, as well as the permit or waiver, shall be sent to 
both the Township and OHM Advisors (email: elliot.smith@ohm-advisors.com).  
 
 Ypsilanti Township Fire Department: Review and approval is required. 
 Washtenaw County Road Commission (WCRC): Review and approval is required. 
 Ypsilanti Township Office of Community Standards: A Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control 

permit shall be secured from the Ypsilanti Township Office of Community Standards.  
 The Township’s Planner will inspect the landscaping for this site.  
 If dewatering should be needed, the contractor/applicant shall be responsible for obtaining necessary 

approvals from the Township and the Township Engineer, permission from all impacted adjacent 
properties and/or permits from MDOT, WCWRC’s Office, or the WCRC. 

 Record plans shall be provided to the Township Engineer following the completion of construction.  
 
Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact this office at (734) 466-4580. 
 
Sincerely, 
OHM Advisors 
 
 
_____________________________       
Matthew D. Parks, P.E.     Elliot R. Smith 
 
MDP/ERS/sls 
 
cc: Charlotte Wilson, Township Planning & Development Coordinator 

Mike Radzik, Township Community Standards Director  
Doug Winters, Township Attorney 
Dan Kimball, Township Fire Marshall 
File   
 

P:\0000_0100\SITE_YpsilantiTwp\2020\0098201020_PR_5485 and 5507 Merritt Rd\Review#1\Merritt Road_PRR#1_2020-02-26.docx 

mailto:elliot.smith@ohm-advisors.com


CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI FIRE DEPARTMENT 
BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION 
 

222 South Ford Boulevard, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
 

 
  

February 26, 2020 
 
Jason Iacoaneli, Planning Director 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
 
RE: Private Road Variance 
 Project Name:     Scott & Karen Wiard 
 Project Location:    5485 & 5507 Merritt Road 
 Plan Date:     10/4/2019 
 Job Number:   14019 
 Applicable Codes:  IFC 2018 
 Contractor:   Macon Engineering, LLC. 
 Contractor Address:  P.O. Box 314, Chelsea, MI 48118 
  
 
 
Status of Review 

Status of review: Approved Conditionally (see comments) 

Pages SP-02 through SP-03 were reviewed. 

 

 

Site Coverage - Hydrants 
Comments:   

Page SP-02, the proposed single family home exceeds the IFC 2018 507.5.1   600 foot hydrant 
requirement. However the plans state the house will have fire suppression. An NFPA 13 fire suppression 
system is acceptable to the AHJ. 

Page SP-03, is not approved at this time and will have to be resubmitted at the time of future 
construction  

  

 

 

Site Coverage - Access 
 

Comments:  

Page SP-02, The applicant shall provide a cross-section of the existing and proposed drives on the 
plans, including the proposed shoulders.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI FIRE DEPARTMENT 
BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION 

 

222 South Ford Boulevard, Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
 

 

 
 
 
IFC 2018 D102.1 Access and loading. Facilities, buildings or portions 
of buildings hereafter constructed shall be accessible to fire 
department apparatus by way of an approved fire apparatus 
access road with an asphalt, concrete or other approved driving 
surface capable of supporting the imposed load of fire 
apparatus weighing up to 75,000 pounds (34 050 kg). 
 

Page SP-03, is not approved at this time and will have to be resubmitted at the time of future 
construction.  

 

 

 

 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Dan Kimball, Fire Marshal 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Fire Department 
CFPS, CFI II, CFPE 



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President    Douglas J. Lewan, Executive Vice President    John L. Enos, Principal 
   David Scurto, Principal   Benjamin R. Carlisle, Principal   Sally M. Elmiger, Principal    Craig Strong, Principal    R. Donald Wortman, Principal   

Laura K. Kreps, Associate     Paul Montagno, Associate 

 
TO:  Ypsilanti Township Development Team  
       
FROM: Benjamin Carlisle, AICP  

DATE: February 28, 2020 
 
RE: Wiard Family Development Shared Driveway Variance  
 
 
The applicant currently owns the lot at 5485 Merritt Road, which has been improved with a single-
family home and the adjacent lot to the east, 5507 Merritt Road, which is currently unimproved.  
The applicant desires to sell 5507 Merritt to their daughter and son-in-law so they may build a 
home on that lot.  In addition, the applicant has provided a plan, Sheet SP-03, which further divides 
the two (2) existing lots into a total of six (6) lots.   
 
The applicant is seeking three variances:  

1. Two (2) homes to be served by one (1) driveway. Shown on Sheet SP-02. 
2. Construction of an accessory building (pole barn) to be located in front of a residential 

structure.  Shown on Sheet SP-02.  
3. A future private road that exceeds the maximum length of 600-feet.   Shown on Sheet SP-

03. 
 
I discuss each variance request in more detail below.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Wiard Shared Driveway Variance 
February 28, 2020 

 

2 
 

 
Figure 1: Site 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Variance Discussion: 
 
The applicant is seeking approval for the following variances:  
 

1. Section 47-28.1(a): Only one house can be constructed using the private driveway 
standards; more than one house shall require an approved private road. 
 
As shown on Sheet SP-03 the applicant is seeking a variance for one driveway to serve 
both lots.  The applicant has provided a T-turnaround to serve fire truck circulation.  The 
T-turnaround should be reviewed and approved by the Fire Department.  
 

Pa
rc

el
 1

 

Pa
rc

el
 2

 



Wiard Shared Driveway Variance 
February 28, 2020 

 

3 
 

The private road ordinance requires that every house be served by a separate driveway.  
To meet the ordinance requirement the applicant could construct two parallel driveways 
where each one would serve one house.    
 
As set forth in Section 47-33 -Variances, the application shall prove practical difficulties 
or unnecessary hardships.  The applicant notes that allowing both homes served by a 
single driveway will reduce impacts to natural features, utilize existing infrastructure, 
preserve open space, and reduce curb cuts in close proximity along Merritt Road.  We 
concur that due to reasons noted above there is an unnecessary hardship where granting 
the variance still maintains the intent and purpose of this article, provides for public 
safe, and allows for substantial justice for the applicant.   

 
2. Article XX Section 2103 Accessory Buildings: A building or structure accessory to a 

residential building shall not be erected in any yard except a rear yard unless otherwise 
provided for herein. 
 
As shown on Sheet SP-02 the applicant is seeking a variance to construct a pole barn that 
would be located in between the front property line and the house.   The accessory 
building location requirements are set forth in the Zoning Ordinance.  The Township 
Board does not grant variances to the Zoning Ordinance.  The Zoning Board of Appeals is 
the appropriate body to consider this variance request.   The applicant can submit a 
separate application to the Zoning Board of Appeals to consider this variance request.   
 

3. Section 47-29 (l):  The layout of roads in the proposed plan shall provide at least two 
points of access to an existing public road and shall provide a continuous circuit for 
travel. An exception will be considered when, in the opinion of the board, the lands to 
be subdivided are limited in area or are subject to a natural barrier. Private roads shall 
not exceed 600 feet in length unless connected to another road system providing a 
second means of access to the development. Connections to existing public road 
systems shall be subject to the review and approval of the county road commission. 
 
As shown on Sheet SP-03 the applicant is proposing a future land division/site 
condominium to split the two (2) existing lots into a total of six (6) lots.  In order to do so 
the applicant is required to provide a private road.  The private road as proposed is +/-
800 feet, which exceeds the maximum length with only one point of access.  
 
The applicant notes that the lot division/site condominium plan on Sheet SP-03 is a future 
plan that may or may not happen.   As set forth in Section 47-33. – Variances (6), for a 
variance granted for a private road, that “if construction of the road has not commenced 
within two years from the date that a variance was granted, then the variance shall be 
null and void. The township board may grant a longer time frame and may grant an 
extension when so requested by the applicant.” 
 



Wiard Shared Driveway Variance 
February 28, 2020 

 

4 
 

Because the status and timing of the future land division/site condominium for the 
creation of four (4) additional new lots is unknown, I would recommend that the Board 
not consider the request until such time as the applicant has firm plan and timing on 
construction.  I recommend that the applicant revise their application to remove this 
request and resubmit at a later date if and when the applicant has a firm plan and timing 
on the private road construction.   

 
Required Findings:  

As you consider this request, please note that by the Private Road Ordinance the applicant shall 
prove to the satisfaction of the Township Board that:  
 

Sec. 47-33. - Variances.:  When there are practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships in 
the way of carrying out the strict letter of this article, such as topographical and other 
physical characteristics of a parcel, the township board shall have the power to vary or 
modify the application of the provisions of this article so that the intent and purpose of 
this article shall be observed, public safety secured and substantial justice done. 

 
Summary and Recommendation:  

 
We recommend that the applicant revise their application to remove the request for the accessory 
structure location variance and the private road length variance.  As noted, the applicant can 
submit a separate separate application to the Zoning Board of Appeals to consider the accessory 
structure variance.    I recommend that the applicant resubmit a private road variance request in 
the future if and when the applicant has a firm plan and timing on the private road construction.   
  
Once the applicant has revised their application, the Township Board may be able to consider the 
application for the shared driveway.    
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
 
 



2/14/2020 Zimbra

https://pluto.twp.ypsilanti.mi.us/zimbra/h/printmessage?id=100738&tz=America/New_York&xim=1 1/1

From : Scott Westover <SWestover@ycua.org>
Subject : RE: Scott & Karen Wiard Private Road Variance Application #1 - 5485 & 5507 Merritt Road - K-11-30-300-045 & K-

11-30-400-018
To : Charlotte Wilson <cwilson@ytown.org>, Jason Iacoangeli <jiacoangeli@ytown.org>
Cc : Jeff Castro <JCastro@ycua.org>, Mike Shaffer <MShaffer@ycua.org>

Zimbra cwilson@ytown.org

RE: Scott & Karen Wiard Private Road Variance Application #1 - 5485 & 5507 Merritt Road - K-11-30-300-045 & K-11-30-400-018

Fri, Feb 14, 2020 10:41 AM
2 attachments

Sanitary sewer is not available. Water main in Merri�  Road is 36” diameter transmission main and individual taps are not permi� ed to pipe larger than 16” diameter. An 8” diameter
water main could be extended up to 600’ from the exis� ng 36” pipe, but un� l the applicant proposes any water main installa� on YCUA will not have any comments.
 
SCOTT WESTOVER | Engineering Manager
Telephone: (734) 484-4600 ext. 220
swestover@ycua.org
 
Ypsilan�  Community U� li� es Authority
2777 State Road | Ypsilan� , Michigan   USA   48198-9112
www.ycua.org
 
This Internet message and any attachments may contain information that is confidential and/or legally privileged. It is intended for use only by the named recipients. If you are not a named recipient, please notify me
immediately, and do not use this message or any attachments for any purpose, or distribute or otherwise disclose its contents to any person, or copy or store it in any medium. Neither this information block, the typed name of
the sender or anything else in this message is intended to constitute an electronic signature for purposes of the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act or the Electronic Signatures in Global and National Commerce Act ("E-Sign").
The recipient should check this email and any attachments for the presence of viruses. YCUA accepts no liability for any damage caused by any virus transmitted by this email. Thank you.
 
From: Charlo� e Wilson [mailto:cwilson@ytown.org] 
Sent: Thursday, February 13, 2020 3:02 PM
To: Linda Gosselin <lgosselin@ytown.org>; Brian McCleery <bmccleery@ytown.org>; Eric R. Copeland <ecopeland@ytown.org>; Daniel Kimball <dkimball@ytown.org>; Ma�  Parks
<ma� .parks@ohm-advisors.com>; Elliot Smith <Elliot.Smith@ohm-advisors.com>; Jeff Castro <JCastro@ycua.org>; Sco�  Westover <SWestover@ycua.org>; Benjamin Carlisle
<bcarlisle@cwaplan.com>; Megan Masson-Minock <mmasson-minock@cwaplan.com>
Cc: Brenda Stumbo <bstumbo@ytown.org>; jiacoangeli <jiacoangeli@ytown.org>; Michael Radzik <mradzik@ytown.org>; Doug/Dennis Winters/McLain <mcwinlaw@gmail.com>;
Dave Bellers <dbellers@ytown.org>; Gary Streight <streightg@wcroads.org>; mccullochm <mccullochm@wcroads.org>; Theresa M. Marsik <marsikt@washtenaw.org>
Subject: Sco�  & Karen Wiard Private Road Variance Applica� on #1 - 5485 & 5507 Merri�  Road - K-11-30-300-045 & K-11-30-400-018
 
Good afternoon everyone,
 
We are in receipt of a private road variance application for Scott & Karen Wiard located at 5485 & 5507 Merritt Road, parcels K-11-30-300-045 & K-11-
30-400-018. Hard copies are ready for pick-up; digital copies are attached.
 
Reviews are due on February 27, 2020.
 
Thank you,
Charlotte M. Wilson, AICP
Planning and Development Coordinator

Office of Community Standards
734-485-3943
Tilden R. Stumbo Civic Center
7200 S. Huron River Dr.
Ypsilanti, MI 48197
 
 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti

 

mailto:swestover@ycua.org
http://www.ycua.org/
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__ytown.org&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=mkotKpMwQBRmG1mQKatbLg&m=Grl2ZgUMkrw03wdKzJ0LYVUuLr2r7gx3zNQ0VDexb-4&s=RbW5IL-I3UYZH6mGXThmzFoB1CIZfOSPTDnToa7I3WU&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__twitter.com_YpsilantiTwp&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=mkotKpMwQBRmG1mQKatbLg&m=Grl2ZgUMkrw03wdKzJ0LYVUuLr2r7gx3zNQ0VDexb-4&s=fjb1xkQZY1aYWy3fKS1PQZ-_WiR-Wi0Ju2dOETN2TLk&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__ytown.org_ytown-5Femail-5Flogos_&d=DwMFaQ&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=mkotKpMwQBRmG1mQKatbLg&m=Grl2ZgUMkrw03wdKzJ0LYVUuLr2r7gx3zNQ0VDexb-4&s=FqMzy8cd5z8_LmD0vFBtMEDAL3UCXab4vG0lR0GM_r0&e=




TO
PO

GR
AP

HI
C 

SU
RV

EY
A

rb
o

r 
 L

a
n

d
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

, 
In

c
.

2
9

3
6

 S
. 

M
a

d
ro

n
o

A
n

n
 A

rb
o

r,
 M

I 
4

8
1

0
3

(7
3

4
) 

6
6

9
-2

9
6

0
F

a
x

 6
6

9
-2

9
6

1

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
L

a
n

d
S

u
rv

e
y

o
rs

w
w

w
.a

rb
o

rl
a

n
d

in
c
.c

o
m

ROYEVRUS LANO
SEFORP

SNECL I
ED

I S

I
I

H

AG

N

C
M

F O
ETATS

24
61

8
N

o.
SU

R
VE

YO
R

PR
O

FE
SS

IO
N

AL
SC

HW
IM

ME
R

PA
UL

 V
.

C 
M

ER
RI

T 
RO

AD
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET       OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE 1 INCH =     FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MACON ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-04-2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14019

AutoCAD SHX Text
12-17-2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEEHIVE CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS MAIN RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET IRON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARBED WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEASURED DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDED DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE HE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE E UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE  UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE NDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE DERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE ERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE RGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE GROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE ROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE OUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE UND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE ND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE D UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE  UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE TILITIES SHOWN HAVE ILITIES SHOWN HAVE LITIES SHOWN HAVE ITIES SHOWN HAVE TIES SHOWN HAVE IES SHOWN HAVE ES SHOWN HAVE S SHOWN HAVE  SHOWN HAVE SHOWN HAVE HOWN HAVE OWN HAVE WN HAVE N HAVE  HAVE HAVE AVE VE E BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD SURVEY EEN LOCATED FROM FIELD SURVEY EN LOCATED FROM FIELD SURVEY N LOCATED FROM FIELD SURVEY  LOCATED FROM FIELD SURVEY LOCATED FROM FIELD SURVEY OCATED FROM FIELD SURVEY CATED FROM FIELD SURVEY ATED FROM FIELD SURVEY TED FROM FIELD SURVEY ED FROM FIELD SURVEY D FROM FIELD SURVEY  FROM FIELD SURVEY FROM FIELD SURVEY ROM FIELD SURVEY OM FIELD SURVEY M FIELD SURVEY  FIELD SURVEY FIELD SURVEY IELD SURVEY ELD SURVEY LD SURVEY D SURVEY  SURVEY SURVEY URVEY RVEY VEY EY Y INFORMATION AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE NFORMATION AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE FORMATION AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE ORMATION AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE RMATION AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE MATION AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE ATION AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE TION AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE ION AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE ON AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE N AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE  AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE ND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE D EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE  EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE XISTING DRAWINGS. THE ISTING DRAWINGS. THE STING DRAWINGS. THE TING DRAWINGS. THE ING DRAWINGS. THE NG DRAWINGS. THE G DRAWINGS. THE  DRAWINGS. THE DRAWINGS. THE RAWINGS. THE AWINGS. THE WINGS. THE INGS. THE NGS. THE GS. THE S. THE . THE  THE THE HE E SURVEYOR MAKES NO GUARANTEES THAT URVEYOR MAKES NO GUARANTEES THAT RVEYOR MAKES NO GUARANTEES THAT VEYOR MAKES NO GUARANTEES THAT EYOR MAKES NO GUARANTEES THAT YOR MAKES NO GUARANTEES THAT OR MAKES NO GUARANTEES THAT R MAKES NO GUARANTEES THAT  MAKES NO GUARANTEES THAT MAKES NO GUARANTEES THAT AKES NO GUARANTEES THAT KES NO GUARANTEES THAT ES NO GUARANTEES THAT S NO GUARANTEES THAT  NO GUARANTEES THAT NO GUARANTEES THAT O GUARANTEES THAT  GUARANTEES THAT GUARANTEES THAT UARANTEES THAT ARANTEES THAT RANTEES THAT ANTEES THAT NTEES THAT TEES THAT EES THAT ES THAT S THAT  THAT THAT HAT AT T THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN E UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN  UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN NDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN DERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN RGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN GROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ROUND UTILITIES SHOWN OUND UTILITIES SHOWN UND UTILITIES SHOWN ND UTILITIES SHOWN D UTILITIES SHOWN  UTILITIES SHOWN UTILITIES SHOWN TILITIES SHOWN ILITIES SHOWN LITIES SHOWN ITIES SHOWN TIES SHOWN IES SHOWN ES SHOWN S SHOWN  SHOWN SHOWN HOWN OWN WN N COMPRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, OMPRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, MPRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, PRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, RISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, ISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, SE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, E ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA,  ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, LL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, L SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA,  SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, UCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, CH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, H UTILITIES IN THE AREA,  UTILITIES IN THE AREA, UTILITIES IN THE AREA, TILITIES IN THE AREA, ILITIES IN THE AREA, LITIES IN THE AREA, ITIES IN THE AREA, TIES IN THE AREA, IES IN THE AREA, ES IN THE AREA, S IN THE AREA,  IN THE AREA, IN THE AREA, N THE AREA,  THE AREA, THE AREA, HE AREA, E AREA,  AREA, AREA, REA, EA, A, , EITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE ITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE THER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE HER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE ER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE R IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE  IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE N SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE  SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE ERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE RVICE OR ABANDONED. THE VICE OR ABANDONED. THE ICE OR ABANDONED. THE CE OR ABANDONED. THE E OR ABANDONED. THE  OR ABANDONED. THE OR ABANDONED. THE R ABANDONED. THE  ABANDONED. THE ABANDONED. THE BANDONED. THE ANDONED. THE NDONED. THE DONED. THE ONED. THE NED. THE ED. THE D. THE . THE  THE THE HE E SURVEYOR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT URVEYOR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT RVEYOR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT VEYOR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT EYOR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT YOR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT OR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT R FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT  FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT URTHER DOES NOT WARRANT RTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THER DOES NOT WARRANT HER DOES NOT WARRANT ER DOES NOT WARRANT R DOES NOT WARRANT  DOES NOT WARRANT DOES NOT WARRANT OES NOT WARRANT ES NOT WARRANT S NOT WARRANT  NOT WARRANT NOT WARRANT OT WARRANT T WARRANT  WARRANT WARRANT ARRANT RRANT RANT ANT NT T THAT THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAT THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN AT THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN T THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN  THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN E UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN  UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN NDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN DERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN RGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN GROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ROUND UTILITIES SHOWN OUND UTILITIES SHOWN UND UTILITIES SHOWN ND UTILITIES SHOWN D UTILITIES SHOWN  UTILITIES SHOWN UTILITIES SHOWN TILITIES SHOWN ILITIES SHOWN LITIES SHOWN ITIES SHOWN TIES SHOWN IES SHOWN ES SHOWN S SHOWN  SHOWN SHOWN HOWN OWN WN N ARE IN THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED RE IN THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED E IN THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED  IN THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED IN THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED N THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED  THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED HE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED E EXACT LOCATION INDICATED  EXACT LOCATION INDICATED EXACT LOCATION INDICATED XACT LOCATION INDICATED ACT LOCATION INDICATED CT LOCATION INDICATED T LOCATION INDICATED  LOCATION INDICATED LOCATION INDICATED OCATION INDICATED CATION INDICATED ATION INDICATED TION INDICATED ION INDICATED ON INDICATED N INDICATED  INDICATED INDICATED NDICATED DICATED ICATED CATED ATED TED ED D ALTHOUGH HE DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY LTHOUGH HE DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY THOUGH HE DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY HOUGH HE DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY OUGH HE DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY UGH HE DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY GH HE DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY H HE DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY  HE DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY HE DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY E DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY  DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY OES CERTIFY THAT THEY ES CERTIFY THAT THEY S CERTIFY THAT THEY  CERTIFY THAT THEY CERTIFY THAT THEY ERTIFY THAT THEY RTIFY THAT THEY TIFY THAT THEY IFY THAT THEY FY THAT THEY Y THAT THEY  THAT THEY THAT THEY HAT THEY AT THEY T THEY  THEY THEY HEY EY Y ARE LOCATED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE RE LOCATED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE E LOCATED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE  LOCATED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE LOCATED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE OCATED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE CATED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE ATED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE TED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE ED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE D AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE  AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE S ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE  ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE CCURATELY AS POSSIBLE CURATELY AS POSSIBLE URATELY AS POSSIBLE RATELY AS POSSIBLE ATELY AS POSSIBLE TELY AS POSSIBLE ELY AS POSSIBLE LY AS POSSIBLE Y AS POSSIBLE  AS POSSIBLE AS POSSIBLE S POSSIBLE  POSSIBLE POSSIBLE OSSIBLE SSIBLE SIBLE IBLE BLE LE E FROM INFORMATION AVAILABLE. THE ROM INFORMATION AVAILABLE. THE OM INFORMATION AVAILABLE. THE M INFORMATION AVAILABLE. THE  INFORMATION AVAILABLE. THE INFORMATION AVAILABLE. THE NFORMATION AVAILABLE. THE FORMATION AVAILABLE. THE ORMATION AVAILABLE. THE RMATION AVAILABLE. THE MATION AVAILABLE. THE ATION AVAILABLE. THE TION AVAILABLE. THE ION AVAILABLE. THE ON AVAILABLE. THE N AVAILABLE. THE  AVAILABLE. THE AVAILABLE. THE VAILABLE. THE AILABLE. THE ILABLE. THE LABLE. THE ABLE. THE BLE. THE LE. THE E. THE . THE  THE THE HE E SURVEYOR HAS NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED URVEYOR HAS NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED RVEYOR HAS NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED VEYOR HAS NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED EYOR HAS NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED YOR HAS NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED OR HAS NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED R HAS NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED  HAS NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED HAS NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED AS NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED S NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED  NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED OT PHYSICALLY LOCATED T PHYSICALLY LOCATED  PHYSICALLY LOCATED PHYSICALLY LOCATED HYSICALLY LOCATED YSICALLY LOCATED SICALLY LOCATED ICALLY LOCATED CALLY LOCATED ALLY LOCATED LLY LOCATED LY LOCATED Y LOCATED  LOCATED LOCATED OCATED CATED ATED TED ED D THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES OTHER THAN HE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES OTHER THAN E UNDERGROUND UTILITIES OTHER THAN  UNDERGROUND UTILITIES OTHER THAN UNDERGROUND UTILITIES OTHER THAN NDERGROUND UTILITIES OTHER THAN DERGROUND UTILITIES OTHER THAN ERGROUND UTILITIES OTHER THAN RGROUND UTILITIES OTHER THAN GROUND UTILITIES OTHER THAN ROUND UTILITIES OTHER THAN OUND UTILITIES OTHER THAN UND UTILITIES OTHER THAN ND UTILITIES OTHER THAN D UTILITIES OTHER THAN  UTILITIES OTHER THAN UTILITIES OTHER THAN TILITIES OTHER THAN ILITIES OTHER THAN LITIES OTHER THAN ITIES OTHER THAN TIES OTHER THAN IES OTHER THAN ES OTHER THAN S OTHER THAN  OTHER THAN OTHER THAN THER THAN HER THAN ER THAN R THAN  THAN THAN HAN AN N THE STRUCTURE INVENTORY SHOWN HEREON.HE STRUCTURE INVENTORY SHOWN HEREON.E STRUCTURE INVENTORY SHOWN HEREON. STRUCTURE INVENTORY SHOWN HEREON.STRUCTURE INVENTORY SHOWN HEREON.TRUCTURE INVENTORY SHOWN HEREON.RUCTURE INVENTORY SHOWN HEREON.UCTURE INVENTORY SHOWN HEREON.CTURE INVENTORY SHOWN HEREON.TURE INVENTORY SHOWN HEREON.URE INVENTORY SHOWN HEREON.RE INVENTORY SHOWN HEREON.E INVENTORY SHOWN HEREON. INVENTORY SHOWN HEREON.INVENTORY SHOWN HEREON.NVENTORY SHOWN HEREON.VENTORY SHOWN HEREON.ENTORY SHOWN HEREON.NTORY SHOWN HEREON.TORY SHOWN HEREON.ORY SHOWN HEREON.RY SHOWN HEREON.Y SHOWN HEREON. SHOWN HEREON.SHOWN HEREON.HOWN HEREON.OWN HEREON.WN HEREON.N HEREON. HEREON.HEREON.EREON.REON.EON.ON.N..

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET MAG NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND MAG NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5570 MERRIT ROAD SOUTH 1/2 SEC. 30 YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP, WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERT/END SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE TV LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
"g

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
"w

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
  " r

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
"s

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U/G

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/H

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTREE LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
AP  APPLE APPLE AS  ASPEN ASPEN B  BIRCH BIRCH BB  BURNING BUSH BURNING BUSH BE  BOX ELDER BOX ELDER BIR  BIRCH BIRCH CA  CRAB APPLE CRAB APPLE CAT  CATALPA CATALPA CH  CHERRY CHERRY CS  CONIFEROUS SHRUB CONIFEROUS SHRUB CW  COTTONWOOD COTTONWOOD DS  DECIDUOUS SHRUB DECIDUOUS SHRUB DT  DECIDUOUS TREE DECIDUOUS TREE HICK  HICKORY HICKORY JP  JAPANESE PAGOTA JAPANESE PAGOTA LOC  LOCUST LOCUST M  MAPLE MAPLE P  PINE PINE SAS  SASSAFRAS SASSAFRAS SP  SPRUCE SPRUCE SYC  SYCAMORE SYCAMORE WIL  WILLOW WILLOW WAL  WALNUTWALNUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET WOOD LATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UUTILITY NOTE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE VALVE & BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SHUT OFF VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST INDICATOR VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY ANCHOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY CLEAN-OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.O.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLICE/EMERGENCY CALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY MARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPIGOT / HOSE BIB

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST INDICATOR VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
MW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONITORING WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC HAND HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC MARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC SIGNAL POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMUNICATION MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMUNICATION HAND HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMUNICATION MARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MB

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
FP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAG POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANTENNA

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATUE / SCULPTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC UNIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK/BOULDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASKETBALL POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROUND CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULVERT/END SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN SPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.O.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM CLEAN-OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEEHIVE CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
YARD DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCS

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS BLOW OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS STOP BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS MARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USTRUCTURE LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 812.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 812.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 807.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 802.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 803.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 807.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. BURIED

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 811.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 802.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 814.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 814.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 816.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
INV. 817.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYDRANT &

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"A

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"A

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"A

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"A

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"A

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"A

AutoCAD SHX Text
25"H

AutoCAD SHX Text
25"H

AutoCAD SHX Text
15"O

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"O

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"M

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"M

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"M

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"M

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"P

AutoCAD SHX Text
26"O

AutoCAD SHX Text
25"C

AutoCAD SHX Text
32"O

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"H

AutoCAD SHX Text
13"A

AutoCAD SHX Text
13"A

AutoCAD SHX Text
13"A

AutoCAD SHX Text
13"A

AutoCAD SHX Text
13"A

AutoCAD SHX Text
13"A

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL POINT SET REBAR 251250.10 13317655.29 812.47 NAVD88 GPS DERIVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL POINT SET REBAR 252159.27 13317607.35 819.39 NAVD88 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE SECTION 30 YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE SECTION 30 YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE SECTION 30 YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.E. CORNER SEC. 30 T3S, R7E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W. CORNER SEC. 30 T3S, R7E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.E. CORNER SEC. 30 T3S, R7E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER SEC. 30 T3S, R7E

AutoCAD SHX Text
K -11-30-400-018  WIARD, SCOTT & KAREN  Address: 5507 MERRITT RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
K -11-30-300-045  WIARD, SCOTT  Address: 5485 MERRITT RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
YP#30-12B-2A FOR A PLACE OF BEGINNING AT THE S 1/4 CORNER OF SEC 30, TH. N 89* 38' 30" W. 164.74FT., ALG THE S/LINE OF SEC 30, & THE C/LINE OF MERRITT RD., TH. N. 0* 25' 15' E. 1,319.00 FT., TH. S. 89* 38 30" E. 165.61 FT., PARALLEL WITH THE S. LINE OF SAID OF SAID SEC. TH. S 0* 27' 30" W. 1,319.00 FT., ALG THE N & S 1/4 OF SEC. TO THE P.O.B. BEING PART OF S/W 1/4 SEC 30 , T3S, R7E. CONT. 5.00 AC' SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS OF RECORD. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, COUNTY OF WASHTENAW, STATE OF MICHIGAN BEING FURTHER DESCRIBED AS: BEING A PART OF SOUTH1/2 OF SECTION 30, T3S R7E AND BEGINNING AT SOUTH 1/4 CORNER OF SAID SECTION 30 AT A FOUND IRON ROD IN MONUMENT BOX, AS RECORDED IN LC.R, C. LIBER 4, PAGE 177, WASHTENAW COUNTY RECORDS, TH N 00-16-30 E 1319.00 FT; TH N 89-48-45 W165.65 FT, MEASURED (N 89-38-30 W 165.61 FT, RECORDED); TH N 00-14-41 E 1333.95 FT, MEASURED (N 00-25-15 E 1334.39 FT, RECORDED); TH N 89-51-55 E 166.35 FT, MEASURED (N 89-57-00 E 166.49 FT, RECORDED); TH N 89-57-06 E,140.00 FT, TH S 00-16-29 W,2653.99 FT, TH S 89-59-51 W,140.00 FT TO THE POB CONTAINS 13.612 +/- AC SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD IF ANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WIDE ASPHALT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CULTIVATED CORN FIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED AND BRUSH AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' WIDE ASPHALT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING

KATHY
Typewritten Text
SP-02 EXISTING CONDITIONS





Arbor  Land
Consultants, Inc.

2936 S. Madrono
Ann Arbor, MI 48103

(734) 669-2960
Fax 669-2961

Professional Land
Surveyors

www.arborlandinc.com

ROYEVRUSLANOSEFORP

SN
EC

L I
ED

IS

II H

AG

N

CMFOETATS

24618
No.

SURVEYOR
PROFESSIONAL

SCHWIMMER
PAUL V.

C  MERRIT ROADL

PROPOSED EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKETCH OF EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND MAG NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET IRON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(C)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALCULATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET WOOD LATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
 14019

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-06-2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLD. BOOK:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FCM

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°09'27"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00°44'28"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
793.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°15'32"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.82'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00°44'28"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°15'32"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
130.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00°44'28"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S89°15'32"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
52.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S00°44'28"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
793.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°59'58"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00°44'28"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.E. CORNER SECTION 30 T3S, R7E

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
POB

AutoCAD SHX Text
Description of a 66 feet wide easement for ingress, egress, and public utilities. Commencing at the Southeast Corner of Section 30, Township 3 South, Range 7 East, Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, State of Michigan; thence N00°44'28"W 33.00 feet along the eastline of said Section for a Place of Beginning; thence S89°09'27"W 36.00 feet along a line33.00 feet north of, and parallel to, the South line of said Section 30; thence N00°44'28"W793.81 feet parallel to said Section line; thence S89°15'32"W 11.82 feet; thence N00°44'28"W66.00 feet; thence N89°15'32"E 130.00 feet;thence S00°44'28"E 66.00 feet; thenceS89°15'32"W 52.18 feet; thence S00°44'28"E793.61 feet along a line parallel to said Section Line; thence S88°59'58"W 30.00 feet along aline 33.00 feet northerly of, and parallel to, the south line of Section 29 of said Township to the Place of Beginning.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE SECTION 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST LINE SECTION 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE SECTION 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE SECTION 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.W. CORNER SECTION 29 T3S, R7E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST 1/4 COR SECTION 30 T3S, R7E

AutoCAD SHX Text
MACON ENGINEERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
5507 MERRITT ROAD SOUTH 1/2 SEC. 30 YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP, WASHTENAW COUNTY,  MICHIGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-29-2020































CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety  Planning & Zoning  Ordinance Enforcement  Police Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393 

 

 
To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Michael Radzik, OCS Director 
 

Re: Request to confirm authorization for circuit court litigation to abate public 
nuisances at 6480 Rawsonville Rd, 590 Calder Ave, 568 Onandaga Ave, 1433 
Harry St, and Paint Creek shopping center at 2040 Whittaker Rd funded in the 
amount of $50,000 in account 101-950.000-801.023 

 

Copy: McLain & Winters, Township Attorneys 
 

Date:  July 7, 2020 
 

The Office of Community Standards (OCS) has investigated and received information regarding 
public nuisances at the following locations for which administrative authorization was 
previously granted to engage legal services to abate said nuisances.  Confirmation of that 
authorization is now requested. 
 

6480 RAWSONVILLE RD 
This 2.7 acre industrial property owned by Remus Sulea of Ann Arbor is currently the subject of 
zoning and regulatory code enforcement after an OCS staff member recently noticed a major 
truck storage operation at the site.  Further investigation revealed the site had been graded and 
trees removed to create space to store semi-tractors and trailers without benefit of site plan or 
Planning Commission approval.  In addition, no permits were obtained to mass grade or remove 
trees from the site, and there appears to have been no engineering for storm water 
management or soil erosion control.  Even more disconcerting is that Mr. Sulea consulted with 
Planning & Development Coordinator Charlotte Wilson in July, 2019 after he purchased the 
property and demolished a condemned house following previous litigation with the former 
owner.  Mr. Sulea indicated he wanted to establish a commercial trucking operation, and was 
advised in writing that the property was not zoned properly for such use.  Ms. Wilson further 
provided advice on necessary steps to be taken to seek rezoning and site plan approval.  Mr. 
Sulea obviously ignored the advice and proceeded anyway.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393   ytown.org 

590 CALDER AVE 
This single family rental dwelling in West Willow is owned by Kevin Zimmerly of xxx and 
managed by Ray Smith of Ray Smith Real Estate in Ypsilanti.  The current tenant, Shannon 
Graves, has allowed a large amount of trash and household blight to accumulate on the 
property, was not mowing the grass, and had stored a disabled and partially dismantled vehicle 
in the driveway for a long time.  Numerous attempts to convince the tenant, and ultimately the 
landlord and agent, to abate the nuisances were met with no action by either party.  Both 
parties were cited in district court and the township eventually mowed the grass, removed the 
blight, and facilitated removal of the junk vehicle at a cost of $600.  Since then, the blight and 
trash accumulation has reoccurred, rats are observed nesting, and neither the tenant nor the 
landlord or agent have done anything to maintain the property or abate the nuisances.  I 
requested and obtained administrative authority to litigate the nuisance; the case has been 
filed and is pending in court. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
568 ONANDAGA AVE 
While investigating a recent complaint regarding the condition of this single family house in 
West Willow owned by James Massey of Ypsilanti Twp, OCS staff came to realize that it has 
probably been unoccupied for the better part of two decades or more.   Water service was 
terminated for unknown reasons in 2003, and the township has responded to numerous grass 
and blight complaints over the years.  The owner registered the vacant house in 2014 and 
pulled permits in 2017 to replace the roof and renovate the structure, however the work was 
never done.  The structure’s certificate of occupancy has been suspended until all property 
maintenance, blight and utility issues have been resolved.  It appears unlikely that the owner 
will be able to comply due to personal issues that prevent him from doing so.  Administrative 
authority was granted to initiate litigation, which is pending.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393   ytown.org 

1433 HARRY ST 
This single family house in the Sugarbrook neighborhood sustained significant fire damage on 
January 21, 2020 and has remained vacant and boarded up ever since.  The Fire Department 
was able to obtain $13,058 in insurance proceeds from State Farm, withheld to offset 
demolition costs if it becomes necessary.  The property owner, Shauntel Garland, has not 
responded to a request to register the vacant building and discuss his intentions to repair or 
demolish the structure.  As six months have now passed, I requested and obtained 
administrative authority to initiate litigation to abate the public nuisance.  If necessary, the 
court can grant use of the insurance funds to demolish the house and restore the property to 
grade with stabilized soil.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PAINT CREEK SOUTH, LLC – 2040 WHITTAKER RD 
OCS staff have responded to complaints about trash containers overflowing at the Paint Creek 
South shopping plaza at 2040 Whittaker Rd innumerable times over the past few years.  The 
issues regularly occur in the service alley at the far south end of the plaza, and sometimes in the 
service alley at the far west end of the plaza.  The primary source of items littered around 
dumpster enclosures seems to be area residents who unlawfully dump their trash and 
household items at the commercial plaza.  After numerous Notices of Violation and citations 
issued to the corporate owner, I recently received administrative authority to litigate the 
matter toward a permanent solution.  Planning Director Jason Iacoangeli reviewed the 
approved site plan and discovered that some dumpster enclosures were missing, and dumpster 
enclosures with locking gates were commonly left open and unattended at all hours.  Through 
circuit court, we will seek to enforce provisions of the site plan and add security cameras and 
signage to discourage illegal dumping. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety  Planning & Zoning  Ordinance Enforcement  Police Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393 

 

 
To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Michael Radzik, OCS Director 
 

Re: Request to confirm authorization for circuit court litigation to abate public 
nuisances by padlocking at 1339 Jeffery St, 730 Calder Ave, and 1564 Village 
Lane funded in the amount of $30,000 in account 101-950.000-801.023 

 

Copy: McLain & Winters, Township Attorneys 
 

Date:  July 8, 2020 
 

The Office of Community Standards (OCS) has investigated and received information regarding 
public nuisances at the following locations for which administrative authorization was 
previously granted to engage legal services to abate said nuisances.  Confirmation of that 
authorization is now requested. 
 

1339 JEFFERY ST 
This single family rental dwelling in the Gault Village neighborhood was the scene of an assault 
with a firearm on May 2, 2020 in broad daylight during the early afternoon hours.  Washtenaw 
County Sheriff’s deputies were called to the house by neighbors reporting that gunfire had 
erupted in the driveway during a fight between a man and a woman.  Police eventually arrested 
a 27-year-old woman from Romulus for aggravated felony assault with a firearm and recovered 
a loaded 9mm pistol and spent shell casings.  Further investigation revealed nearly forty (40) 
calls for police service to the location over the last three (3) years, many of which involved 
disorderly conduct and public nuisance behavior that disrupted neighbors on an ongoing basis.  
I personally spoke with neighbors who clearly expressed frustration and fear over ongoing 
disruptions and violence at the house, saying they were “fed up.”  After reviewing police 
reports with legal counsel, I requested and received administrative authority to initiate a public 
nuisance lawsuit seeking to padlock the house for up to one year due to firearms violence, one 
of seven types of crimes eligible for such action under state law.  The case is currently pending 
against the landlord, Christina Wright of Santa Fe, NM, who was caught by OCS staff renting the 
house without certification in May, 2018, shortly after the police calls started. 
  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393   ytown.org 

1564 VILLAGE LANE – VILLAGE GROVE APARTMENTS 
On April 15, 2020, this commercial apartment complex was the scene of a staged drug robbery 
during which two people were shot multiple times and narrowly escaped with their lives.  The 
apartment complex is owned by a corporation known as Village Grove 18, LLC, operated by Mr. 
Stewart Beal.  This is the same ownership group previously sued on a drug padlock case at 
Arbor One Apartments on LeForge Rd, and on a property maintenance case at the former Riley 
Court Apartments on East Michigan Ave. 
 
On the date in question, two men arrived at an apartment at 1564 Village Lane for a pre-
arranged purchase of cocaine and marijuana.  The intermediary who arranged the deal 
escorted them into the apartment, where they were locked inside and ambushed by two armed 
men who took their money.  The armed men fired multiple shots from an assault rifle and a 
pistol, hitting both victims multiple times as they lay on the floor pleading for their lives.  The 
victims escaped the apartment and fled, calling 9-1-1 on route to a nearby hospital.  
Responding deputies intercepted the victims and rendered aid, while other deputies arrived at 
the crime scene and secured it for evidence.  The victims ultimately survived their wounds after 
undergoing surgery, and have refused to prosecute their assailants, one of whom has since died 
in an unrelated incident. 
 
In addition to suing the property owner, legal counsel has also sued the property’s mortgage 
lender, Berkadia Commercial Mortgage, LLC, and the absentee tenant of the subject apartment, 
Tanesha Hurt.  It was reported to police that Ms. Hurt left the apartment several months prior 
to the incident and notified management that she would not return.  The apartment had 
apparently been left open and unsecure for 90 days or more up until the shooting occurred.   
 
After reviewing police reports and obtaining clearance from the sheriff’s office, I requested and 
was granted administrative authority to initiate litigation to abate the public nuisance by 
padlocking the apartment for up to one year under state law.  Both drug trafficking and 
firearms violence are types of crimes eligible for such abatement action.  The case has been 
filed and is pending resolution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393   ytown.org 

730 CALDER AVE 
This single family rental dwelling in the West Willow neighborhood was the scene of firearms 
violence during the early morning hours of April 19, 2020.  Washtenaw County sheriff’s 
deputies responded to the area when numerous neighbors reported hearing multiple gunshots 
at 3:39 AM.  Numerous deputies established a perimeter in the area of Calder, Seneca and Tyler 
roads as gunshots rang out in the darkness.  With help from residents, they eventually were 
able to locate and encounter two men outside the house at 730 Calder Ave, both of whom fled 
inside when confronted.  Deputies were eventually able to talk the men out of the house and 
into protective custody, and then entered the house to conduct a protective sweep looking for 
potential gunshot victims.  Inside the house, police discovered three small children ranging in 
age from 5 to 12 years old, each of whom were delivered to safety by police.  Once the crime 
scene was secure and all occupants of the house were accounted for, deputies obtained a 
search warrant to further the investigation. 
 
Deputies recovered a total of 35 spent shell casings on the ground, and confiscated two pistols 
from inside the house, along with ammunition matching the shell casings found outside and 
empty liquor bottles.  The ensuing investigation determined that one of the men living at the 
house had fired 24 shots from a .45 pistol while intoxicated and caring for the minor children.  
The other man, who was visiting the house, had fired 11 shots from a 9mm pistol.  Both men 
were charged with a variety of felony crimes, including reckless discharge, felon in possession 
of a firearm, use of a firearm while intoxicated, and child neglect.  Child Protective Services was 
notified to investigate the living conditions and safety of the minor children.   
 
This incident consumed the entire police patrol staff on the midnight shift for several hours, 
and disrupted the peace and quiet of the neighborhood.  Police records show other previous 
calls to the house in 2019-20, as well as several ordinance complaints.  Upon reviewing police 
reports, I requested and received administrative authority to initiate litigation seeking to abate 
the public nuisance by padlocking the house for up to one year due to firearms violence 
pursuant to state law.  The lawsuit was filed and an order was entered by the court declaring 
the property a public nuisance, ordering the removal of the tenant, and ordering it padlocked.  
The landlord, Dahabra Mouhanad of Canton Township, owns six other rental properties in 
Ypsilanti Twp and is currently seeking to modify the order in his favor.  The tenant defendant, 
L.V. Jackson Jr, has not contested the order. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
July 14, 2020 
 
 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Supervisor Brenda Stumbo and Trustee Board 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
 
 
In service to the Township, I am requesting at the July 21, 2020 Township Board regular meeting to 
present the following item(s) for consideration:   
 
 

Request to waive the financial policy and accept the proposal from Lowe’s for replacement 
kitchen cabinets and countertops at Fire HQ – 222 S. Ford Blvd and replacement cabinets 
and countertop at 20 S. Hewitt – Station #3 in the amount of $25, 553.09 budgeted in line 
206-970-000-971-008 CAPITAL OUTLAY/IMPROVEMENT in FY 2020 - FIRE FUND 
206.  
 

See proposal attachments:   
 
 A – Lowes proposal including design, granite counters, applicable discounts. 
 B – Home Depot proposal including design, granite counters, applicable discounts. 
 C – Menards proposal including design, quarts counters, applicable discounts. 
 D – Rencor Inc. quote for cabinet installation & dishwasher, w/dumpster. 

 
 
 
Per the FY 2020 Capital Outlay/Improvement project to replace existing cabinetry, countertop, and 
appliances at Fire HQ-Ford Blvd and Station #3-Hewitt kitchens. The new cabinetry include an upgrade 
to plywood construction a change from the pressed or particleboard construction for durability purposes.  
 
The countertop quote for Lowe’s / Home Depot is for an A/B grade granite, Menards only offers laminate 
or quartz comparable, countertop installation pricing with sink base included for all proposals.  
 
All kitchen designs done in-store exact measurements done prior to ordering. Discount expiration dates 
impacted by the order date, Lowe’s to hold discount pricing (20% up to $10K or 30% over $10K) not so 
with Home Depot and Menards. Save freight charge of $350 per order when combining purchase to same 
delivery site.  
 

 
Office (734) 544-4225 
Fire Chief (734) 544-4110 
Fire Marshal (734) 544-4107 
Fax (734) 544-4195 
 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
222 SOUTH FORD BOULEVARD 

YPSILANTI, MICHIGAN  48198-6067 



Great will be the total cost savings for these projects by purchasing replacement cabinets and contracting 
the installation. To increase savings all the (Big Box) designers advised to seek an outside installer that I 
have secured. Paul Brenner, of Rencor Inc. has quoted $980 for Hewitt, and $1960 for Fire HQ to install 
owner provided cabinets and hardware at both locations and put in contractor provided dumpster for tear 
out cabinets. FD staff will do the removal of existing cabinets at Hewitt. The flooring at Fire HQ kitchen 
replacement at cabinet removal and prior to installation of new cabinetry. No change in flooring at Hewitt.  
 
Initial cost estimates for Kitchen replacement cabinetry, countertop, and flooring for Fire HQ per the spec 
development and contractor bid process were in the $50K range. Utilizing the Big Box design processors, 
purchasing incentives, and securing an installer I can roll the savings and complete the Hewitt project too. 

 
  

Thank You, 
 
 

Eric Copeland 
Fire Chief 

 
ERC;   
 
 
 

















































 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Mike Hoffmeister, Director – Residential Services Department 
 
DATE:  June 30, 2020 
 
RE: Request authorization to waive the bidding portion of the financial policy 

due to the equipment being a stock model tractor and award the low quote to 

Bader & Sons to purchase a new John Deere Utility Tractor for $42,253.11 

budgeted in line #101-774-000-977.000 
 
The Residential Services Department is requesting the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees to 
consider authorization to waive the bidding portion of the financial policy and accept the low 
quote to Bader & Sons to purchase a new John Deere Utility Tractor for $42,253.11 budgeted in 
line #101-774-000-977.000.   
 
Roadside and empty lot mowing is a large task for our Parks & Grounds staff on an annual basis.  
Our existing 1999 tractor is in need of repairs which would cost approximately $20,000.  
Because of these required repairs, the tractor has been left idle and much of the mowing 
normally completed by the tractor has either been contracted out or completed with less efficient 
equipment.  Our Parks & Ground staff have quoted a number of tractor options so that 
comparisons could be made between the costs of replacement vs. the cost of repair. Through this 
process, staff found a vendor, Bader & Sons, that will accept our 1999 tractor as a trade in valued 
at $12,000 to be put towards the price of the new tractor. 
 
Please find attached this memorandum the quotes for both replacement and repair related to our 
roadside mowing tractor.      
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Mike Hoffmeister 
Director of Residential Services 
 
 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Residential Services Department 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484-0073 
Fax:  (734)544-3501 

 
www.ytown.org 

  

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 
MONICA ROSS-WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 
 

 

http://www.ytown.org/
























































CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

RESOLUTION 2020-14 

In Support of US-12/M-17 (Wiard to I-94) Improvements 

 

WHEREAS, US-12/M-17 is under the jurisdiction of the Michigan Department of Transportation 
(MDOT) throughout its entire length between Wiard Road and Interstate 94 (I-94) within the 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti; and 

WHEREAS, this section of US-12 connects to other roadways owned by MDOT such as the Ecorse 
Ave (M-17); and 

WHEREAS, other roadways are located in the MDOT Right-of-Way such as Service Drive are 
under the jurisdiction of the Washtenaw County Road Commission (WCRC) as well as other 
roads that intersect with both US-12 and M-17; and 

WHEREAS, the WCRC is assisting the Township by administering funds dedicated to improving 
this corridor including but not limited to road reconfiguration, lighting, landscaping, and signage 
enhancements spent on MDOT trunkline and;  

WHEREAS, the WCRC engaged a consulting firm, OHM Advisors, to study various options to 
assess the existing road configuration and assess feasibility to utilize budgeted funds specifically 
earmarked for this section of MDOT trunkline.  The focus of these funds is to promote overall 
safety, pedestrian connectivity and improved traffic patterns while also enhancing aesthetics 
and facilitate regional wayfinding.    

WHEREAS, the study focused on key goals which include;  

1. Slower speeds, especially EB US-12 traffic 
2. Minimize cut through traffic in the West Willow Sub from US-12 to Wiard Road 
3. Add safety improvements for motorists via streetlights, new pavement markings, and by 

removing freeway look to US-12 by removing the grade separation bridge and ramp 
type merge lanes that give the area a freeway feel 

4. Add safety improvements for pedestrians by adding sidewalk connectivity and 
designated lighted road/pedestrian crossing locations 

5. Add beautification elements via landscaping and mast arm traffic signals 
6. Promote better direction for the motorists by adding wayfinding signs 

 

WHEREAS, a concept figure (Attached) was developed as a basis of design to submit with the 
study for MDOT review; and 

WHEREAS, the project is incorporating improvements being coordinated with DTE that are 
already under way which include new streetlights along US-12 from Wiard Road to the 
Washtenaw County line (Phase 1) and along EB and WB US-12 from the end of the I-94 ramps to 
Wiard Road (Phase 2).  Additional Lights are also planned along Ecorse Road from US-12 to Ford 
Blvd, and along the WB ramp from US-12 to Ecorse Road (Phase 2). 

WHEREAS, the concept developed proposes sections of existing roadway will be removed in 
order to simplify the roadway.  These removal sections include: 

1. The Dorset connection from south of Ecorse Road to EB US-12 
2. The EB Ecorse bridge and ramp to EB US-12 
3. The Onandaga connector between EB US-12 and WB US-12 

 

WHEREAS, new sections of roadway are planned to be constructed which include  

1. A connector from Ecorse Road to WB and EB US-12 
2. Two new boulevard style crossovers to be added, one from EB US-12 to WB US-12, and 

the other from WB US-12 to EB US-12 
3. New road connection from WB US-12 to Ecorse Road 

 
WHEREAS, new traffic signals are being planned in the design which include four (4) intersection 
traffic signals with mast arm improvements These include improvements at: 

1. Intersection of Ford Blvd and Ecorse Road 



2. Intersection of Ecorse Road and WB US-12, Ecorse Road and EB US-12 (considered one 
traffic signal)  

3. Intersection of Crossover EB/WB US-12 and WB US-12 if warranted and approved by 
MDOT 

4. Intersection of US-12 and Wiard Road 
5. Other signals as warranted and approved by MDOT 

 

WHEREAS pedestrian facilities are being planned which include new sidewalk to help better 
control pedestrian traffic.  Improvements include: 

1. New sidewalk to be placed along the south side of the I-94 Service Drive from Dorset St 
to Hudson St 

2. New sidewalk crossing of US-12 at the intersection of Ecorse Road and connectivity to 
Ford Blvd via new sidewalk along the west side of the Ecorse connector to Ford 
Blvd.  The sidewalk will continue west on the south side of Ecorse Road to Hayes St. 

 
WHEREAS, landscaping is planned in the vicinity of the Ecorse/US-12 intersection area, and near 
Wiard Road and at various places along the US-12 project area; and 

WHEREAS, maintenance of this landscaping will be the responsibility of the Township; and 

WHEREAS, new wayfinding signs will be placed along the US-12 and Ecorse roadways possibly 
highlighting ACM, Willow Airport, Metro Airport, Ann Arbor, Depot Town pending approval from 
MDOT; and 

WHEREAS, maintenance of wayfinding signs will be the responsibility of the Township; and 

WHEREAS, new roadway striping along US-12 from the end of the I-94 Ramps to Wiard Road 
(possibly to Ecorse Road/ County Line); and 

WHEREAS, the preliminary study and geometrics provided have been considered by the 
Township and adjacent neighborhoods and presentations were made with opportunities for 
comment on the following dates: 

 

1. Oct. 4, 2019 – Brainstorming meeting with Stakeholders to come up with concepts. 
2. Oct. 29, 2019 – Public meeting to present three concepts (5-lane hwy with signals, 

4-lane blvd with signals, 4-lane blvd with roundabouts). 
3. Dec. 9, 2019 – Update meeting with Stakeholders to present Preferred Alternative 

(variation on 4-lane blvd with signals). 
4. Dec. 12, 2019 – Public meeting to present Preferred Alternative. 
5. Several other meetings with individuals and the Township to explain, modify and 

adjust the Preferred Alternative to its current as depicted in the attached concept 
figure (attached). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby asks MDOT to 
consider the preliminary study, traffic model prepared by OHM and allow for these 
improvements to US-12 / M-17 contemplated therein, with any such minor refinements deemed 
necessary by MDOT staff, WCRC or Township, including any necessary striping, signage or signal 
modifications, using funds dedicated to improving this corridor and section of roadway and for 
these improvements to be set forth in subsequent contract documents.   

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
TO:  Township Board 
 
FROM: Brenda Stumbo and Larry Doe 
 
RE: Request for Approval of MDOT Resolution for Phase II of Road 

Improvements for US 12 from I-94 to Wiard Road and the Ecorse/Ford 
Blvd. Intersection 

 
This agenda item is a request to adopt a resolution with two exhibits attached for Phase II 
of Road Improvements for US 12, including I-94 to Wiard Rd. and the Ecorse Rd/Ford 
Blvd. intersection. Phase 1 improvements were approved by the Board earlier this year 
and include street lighting from Wiard Rd. to Ecorse Rd. The proposal for Phase II of this 
$8,000,000 MDOT Grant that was obtained by State Representative Peterson is being 
administered by Washtenaw County Road Commission who retained the professional 
services of OHM as the Engineer Designers for the project. 
 
This improvement is a result of an MDOT promise to review the neighborhood traffic 
impacts of the extensive road work in the “right sizing of US 12”. The original change in 
road design also helped to locate the American Center for Mobility that includes a test 
track for autonomous vehicle research on the 300 acres of land in which the historic and 
iconic Willow Run Assembly Plant was located.  There has been several community 
meetings held in West Willow, discussion at several Neighborhood Watch meetings as 
well as several meetings with road commission and MDOT representatives regarding this 
grant and proposed improvements.       
 
This road change had the greatest concern from residents for safety, as the east and west 
traffic was combined with no barrier between the two way flows of traffic except a 
rumble strip.    
 
Information has been disbursed by Robin Castle-Hine to the West Willow Safety 
Committee and it is being discussed at NHW zoom meetings. Information has also been 
placed on ytown.org for review.  
 
Should you have any questions please let me, Larry Doe or Matt Parks know. 
 
 

 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
SUPERVISOR’S OFFICE 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 481.0617 
Fax:  (734) 484.0002 

www.ytown.org 
  

Supervisor 

BRENDA L. STUMBO 
Clerk 

KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 
Treasurer 

LARRY J. DOE 
Trustees 

STAN ELDRIDGE 
HEATHER ROE 

MONICA ROSS-WILLIAMS 
JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

 

 

http://www.ytown.org/


US-12 TRANSPORTATION
IMPROVEMENT STUDY

OPTION Y-2
4 LANE BOULEVARD

WITH TRAFFIC SIGNALS

LEGEND

PUBLIC ROAD
RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED MAST
ARM TRAFFIC SIGNAL

PROPOSED
SIDEWALK

PROPOSED
PAVEMENT AREA

LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING
IMPROVEMENTS INCLUDED

WITH THIS OPTION

EXISTING ROAD
REMOVAL

TRAFFIC FLOW
ARROW

EXISTING ROADWAY
(NO IMPROVEMENTS)

kreschke
Text Box
FORD RD
INTERSECTION

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow



FORD BLVD

ECORSE RD

GA
TE

S 
AV

E DO
RS

ET
 A

VE FO
X 

AV
E

CA
LD

ER
 S

T

SENECA ST

EU
GE

NE
 S

T

ON
AN

DA
GA

 S
T

NA
SH

 A
VE

DE
SO

TO
 A

VE

HU
DS

ON
 S

T

W
IA

RD
 R

D

OH
IO

 S
T

PARKWOOD AVE

HA
YE

S 
ST

KA
NS

AS
 A

VE GI
LL

 S
T

I-9
4 S

ER
V I

CE R
D

US-12 TRANSPORTATION
IMPROVEMENT STUDY

OPTION Y-2
4 LANE BOULEVARD

WITH TRAFFIC SIGNALS

LEGEND

PUBLIC ROAD
RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED MAST
ARM TRAFFIC SIGNAL

PROPOSED
SIDEWALK

PROPOSED
PAVEMENT AREA

LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING
IMPROVEMENTS INCLUDED

WITH THIS OPTION

EXISTING ROAD
REMOVAL

TRAFFIC FLOW
ARROW

EXISTING ROADWAY
(NO IMPROVEMENTS)

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Image

kreschke
Text Box
DETAIL A
MAST ARM TRAFFIC SIGNAL EXAMPLE

kreschke
Rectangle

kreschke
Callout
SEE DETAIL A

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Callout
PROPOSED SIDEWALK

kreschke
Callout
REMOVE EXISTING ROAD

kreschke
Image

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Arrow

kreschke
Callout
RAMP WILL BE RESTRIPED TO BE ONE LANE



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-16 
2020 MICHIGAN LAND AND WATER CONSERVATION FUND DEVELOPMENT 

GRANT FOR COMMUNITY CENTER PARK 

 

 WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, in Washtenaw County 

Michigan, supports the submission of an application titled, “Community Center 

Park Improvements” to the Land and Water Conservation Fund for development 

of new tennis and pickleball courts at Community Center Park; and, 

 WHEREAS, the proposed application is supported by the Community’s 5-

Year Approved Parks and Recreation Plan; and, 

 WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti is hereby making a 

financial commitment to the project in the amount of $176,200 matching funds, in 

cash and/or force account; and 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of 

Ypsilanti hereby authorizes submission of a Land and Water Conservation Fund 

Application for $176,200, and further resolves to make available its financial 

obligation amount of $176,200 (50%) of a total $352,400 project cost, during the 

2021-2022 fiscal year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Mike Hoffmeister, Director – Residential Services Department 
 
DATE:  June 30, 2020 
 
RE: Request authorization of resolution for the 2020 Michigan Land and Water 

Conservation Fund Development Grant for Community Center Park. 
 
The Residential Services Department is requesting the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees to 
consider authorization of the resolution for the 2020 Michigan Land and Water Conservation 
Fund Development Grant for Community Center Park Improvements.  This resolution was 
originally passed at the March 3, 2020 Board of Trustees meeting, but it was discovered that staff 
did not complete exactly what mDNR expects for this type of grant application.  Additionally, 
COVID has allowed mDNR to give some flexibility on their application process this year.  
Therefore we are bringing this back to the Board of Trustees this evening.       
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Mike Hoffmeister 
Director of Residential Services 
 
 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Residential Services Department 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484-0073 
Fax:  (734)544-3501 

 
www.ytown.org 

  

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 
MONICA ROSS-WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 
 

 

http://www.ytown.org/


WARE CT

HOLMES RD

M
ID
W
A
Y
 S
T

S
P
E
N
C
E
R
 LN

E
M
E
R
S
O
N
 A
V
E

O
U
T
E
R
 L
N

CLARKRD

C
E
N
T
E
N
N
IA
L 
A
V
E

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

STAMFORDRD

NO

TT
IN
G
H
A
M
DR

F
O
R
D
 B
LV

D

D
A
W
N
 S
T

FOREST AVE

OAK ST

HUNTER
AV
E

REDLEAF
LN

HOLMES RD

CLARK
RD

PANAMAAV
E

M
ID
W
A
Y
 S
T

P
A
S
A
D
E
N
A
 S
T

W
IARD BLVD

LA
M
A
Y
 A
V
E

JE
R
O
M
E
 A
V
E

A
LLE

N
 R
D

BUDAVE

HARVEST LN

G
R
A
N
D
 B
LV

D

S
P
E
N
C
E
R
 LN

ECO
RSE

RD

EC
OR

SE
RD

MIC
HIG

AN 
AVE

MIC
HIG

AN 
AVE

EC
OR

SE

RD

LEGEND

COUNTY ROADS

LOCAL ROADS

Park Boundary

P
A
T
H
: L
:\P

R
O
J2
01
9\
12
76
18
S
G
20
19
 -
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 C
E
N
T
E
R
 P
A
R
K
 G
R
A
N
T
\D
E
S
IG
N
\C
O
N
C
E
P
T
_C

O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
_C

E
N
T
E
R
\C
O
N
C
E
P
T
_C

O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
_C

E
N
T
E
R
.A
P
R
X
, P

R
IN
T
E
D
 O
N
: 2
/1
1/
20
20
,  
B
Y
: K

E
V
IN
W

AREA MAP
NOT TO SCALE

0 100 20050
FEET

THE WORK REPRESENTED BY THIS DRAWING WAS DESIGNED BY THE ENGINEER FOR THIS
SPECIFIC APPLICATION AND SPECIFIC LOCATION DESCRIBED HEREON IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE CONDITIONS PREVALENT AT THE TIME THE DESIGN WAS DONE.  THE ENGINEER
DOES NOT GUARANTEE AND WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY OTHER LOCATION, CONDITION,
DESIGN OR PURPOSE.

DATEREVISIONSMARKBY

FEBRUARY 2020DATE:
SCALE:

STDS.

PROJECT NO.

FILE NO.
SHEET                OF

DE. BY:
DR. BY:

CH. BY:
APP. BY:

1":100'

127617SG2019

1                1 DR
1

XXX
XXX

KJW
KJW

LW20-0015
CONCEPT PLAN

COMMUNITY CENTER PARK
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

DUNDEE OFFICE
125 Helle Blvd, Suite 2
Dundee, MI 48131
Tel. 734-823-3308
www.SpicerGroup.com

COMMUNITY CENTER PARK
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YSPILANTI

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN

PROPOSED PAVED PATHWAY FROM
HANDICAP-ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACES TO COURTS.

PROPOSED REPLACEMENT OF TENNIS
COURTS WITH NEW TENNIS AND
PICKLEBALL COURTS. INCLUDES PLAYING
SURFACE, TENNIS AND PICKLEBALL
EQUIPMENT, FENCIGN, AND GATES.

CONSTRUCT PAVED HANDICAP-
ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES.
FIVE SPACES AND THREE ACCESS
AISLES. PAVED AREA WILL BE
63' X 18'

EXISTING PLAYSCAPE
EXISTING BASEBALL DIAMONDS (4 EA)

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN PLANTED WITH
NATIVE WILDFLOWERS AND SHRUBS

PROPOSED WASTE/RECYCLE STATION

PROPOSED WASTE/RECYCLE STATION

PROPOSED UNIVERSALLY ACCESSIBLE BENCH



memo 
 

To: Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 

From:  David Streeter, Chair, Ypsilanti Township Park Commission 

CC:  Michael Hoffmeister 

Date: 07/07/2020 

Re: Recommendation from the Ypsilanti Township Park Commission 

Community Center Park Land and Water Conservation Fund Grand Application 

 The following motion was approved during the 07/06/2020 Ypsilanti Township Park Commission 
meeting:  

 

 Recommend the Township Board of Trustees adopt a resolution to authorize submittal of a Land 
and Water Conservation Fund grant through the MDNR for tennis court improvements at 
Community Center Park. The resolution also commits to the required local match. Total project 
cost is estimated at $352,400. This grant has a 50% local match requirement so the grant will 
fund $176,200 and will require $176,200 of local funds.  

 
The tennis courts at Community Center Park have deteriorated to the point they are unsafe for use. The proposed 
improvements project is consistent with our Parks and Recreation Master Plan. 

 

 

  



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-17 
2020 MICHIGAN RECREATION PASSPORT GRANT FOR CLUBVIEW PARK 

 

 WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, in Washtenaw County 

Michigan, supports the submission of an application titled, “Clubview Park 

Improvements” to the Recreation Passport Grant Program for development of 

new tennis and pickleball courts at Clubview Park; and, 

 WHEREAS, the proposed application is supported by the Community’s 5-

Year Approved Parks and Recreation Plan; and, 

 WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti is hereby making a 

financial commitment to the project in the amount of $99,500 matching funds, in 

cash and/or force account; and 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of 

Ypsilanti hereby authorizes submission of a Land and Water Conservation Fund 

Application for $150,000, and further resolves to make available its financial 

obligation amount of $99,500 of a total $249,500 project cost, during the 2021-

2022 fiscal year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Mike Hoffmeister, Director – Residential Services Department 
 
DATE:  June 30, 2020 
 
RE: Request authorization of resolution for the 2020 Michigan Recreation 

Passport Grant for Clubview Park Improvements 
 
The Residential Services Department is requesting the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees to 
consider authorization of the resolution for the 2020 Michigan Land and Water Conservation 
Fund Development Grant for Community Center Park Improvements.  This resolution was 
originally passed at the March 3, 2020 Board of Trustees meeting, but it was discovered that staff 
did not complete exactly what mDNR expects for this type of grant application.  Additionally, 
COVID has allowed mDNR to give some flexibility on their application process this year.  
Therefore we are bringing this back to the Board of Trustees this evening.       
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Mike Hoffmeister 
Director of Residential Services 
 
 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Residential Services Department 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484-0073 
Fax:  (734)544-3501 

 
www.ytown.org 

  

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 
MONICA ROSS-WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 
 

 

http://www.ytown.org/


C
LU

B
V
IE
W
 S
T

EDIS
ON

ST

FA
IR
H
ILLS

 D
R

MAZIN CT

GREENSIDE ST

ROANOAKE DR

COLON
YWAY

GOLFV
IEWDR

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

E
D
IS
O
N
 S
T

H
E
W
IT
T
 R
D

H
IL
LC

R
E
S
T
 B
LV

D

C
LU

B
V
IE
W

S
T

MAZINCT

C
A
R
R
IA
G
E
W
A
Y

BURNS ST

G
R
E
E
N
S
ID
E
S
T

ELLSWORTH RD

COLONY
WAY

FA
IR
H
ILLS

D
R

G
O
LF

S
ID
E
 D
R

MERRILL ST

G
O
LF
V
IE

W
DR

MCKINLEY AVE

HARDING AVE

DRAPER AVE

LEGEND

COUNTY ROADS

Park Boundary

P
A
T
H
: L
:\P

R
O
J2
01
9\
12
76
17
S
G
20
19
 -
 C
LU

B
V
IE
W
 P
A
R
K
 G
R
A
N
T
\D
E
S
IG
N
\C
O
N
C
E
P
T
_C

LU
B
V
IE
W
\C
O
N
C
E
P
T
_C

LU
B
V
IE
W
.A
P
R
X
, P

R
IN
T
E
D
 O
N
: 2
/1
1/
20
20
,  
B
Y
: K

E
V
IN
W

AREA MAP
NOT TO SCALE

0 50 10025
FEET

THE WORK REPRESENTED BY THIS DRAWING WAS DESIGNED BY THE ENGINEER FOR THIS
SPECIFIC APPLICATION AND SPECIFIC LOCATION DESCRIBED HEREON IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE CONDITIONS PREVALENT AT THE TIME THE DESIGN WAS DONE.  THE ENGINEER
DOES NOT GUARANTEE AND WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY OTHER LOCATION, CONDITION,
DESIGN OR PURPOSE.

DATEREVISIONSMARKBY

FEBRUARY 2020DATE:
SCALE:

STDS.

PROJECT NO.

FILE NO.
SHEET                OF

DE. BY:
DR. BY:

CH. BY:
APP. BY:

1":50'

127617SG2019

1                1 DR
1

XXX
XXX

KJW
KJW

RP20-0025
CONCEPT PLAN

CLUBVIEW PARK
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI

DUNDEE OFFICE
125 Helle Blvd, Suite 2
Dundee, MI 48131
Tel. 734-823-3308
www.SpicerGroup.com

CLUBVIEW PARK
WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN

YPSILANTI CHARTER TOWNSHIP

EXISTING PATH IMPROVEMENTS INCLUDES
FRESH COMPACTED AND CRUSHED LIMESTONE,
GRADED FOR UNIVERSAL ACCESSIBILITY.
PATH WILL BE MINIMUM 6 FEET WIDE.

REMOVE TENNIS COURTS AND REPLACE
WITH NEW TENNIS AND PICKLEBALL
COURTS. INCLUDES PLAYING SURFACE,
EQUIPMENT, FENCING, AND GATES

PROPOSED ENTRANCE IMPROVEMENT
INCLUDES FRESH COMPACTED CRUSHED
LIMESTONE, GRADED FOR UNIVERSAL
ACCESSIBILITY

PROPOSED RAIN GARDEN PLANTED WITH
NATIVE WILDFLOWERS AND SHRUBS

PROPOSED UNIVERSALLY ACCESSIBLE BENCHPROPOSED UNIVERSALLY ACCESSIBLE BENCH

PROPOSED WASTE/RECYCLE STATIONPROPOSED WASTE/RECYCLE STATION

PROPOSED WASTE/RECYCLE STATIONPROPOSED WASTE/RECYCLE STATION



memo 
 

To: Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 

From:  David Streeter, Chair, Ypsilanti Township Park Commission 

CC:  Michael Hoffmeister 

Date: 07/06/2020 

Re: Recommendation from the Ypsilanti Township Park Commission 

Clubview Park Recreation Passport Grant Application 

 The following motion was approved during the 07/06/2020 Ypsilanti Township Park Commission 
meeting:  

 

 Recommend the Township Board of Trustees adopt a resolution to authorize submittal of a 
Recreation Passport grant through the MDNR for tennis court improvements at Clubview Park. 
The resolution also commits to the required local match. Total project cost is estimated at 
$249,500. This grant has a maximum request of $150,000 so the required local match will be in 
the amount of $99,500.  

 

The tennis courts at Clubview Park have deteriorated to the point they are unsafe for use. The proposed 
improvements project is consistent with our Parks and Recreation Master Plan. 

 

  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2020 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8 

July 21, 2020

AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

212 - BIKE, SIDEWALK, REC, ROADS GENERAL FUND (BSRII) Total Increase $0.00

Expenditures: Repairs - Ford Lake Park 212-212-000-931.775 $2,175.00

Net Revenues $2,175.00

Expenditures: Park Improvements 212-970-000-975.795 ($2,175.00)

Net Expenditures ($2,175.00)

236 - 14 B DISTRICT COURT FUND $1,656.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 236-000-000-699.000 $1,656.00

Net Revenues $1,656.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out - PTO & Sick 236-136-000-708.004 $1,538.00
FICA 236-136-000-715.000 $118.00

Net Expenditures $1,656.00

Request to increase budget for PTO payout request of 80  hours to be paid at 75%.  This will be funded by an 
Appropriation for Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request a line transfer between cost centers for stormwater pipe replacement at Loonfeather Park. This line 
transfer will not effect the budgeted number total for the fund.

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2020 Budget (#8)  
 
 

 
 

Move to authorize a line transfer between cost centers in the BRS II Fund and approve 
the department line item changes as outlined. 

 
Move to increase the 14 B District Court Fund budget by $1,656 to $1,781,421 and 

approve the department line item changes as outlined. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Mike Hoffmeister, Director – Residential Services Department 
 
DATE:  July 13, 2020 
 
RE: Request authorization to award the solid waste, recycling and yard waste bid 

to Waste Management. 
 
The Residential Services Department is requesting the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees to 
consider authorization to award the solid waste, recycling and yard waste bid to Waste 
Management.  Township Staff and elected officials have studied greatly the six bid packages 
received.  After receiving the six bids, staff requested further information from two (2) bidders; 
Waste Management and GFL.  After more deliberation and after receiving further information, 
Waste Management seems to be the right choice for the residents of Ypsilanti Township.   
 
Please find attached the two bid packages from Waste Management and GFL as well as 
additional supporting information and documentation from throughout the process. 
 
Please note that the current contract ends on September 30, 2020.  Staff will come back to the 
Board of Trustees to approve the contract.   
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Mike Hoffmeister 
Director of Residential Services 
 
 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Residential Services Department 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484-0073 
Fax:  (734)544-3501 

 
www.ytown.org 

  

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 
MONICA ROSS-WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 
 

 

http://www.ytown.org/


June 17, 2020

Michael Hoffmeister, Residential Services Director
Charter Township of Ypsilanti
7200 S. Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, MI  48917

Mr. Hoffmeister,

Following are the responses from WM on the follow up questions from the Solid Waste, Recycle 
and Yard Waste services bid proposal.  Please advise if there are any further questions or 
clarifications.  We are hopeful that WM has provided the services, offered pricing that will allow 
us to retain the environmental solutions contract.  Thank you for this opportunity.

WASTE MANAGEMENT
DETROIT CENTRAL
19200 W. Eight Mile Road
Southfield, MI  48075
(248) 204-0829 - Office
(248) 473-7603 Fax



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Solid Waste, Recycle and Yard Waste Pickup 

Bid Opening: Friday, June 5, 2020 at 2:00pmpm 
   

1 

  
Company 

Name 

Bid Amount 
 per Month 

 
Bid Amount per 

Year 

 
Recyclable Processing 

Fee 

 
No 

Collusion 
Affidavit 

 
Addendum  

1-5 
 

Performance 
Bond or 
Letter of 
Surety 

Labor 
and 

Materials 
Bond or 
Letter of 
Surety 

Bid Bond 

 
GFL 

$210,868.20 $2,530,418.40 $93.00 per ton (Less 
80% Market Value of 

Commodity 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Waste Mgmt 
 

$13.49 + 
Recycle 

Processing 
Fee 

$203,914.84 Per 
Month Year One + 
Recycle Processing 

Fee 

$1.63 per Unit Monthly 
Recycling Processing 
Fee * Tons/Units = 

Processing Fee 
$126.94 * 194 = /15,116 

= Processing Fee per 
Unit 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
Republic 

$18.48 Per 
Unit/Month 

$3,352,124.10 $170.00 Per Ton + 60% 
Rebate 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

 
Priority Waste 

$12.95 $2,349,026.40 $104 Per Ton Yes Yes Yes Not 
stated in 
Letter of 
Surety 

Yes 

Emterra $16.49 
 

$2,991,154.08 First 
Year When DOE 
Midwest Diesel 
Fuel Price is $2.50 
per Gallon or 
Above No Fuel 
Credit Will be 
Issued 

$95.00/Ton No Revenue 
Share 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Stevens 
Disposal 
 

No Bid 
Submitted 

       

  
 

       







 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 



BOARD MEMBER UPDATES 


	July 21, 2020
	Regular Meeting Agenda
	Public Hearing - Private Road Variance
	Public Comments
	Consent Agenda
	Regular Meeting Minutes June 16, 2020
	Statements and Checks July 7, 2020
	Statements and Checks July 21, 2020
	June 2020 Treasurer's Report

	Attorney Report
	Old Business
	2nd Reading Resolution 2020-13, Proposed Ordinance 2020-491 Clarifying Procedures for Establishing Houses of Worship

	New Business
	Request to Approve Private Road Variance
	Request to Approve Comcast Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement
	Request to Appove Public Nuisance Abatement
	Request to Approve Public Nuisance Abatement by Padlocking
	Request to Award Low Quote for Kitchen Updates
	Request to Approve Purchase of John Deere Utility Tractor
	Resolution 2020-14, In Support of US12/M-17 Improvements
	Resolution 2020-16, 2020 Michigan Land and Water Conservation Grant for Community Center Park
	Resolution 2020-17, 2020 Michigan Recreation Passport Grant for Clubview
	Budget Amendment #8

	Authorizations and Bids
	Request to Award Bid for Solid Waste, Recycling and Yard Waste

	Other Business
	Board Member Updates

	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Yes
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Off
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box11: Off
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box13: Off
	Check Box14: Off
	Check Box15: Off
	Check Box16: Off
	Check Box17: Yes
	Check Box18: Yes
	Check Box19: Off
	Check Box20: Off
	Check Box21: Off
	Check Box22: Off
	Check Box23: Off
	Check Box24: Off
	Check Box25: Off
	Check Box26: Off
	Check Box27: Off
	Check Box28: Off
	Check Box29: Yes
	Check Box30: Yes
	Check Box31: Off
	Check Box32: Off
	Check Box33: Off
	Check Box34: Off
	Check Box35: Yes
	Check Box36: Off
	Check Box37: Off
	Check Box38: Yes
	Check Box39: Off
	Check Box40: Off
	Check Box41: Off
	Check Box42: Off
	Check Box43: Off
	Check Box44: Off
	Text45: See comments below
	Text46: See 2/26/20 letter
	Text47: See 2/28/20 letter
	Text48: See comments below
	Text50: See 2/26/20 letter
	Text51: See 2/14/20 email
	Text52: See comments below
	Text53: N/A
	Text54: See comments below
	Text55: 
	Text2: Private Road Variance
	Text3: 5485 & 5507 Merritt Road
	Text4: April 21, 2020


